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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the "Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of Wecon Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present to our shareholders (the “Shareholders”) the annual
report of our Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 (the
“Year").

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The revenue of our Group increased by approximately HK$291.4
million or approximately 33.5% from approximately HK$869.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately
HK$1,160.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2024. The profit
attributable to the equity holders for the year ended 31 March
2024 was approximately HK$6.0 million, which slightly increased
by approximately HK$0.1 million as compared to that for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

PROSPECTS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group was
successfully awarded three sizeable contracts with an aggregate
contract sum of approximately HK$843.9 million. Subsequent
to 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group was successfully awarded one additional sizeable contract
with a contract sum of approximately HK$155.1 million. The
Group will continue to diversify its customer base by placing
more effort in promoting the Group’s reputation, ensuring
projects are completed on time with the highest quality and
implementing various cost-effective measures to improve its
competitiveness. The management of the Group still remains
prudently optimistic about the prospects of the construction
industry in Hong Kong.

4 WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024

BURR :
AABRKETERER2R(TEA7]
EREMBEAR  SEFAEE])EF(E
EDe((EEE DMARKRRITRR DR
EREEBE224F3ANBILFE(XEF
EDHFERS °

MBRE

REB KRB E2023F3831B ILEFELD
869.0B BB LI MEEE2024F3A318 1k
FEHI0ABESTT - BIBH29488
B IT 3k #933.5% © B £2024%F3A318 [EF
EREERE ARG ERNL608EBT
BH ZE2023F3A31 8 1EFEEHIEINL0.1
BAEETT o

RE

HZE2024%3A31HILFE - AEEKIHE
BF=MAREEY  GHRTELA84398
BB o M2024F3A31BE REERER
HE - NEBEKINBEINER —HENSEEL
IS5 1EBBTHRIEEGH  NEEKEE
BINFTERANEENEE - BRIEL UK
KBRS ER - WE RS EABRABE
MIEBIRAESRSE N - FERFPEBUZT
It XEBEBEEBNERTEEENITR
RRIELE o



As the world economy enters into a period of profound
transformation, the Group would seek evolution through every
avenue. The Group believes that the building information
modeling services could differentiate the Group from the
Group’s competitors through providing creative technical
solutions to the Group's customers. Going forward, the Group
plans to invest in building construction related services that
will enhance the Group's capabilities and provide synergies to
the existing business of the Group, while the Group strives to
maintain high quality and workmanship which the Group has
been delivering to its customers.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders, institutional investors, customers,
bankers, suppliers, subcontractors and business partners for
their continuous support to and confidence in the Group. |
would also like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
thanks to our management team and all staff members for their
effort and significant contribution to the Group.

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFRR S

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a long-established main contractor in Hong
Kong and principally engaged in the provision of (i) building
construction services and (ii) repair, maintenance, alteration
and addition ("RMAA") works services. The Group provides
building construction services to customers in both private and
public sectors. The building construction services provided by
the Group primarily consist of building works for new buildings,
including residential, commercial and industrial buildings, while
the Group’s RMAA works services include the general upkeep,
maintenance, improvement, refurbishment, alteration and
addition of existing facilities and components of buildings and
their surroundings. The shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”)
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 27 February 2019 (the

"Listing Date").

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had nine major projects on
hand with an awarded contract sum of HK$10.0 million or
above, which include projects in progress and projects that are
yet to commence.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group had
completed five major projects with an awarded contract sum of
HK$10.0 million or above.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks relating to the Group's operations which
could harm the Group's business, financial condition and
operating results. Some of the relatively material risks relating
to the Group are summarised as follows:

(i)  The Group’s business and operation may be affected by
public health incidents, which may cause lockdown, travel
restrictions and suspension of work in Hong Kong or

elsewhere;
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

the Group’s revenue relies on the Group's contracts being
awarded through tendering or quotation processes which
are not recurrent in nature. There is no guarantee on the
Group's continual success in project tenders or quotation
and the Group's sustainability and financial performance
may be materially and adversely affected;

the Group is exposed to concentration risk of heavy
reliance on the Group's largest and major customers;

the Group relies on the Group's subcontractors to perform
generally most of the works of the Group's projects;
any fluctuations in subcontracting costs, unsatisfactory
performance or unavailability of the Group's subcontractors
may materially and adversely affect the Group’s operations
and profitability;

the Group may suffer from cash flow shortcomings due to
mismatch in time between receipt of progress payments
from our customers, and payments to our suppliers and
subcontractors;

changes in the prices and availability of raw materials
may materially and adversely affect the Group’s operating
results; and

the Group provides performance bonds in the course of the
Group's business operations which could affect the Group's
liquidity position.

For detailed discussion of the risk factors, please refer to

the

section headed “Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the

Company dated 30 January 2019 (the “Prospectus”).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's reportable and operating segments are (i) building

construction services and (ii) RMAA works services. Details of

the segmental information of the Group is disclosed in note 5

to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WK D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately HK$291.4

million or approximately 33.5% from approximately HK$869.0

million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately
HK$1,160.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2024.

(i)

(ii)

Building Construction Services

The revenue generated from the building construction
services increased by approximately HK$165.3 million
or approximately 29.5% from approximately HK$560.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately
HK$726.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2024. Such
increase was mainly due to increase in revenue generated
from several major projects, which achieved significant
progress during the year ended 31 March 2024. Such
increase, however, was partially offset by decrease in
revenue generated from other major projects as a result of
the practical completion of those projects during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

RMAA Works Services

The revenue generated from the RMAA works services
increased by approximately HK$126.1 million or
approximately 40.9% from approximately HK$308.3 million
for the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately
HK$434.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2024. Such
increase was primarily attributable to increase in revenue
generated from several major projects which achieved
significant progress during the year ended 31 March 2024.
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Cost of Sales

The cost of sales of the Group increased by approximately
HK$285.3 million or approximately 34.4% from approximately
HK$830.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$1,115.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2024. Such increase was mainly driven by and in line with the
corresponding increase in revenue. The Group's cost of sales
primarily consisted of subcontracting costs, material costs, direct
staff costs and site overhead costs.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately
HK$6.1 million or approximately 15.6% from approximately
HK$39.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$45.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2024. The gross profit margin of the Group was approximately
3.9% and 4.5% for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023,
respectively, representing a slight decrease of approximately 0.6
percentage point.

(i) Building Construction Services

The gross profit of building construction services increased
by approximately HK$7.9 million or approximately 43.2%
from approximately HK$18.3 million for the year ended 31
March 2023 to approximately HK$26.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2024. The gross profit margin of building
construction services increased from approximately 3.3% for
the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately 3.6% for
the year ended 31 March 2024. Such increase was primarily
attributable to higher gross profit margin generated from
several major projects which achieved significant progress
during the year ended 31 March 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WK D

(ii) RMAA Works Services

The gross profit of RMAA works services decreased by
approximately HK$1.8 million or approximately 8.7% from
approximately HK$20.7 million for the year ended 31
March 2023 to approximately HK$18.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2024. The gross profit margin of RMAA
works services decreased from approximately 6.7% for the
year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately 4.4% for the
year ended 31 March 2024. Such decrease was primarily
attributable to lower gross profit margin generated from
works orders performed under several major projects
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Other Income and Gains

The other income and gains of the Group decreased by
approximately HK$6.0 million or approximately 45.5% from
approximately HK$13.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2023 to approximately HK$7.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2024. Such decrease was mainly due to the absence of
a non-recurring government subsidy under the Employment
Support Scheme established by the Government of Hong Kong
SAR and decrease in sundry income during the year ended 31
March 2024.

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses, Net

The administrative and other operating expenses, net of the
Group slightly decreased by approximately HK$0.3 million or
approximately 0.7% from approximately HK$45.4 million for the
year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately HK$45.1 million
for the year ended 31 March 2024. Such decrease was primarily
attributable to decrease in net impairment of contract assets
and trade receivables during the year ended 31 March 2024.
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Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately
HK$92,000 or approximately 51.1% from approximately
HK$180,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately
HK$272,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024. Such increase
was primarily attributable to increase in the interest expense on
lease liabilities.

Income Tax

The income tax of the Group increased by approximately HK$0.2
million or approximately 28.6% from approximately HK$0.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately
HK$0.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2024. The effective
tax rate (defined as the income tax divided by profit before
tax) was approximately 12.8% and 11.0% for the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023, respectively. The increase of the effective
tax rate was primarily attributable to the absence of the non-
taxable non-recurring government subsidy during the year
ended 31 March 2024 as compared to that for the year ended
31 March 2023.

Net Profit

As a result of the foregoing, the net profit of the Group slightly
increased by approximately HK$0.1 million or approximately 1.7%
from approximately HK$5.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2023 to approximately HK$6.0 million for the year ended 31
March 2024. The net profit margin was approximately 0.5% and
0.7% for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, respectively,
representing a decrease of approximately 0.2 percentage point.
Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in gross profit
margin and the absence of government subsidy for the year
ended 31 March 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WK D

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has a total of 210 full-time and
two part-time employees (as at 31 March 2023: 226 full-time
and three part-time employees). The Group has developed
its human resources policies and procedures to determine
the individual remuneration with reference to factors such
as performance, qualification, merits, responsibilities of each
individual employee and market conditions. The Group offers
induction and other ad hoc trainings to employees according
to the job nature and position of individual employee.
Remuneration packages are normally reviewed on a regular
basis. Apart from salary payments, other staff benefits include
provident fund contributions, medical insurance coverage,
annual leave, discretionary bonus and share options and share
awards which may be granted to eligible employees. The total
staff costs (excluding Directors’ remuneration) of the Group
were approximately HK$96.6 million and HK$93.5 million for the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 March 2024, other than the
shareholding in the subsidiaries of the Company, there were no
significant investments held by the Company. There were no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies undertaken by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any plan for material investments or capital assets as of 31
March 2024.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no significant capital commitments as at 31
March 2024.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no other material contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2024.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has a minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. As such, the
Directors believe that the Group's risk in foreign exchange is
insignificant that it is not necessary for the Group to arrange
any foreign currency hedging. The Group did not enter into
any instrument for hedging purposes and there were no
foreign currency investments which were hedged by currency
borrowings, and no other hedging instruments were entered
into by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2024.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group has principally funded the liquidity and capital
requirements through capital contributions from the
Shareholders, bank borrowings and net cash generated from
operating activities.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group had pledged deposits
and cash and bank balances of approximately HK$111.7 million
and HK$98.4 million, respectively. As at 31 March 2024 and
2023, the current ratio of the Group was approximately 1.8
times and 2.5 times, respectively.

The Group generally finances its operation by internally
generated resources and banking facilities provided by certain
banks and an insurance company in Hong Kong. The Directors
believe that the Group has sufficient working capital for the
Group's current commitments and future requirements.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there has been no
change in the capital structure of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WK D

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group had no outstanding
bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the lease
liabilities of the Group amounted to approximately HK$9.3
million and HK$6.7 million, respectively.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the banking facilities of the
Group were secured by (i) the Group's pledged deposits of
approximately HK$34.2 million and HK$34.2 million, respectively;
(i) the Group's life insurance policy of approximately HK$10.2
million and HK$10.1 million, respectively; and (iii) corporate
guarantee executed by the Company. Other than the above, the
Group had no charge made or subsisting an asset of the Group
as at 31 March 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s bank
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and
interests on bank borrowings were mainly charged at floating
rate with reference to the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(HIBOR). The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. Although the Group had no bank borrowings
during the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group pays vigilant
attention to and monitors interest rate risks continuously and
cautiously.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the gearing ratio of the Group
(defined as the lease liabilities divided by total equity) was
approximately 3.3% and 2.4%, respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group was not
subject to any material environmental claims, lawsuits, penalty,
administrative or disciplinary actions. For further information
in relation to the environmental policies and performance of
the Group, please refer to the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” prepared according to Appendix C2
(formerly Appendix 27) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELSRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
the highest standard of corporate governance as the Board
recognises the importance of sound corporate governance
to the long-term and continuing success of the Group. The
corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise
transparency, accountability and independence. The Board
commits to continuously reviewing and enhancing the Group's
corporate governance practices and procedures for the best
interest of the Shareholders.

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report to the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code ("CG Code”) in Appendix C1 (formerly
Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules except for the deviation
mentioned in the paragraph below headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive”.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer (the
"CEO") should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. Since the Listing Date and up to the date
of this annual report, Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (“Mr. KY Tsang”) has
been the Chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Company.
Given the nature and extent of the Group's operations and
Mr. KY Tsang's in-depth knowledge and experience in the
industry in which the Group operates and his familiarity with the
operations of the Group, the Board believes that it is the most
beneficial to the Group and the Shareholders as a whole to
have Mr. KY Tsang acting as the Chairman of the Board and the
CEO of the Company at the same time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the model code for securities
transactions by directors of listed issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10) to the Listing
Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries to
each of the Directors and all Directors have confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to
the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group's overall strategies, the setting of management targets
and supervision of management performance.

Composition

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board comprised a
total of six directors, with three executive Directors (the “EDs")
and three independent non-executive Directors (the "INEDs").
Board members are listed below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (Chairman and CEO)
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip

Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Lau Chi Keung

Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond

Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel
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In compliance with the requirements set out in Rule 3.10 of
the Listing Rules, the Board consists of three INEDs during the
year ended 31 March 2024, which comprises half of the Board,
and Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel has appropriate professional
qualifications on accounting or related financial management
expertise. During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the
date of this annual report, the number of INEDs represents at
least one-third of the Board which is in compliance with Rule
3.10A. As such, the Company believes that there is a sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders.

The Company has entered into a letter of appointment with
each of the INEDs. The commencement date of each of
the letter of appointment is 27 February 2019, which is the
Listing Date, for an initial term of three years, and renewable
automatically for a successive term of three years upon the
expiry of each successive term, subject to early termination
by either party in accordance with the terms thereof. Each of
the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting and
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. As such, Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip as an executive
Director and Dr. Lau Chi Keung as an independent non-
executive Director, will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Saved as disclosed in the section “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
there is no financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationship among members of the Board and senior
management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

Meetings and Attendance

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2024, as well as the
number of such meetings held, and the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 18 August 2023 (the “2023 AGM") are
set out below:

BRRHEERER

RELZE2024F3A31BIEFE - EFL@EF
KELFESEEREASRBITRAE - UK
RABIR2023F8A18H BT Z REFEFEK
(2023 ERRBEXRG ) NHEBREK
PR -

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTEENRY
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee 2023
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
Exg ENZEg REZE8 FMzEg 20235
EE] L] 2 83 RFRBEEKE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip BRELED 55 N/ANER 11 11 n
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip DR 5/5 N/A M N/A TiE R N/A TR 171
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry DR A 5/5 N/A NEA N/A TNEA N/A TNEA 171
Independent Non-Executive BIFBTES
Directors
Dr. Lau Chi Keung @ AEeELe 5/5 4/4 il N/A TiEfA 11
Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond © BB ES 5/5 4/4 N/A 1A 11 11
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel MBS 5/5 4/4 1/1 11 il
1. Chairman of the Board 1. BERgI/F
2. Chairman of the Nomination Committee 2. REZEEIR
T Chalman ot the Ao o™ ¢ DRERiER

INEDs’ meeting with the Chairman

In compliance with the code provision C.2.7 of the CG code, the
Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold a meeting
with the non-executive Directors (including INEDs) without the
presence of the other Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the INEDs had a
meeting with the Chairman of the Board without the presence
of other executive Directors. In addition, the INEDs could also
communicate directly at any time through other means (such as
telephone or email) to give their opinions and share their views
on the Company'’s affairs.
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Independence Views to the Board

The Board recognises Board independence is critical to good
corporate governance. The Company has put in place the
mechanisms to ensure a strong element of independence on
the Board, which are summarised below:

Board Composition

The Board endeavours to ensure the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors and at least one-
third of the Board members being independent non-executive
Directors (or such higher threshold as may be required by the
Listing Rules from time to time).

Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed by the
Listing Rules as to the composition of certain Board committees,
independent non-executive Directors will be appointed to other
Board committees as far as practicable to ensure independent

views are available.

Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee shall strictly adhere to the
nomination policy and the independence assessment criteria as
set out in the Listing Rules with regard to the nomination and
appointment of independent non-executive Directors.

Each independent non-executive Director is also required
to inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any
change in his own personal particulars that may materially affect
his independence.

The Nomination Committee is mandated to assess annually the
independence of all independent non-executive Directors by
reference to the independence criteria as set out in the Listing
Rules to ensure that they can continually exercise independent
judgement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

Decision Making

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are entitled to seek further information and documentation
from the management on the matters to be discussed at Board
meetings. They can also seek assistance from the Company's
company secretary and, where necessary, independent advice
from external professional advisers at the Company’s expense.

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any Board
resolution approving any contract or arrangement in which such
Director or any of his close associates has a material interest.

The Board had made an annual review on the implementation
of the abovementioned mechanisms and was of the view
that the abovementioned mechanisms had been satisfactorily
implemented.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

In compliance with the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code,
all Directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skill
to ensure that they obtain the updated and relevant information
regarding to the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the
Company arranged a training session provided by our Hong
Kong legal adviser to all the Directors as continuing professional
trainings. The training covered topics of updates on Listing
Rules on paperless regime and enforcement cases.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) pursuant to requirement of the CG Code. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.

In designing the Board’'s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a wide range of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural background and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience
and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service,
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. High emphasis is placed on
ensuring a balanced composition of skills and experience at the
Board level in order to provide a range of perspectives, insights
and challenge that enable the Board to discharge its duties
and responsibilities effectively, support good decision making
in view of the core businesses and strategy of the Group, and
support succession planning and development of the Board. For
achieving an optimal Board, additional measurable objectives
and specific diversity targets may be set and reviewed from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness.

Selection of director candidates will be based on the Company’s
nomination policy and will take into account this policy. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board, having
due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board and also
the needs of the Board without focusing on a single diversity
aspect.

After the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board had reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy and was of the view that the Board Diversity Policy was
sufficient and effective.
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Board Diversity

The Company is conscious of maintaining Board diversity
with an appropriate level of female members on the Board.
The Board considered appointing at least one female Board
member is a measurable objective in terms of Board diversity.
During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Board had no female Board members,
in which case the Board considered gender diversity has not
been fully achieved. As such, the Board will appoint at least one
female Board member by 31 December 2024 under the relevant
requirements on gender diversity prescribed by the Listing
Rules. While conscious efforts are being taken by the Company
to fulfil its Board Diversity Policy, all appointments are ultimately
made on a merit basis taking into account available and suitable
candidates.

The Board would ensure that appropriate balance of gender
diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’ expectation
and international and local recommended best practices,
with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender parity.
The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion
of Directors who have direct experience in the Group’s core
markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the
Group's strategy. The Board currently has no other non-gender
measurable objectives in terms of Board diversity.

The Nominations Committee will review the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy at least annually and make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board
for the Board’s review and approval to ensure its continued
appropriateness and effectiveness.

For recruiting potential successors to the Board to achieve
Board diversity including gender diversity, the Board has
prepared a list of desirable skills, experience, qualifications,
gender or perspectives which the candidate should have. If the
Board determines that an additional or replacement Director
is required, it will deploy multiple channels for identifying
suitable director candidates, including referral from Directors,
Shareholders, management, advisors of the Company and
external executive search firms.
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Workforce Diversity

The Group strictly adheres to fair and appropriate employment
practices and labour standards. With an anti-discriminatory
and equal-opportunity policy in place, the Group provides
job applicants and employees with equal opportunities
of employment and promotion, and prohibits all forms of
discrimination on gender, religion, race, disability or age.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a total of 212 staff
members. The gender composition of the staff members was
approximately 69.8% male staff members and 30.2% female staff

members.

Since the Company engages in the construction business, in
which case employees, workers and technicians who specialise
in engineering and construction are predominantly male, the
Board considered that gender diversity of the workforce of
the Group has been well maintained during the year ended 31
March 2024. As such, the plan for the Group in terms of gender
diversity in workforce is to maintain the balance of gender
diversity in the foreseeable future.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of functional committees
in compliance with the relevant Listing Rules for assisting the
Board to oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and
helping it in the execution of its responsibilities. Specific written
terms of reference of these committees clearly outline the
committees’ authority and duties, which require the committees
to report back on their decisions and recommendations to the
Board. Currently, three committees have been established,
i.e. the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”).
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 21
January 2019 with specific written terms of reference which
clearly deals with its authority and duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) maintaining
the relationship with the Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing
the Company's financial information; (c) overseeing the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems; and (d) overseeing the Company's
continuing connected transactions. The full version of the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the Stock
Exchange's website at “www.hkexnews.hk” and the Company's

website at “www.wecon.com.hk”.

The Audit Committee is made up of three INEDs including Mr.
Sze Kwok Wing Nigel (Chairman), Dr. Lau Chi Keung and Mr.
Chan Tim Yiu Raymond.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Audit Committee
held four committee meetings; and had, among others,

performed the following work:

() held two meetings with an external auditor to discuss and
review the annual results and the annual report for the
year ended 31 March 2023 and the interim results and the
interim report for the six months ended 30 September 2023
and recommended the same to the Board for approval,

(i) held one meeting with an external independent internal
control consultant to discuss and review the Group's
risk management and internal control systems, and the
effectiveness of the Group's internal audit function; and

(iii) held one meeting to discuss the re-appointment of external

auditor and made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of external auditor and its remuneration.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
21 January 2019 with specific written terms of reference which
clearly deals with its authority and duties.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy;
(b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated of directorships;
(c) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the Chairman of the Board and the CEO;
and (d) assessing the independence of the INEDs and reviewing
the INEDs' annual confirmations on their independence and
making the disclosure of its review results in the corporate
governance report. The full version of the terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee is available on the Stock Exchange's
“www.hkexnews.hk”

website at and the Company’s website at

www.wecon.com.hk”.

The Nomination Committee is made up of three members
including Dr. Lau Chi Keung (Chairman), Mr. Sze Kwok Wing
Nigel and Mr. Tsang Ka Yip.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting
for the year ended 31 March 2024. The duties performed by
the Nomination Committee were to review and consider the
composition and diversity of the Board, appointment and re-
appointment of the Directors, annual independence of INEDs,
assess the INEDs' independence according to the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and review the
succession planning for Directors and the existing terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.
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Nomination criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for the directorship,

the following criteria should be considered by the Nomination

Committee:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

26

the candidate’s character and integrity;

the candidate’s qualifications, including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience, and
diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board;

for independent non-executive Directors, whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

willingness and ability of the candidate to devote adequate
time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or
Board committee(s) of the Company; and

such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning.
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Nomination Procedures

The Company has put in place the following director nomination

procedures:

Appointment of New and Replacement Directors

(i)

(i)

If the Board determines that an additional or replacement
Director is required, it will deploy multiple channels for
identifying suitable director candidates, including referral
from Directors, Shareholders, management, advisors of the
Company and external executive search firms.

Upon compilation and interview of the list of potential
candidates, the Nomination Committee will shortlist
candidates for consideration by the Nomination
Committee/Board based on the selection criteria and such
other factors that it considers appropriate. The Board
has the final authority on determining suitable director
candidate for appointment.

Re-election of Directors and Nomination from Shareholders

(i)

(ii)

Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself
for re-election, the Board shall consider and, if consider
appropriate, recommend such retiring Director to stand for
re-election at a general meeting. A circular containing the
requisite information on such retiring Director will be sent
to Shareholders prior to a general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Any Shareholder who wishes to nominate a person to stand
for election as a Director at a general meeting must lodge
with the company secretary of the Company within the
lodgement period specified in the relevant shareholder
circular (a) a written nomination of the candidate, (b) written
confirmation from such nominated candidate of his/her
willingness to stand for election, and (c) biographical details
of such nominated candidate as required under the Listing
Rules. Particulars of the candidate so proposed will be sent
to all Shareholders for information by a supplementary
circular.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 21 January 2019 with specific written terms of reference
which clearly deals with its authority and duties.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors, the senior management of
the Group and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policy; (b) determining,
making recommendations to the Board, considering and
approving the remuneration package of individual executive
Directors and senior management and the compensation
arrangements relating to loss or termination of office or
appointment; (c) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate
goals and objectives; and (d) reviewing and/or approving
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

The full version of the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the Stock Exchange's website at “www.
hkexnews.hk” and the Company’s website at “www.wecon.com.
hk”. The Remuneration Committee ensures that none of the
Directors or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own

remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of three members
including Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond (Chairman), Mr. Sze Kwok
Wing Nigel and Mr. Tsang Ka Yip, a majority of which comprises
INEDs and is chaired by an INED.

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting
for the year ended 31 March 2024. The duties performed
by the Remuneration Committee were to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and member of the senior
management, as well as the remuneration of the INEDs
and such that no individual Director would decide his own
remuneration level.
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration in the Group and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Policy of Directors

Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing
to the Group's success. To ensure the ability to attract and
retain talents, the Group’s remuneration policy of Directors
is built upon the principles of providing equitable and
market-competitive remuneration package that support the
performance culture and enable the achievement of strategic
business goals. The Group's remuneration policy of Directors
is, therefore, aiming at providing competitive but not excessive
remuneration package to the Directors.

The Directors’ remuneration comprises fixed salary or service
fee and variable components (such as bonus and share options),
which is benchmarked against companies of comparable
business or scale with reference to a mix of factors such as the
prevailing market condition, the Company’s performance and
the qualifications, skills, experience and educational background
of the Directors.

The Directors’ remuneration is reviewed annually and are
subject to Shareholders’ approval.

Senior management’s remuneration

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the members of the senior management by band during
the year ended 31 March 2024 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERRE

AEBEEME RAEZRSHFMA LR
IR A SRR FEI M0

ESHFMEE

SEELRBHTMBRNE I RAEBEEZNI
MBEEE - RERATRSIALREAS - K
SEEEHFHBRNORUNERERRIFRA
MIGHRFNOHINETE - ATBRR UK
REERREEFER - Bt - ARENE
EFMBRREERAEFREAFTF HM B
ERE BB o

EEFMEIEEE & RTS8 AN AT 25
7 (ANTEAL M BB RAE) - EARIB RIS SRIER]
BHEBHRE A2E-RIREAR(MBATT
MR ARBIEEANETER - K - &
BEHEER) -

EEFMSeEFiaa - WAKBRILE -

BREEENFH

RIBEEEE AT R SF AR SCEE .55
REE2024F3ANBIEEE N FER
EEEKEBREEZSNFMOT

Number of person(s)

FrNEsE (8 T) A
Nil to 1,000,000 Z 21,000,000
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 % 1,500,000

BIZRBRAT  FH2023/2024 29



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the remuneration paid or
payable to the external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young,
in respect of the audit and non-audit services were as follows:

18 M % B B 5 B

REE2024F3A31H IEFE - BBt M 3IE
A REE AN T AR BN BRI BRI
XEHEM BRI MO T -

Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable
SRR B4 FE 1
HK$'000
FET
Audit services HithR

— Annual audit —FEET 1,128

Non-audit services FEBEET RS
— Review of interim results —ERP IS 200
— Others —H 10
1,338

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements affairs of the Group.

The statement of the auditor, Ernst & Young, about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 138 to 146 of
this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events

or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has on 21 January 2019 adopted a divided policy

(the “Dividend Policy”), and the summary of which is set out

below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into

account, inter aliai—

—
(o

the general financial condition of the Group;

3

capital and debt level of the Group;

—
(g)
-~

future cash requirements and availability for business

operations, business strategies and future development

needs;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

(e) the general market conditions; and

(f) any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act (as
revised) of the Cayman Islands and the Articles. Any final
dividends declared by the Company must be approved
by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at an
annual general meeting and must not exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The Board may from time to
time pay to the Shareholders such interim and/or special
dividends, in cash or in kind, as it considers to be justified
by the profits of the Group.

The Board endeavours to strike a balance between the
Shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management
with a sustainable Dividend Policy. The Board will review
the Dividend Policy from time to time and may exercise at
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company supports the Board by
ensuring the Board policy and procedures are followed. The
company secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on

corporate governance matters.

Mr. Tang Siu Fung Calvin ("Mr. Tang"”) has been appointed
as the company secretary of the Company (the “"Company
Secretary”) on 11 April 2021. Mr. Tang meets the qualification
requirements for company secretary under Rule 3.28 of the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2024, Mr. Tang
confirmed that he complied with training requirements under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by undertaking not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. Mr. Tang is a partner
of Hexacubic Consulting Limited, which provides corporate
governance consulting services to the Company. Although Mr.
Tang is not an employee of the Company, he reports to the
Chairman and advises the Board on governance matters. The
Company has assigned Ms. Lee Ching Ha, financial controller of
the Group, as its primary corporate contact person whom Mr.
Tang can contact.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

1M

@

General Meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a good
opportunity for communication between the Shareholders
and the Board. An annual general meeting of the Company
shall be held in each year and at such time and place to be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting (the "EGM").

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
is scheduled to be held on Friday, 16 August 2024 (the
“2024 AGM"). A circular and a notice of the 2024 AGM
containing, among other matters, further information
and notice relating to the 2024 AGM will be sent to the
Shareholders in accordance with the Articles, the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

The way in which Shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit to call an EGM. Any one or more
Shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the voting rights
at general meeting on a one vote per Share basis in the
share capital of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one
(21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by
a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his/her willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office
provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
(7) days and that (if the notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Any Shareholder(s) who wish to raise his/her/their enquiries
concerning the Company to the Board may deliver his/
her/their written enquiry(ies) to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at 18/F, Tung Hip
Commercial Building, 244-252 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong for the attention of the Chairman of the Board
and the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries,
the Company would reply as soon as possible.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy

with the objective of ensuring timely, transparent and accurate

communications between the Shareholders and the Company.

The Company has established several ways to communicate

with the Shareholders as follows:

Shareholders’ Meetings

The annual general meetings and other general meetings
of the Company are the primary communication forum
between the Company and the Shareholders. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings
physically or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
such meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend.

Notices of the general meetings, related circulars and forms of
proxy are provided within a prescribed time prior to the general
meetings on Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company’s website (www.wecon.com.hk) and sent to
the Shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the
Articles and Listing Rules.

The Directors, in particular, the chairman of the Board
committees or their delegates, appropriate senior
executives and external auditor will attend the general
meetings to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

The chairman of the general meetings will propose to vote
on the resolutions (except resolutions which relate purely to
procedural or administrative matters) by poll in accordance
with the Articles. Scrutineer will be appointed for the vote-
taking at the general meetings and the voting results will
be published on the Stock Exchange's website (www.
hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website (www.wecon.com.
hk) subsequent to the close of the general meetings.
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Corporate Communications

e Subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the e
Company will make available corporate communications of
the Company, which include annual reports, interim reports,
notices of Shareholders’ meetings, listing documents,
circulars, and proxy forms, at the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, and send these corporate
communications by electronic means to the Shareholders.
Shareholders can also request for printed copies of these
corporate communications to be sent to the Shareholders by
post free of charge.

e Shareholders are encouraged to provide their up-to-date e
contact details (including electronic contact details) to the
Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company in order
to facilitate timely and effective communications.

e  Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong branch e
share registrar of the Company, serves the Shareholders in
respect of share registration, dividend payment and related
matters.

Company’s Website VNN

e The Company's website (www.wecon.com.hk) provides the e
Shareholders with corporate information on the Group. It
also provides information on corporate governance of the
Group and the compositions and functions of the Board
and the committees of the Board.

e In addition to the “Investor Relations” section in which e
corporate communications of the Company are posted as
soon as practicable following their release on the Stock
Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk), press releases
and newsletters issued by the Company from time to time
are also available on the Company’s website to facilitate
communication between the Company, Shareholders and
investment community.

e Information on the Company’s website is updated on a e
regular basis.
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Communication with the Company

Shareholders may raise questions, request for publicly available
information and provide comments and suggestions to the
Directors and management of the Company. Such questions,
requests, comments and suggestions can be addressed to the
Company by post to 18/F, Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-
252 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, or by the following

means:

Telephone number: (852) 2529 8308
Fax number: (852) 2861 0683
Email address: irwecon@wecon.com.hk

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company's
information to the extent such information is publicly available.

The Company highly values the view and comment by the
Shareholders and relevant stakeholders to the Company
and would invite the Shareholders and relevant stakeholders
to communicate with the Company by employing the
abovementioned means. In view of the above shareholders’
communication means and measures adopted by the Company,
the Board is of the view that the shareholders’ communication
policy implemented during the year ended 31 March 2024 was
sufficient and effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of
this annual report, there was no change in the Company’s
memorandum of association and the Articles.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board undertakes to periodically review the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group to ensure their
effectiveness and efficiency and is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control system of the Group. The Directors
believe that an effective internal control system can avoid or
reduce the risks which can cause loss or reputational damage to
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group engaged
an external independent internal control consultant to review
the internal control mechanisms and carry out internal audit
function. The scope of work includes identify, monitor and
manage the key risks area associated with the business activities
in relation to the operational matters/practices of the Group.
The consultant provided their findings and recommendations
for improvement and issued the internal control review report
to the Audit Committee for their review and consideration.

The Audit Committee conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewed the internal control review
report and considered that the risk management and internal
control system of the Group are effective and adequate.
The review on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group would be conducted by
the Audit Committee on an annual basis. The Group currently
does not have an internal audit function. As mentioned above,
the internal audit function is performed by an external service
provider.

With respect to internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of insider information, the Group has a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or insider
information as set out in the human resources management
policy and handbook (the "Employee Management
Handbook").

The Company had previously arranged a training session on
the topic of updates on Listing Rules on paperless regime and
enforcement cases, which is provided by our Hong Kong legal
adviser, to all Directors as continuing professional trainings in
order to enhance the corporate governance of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEBMEREFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (“Mr. KY Tsang”), aged 71, was appointed
as our Director on 23 March 2018 and was redesignated as
our executive Director on 23 January 2019. Mr. KY Tsang is
the chairman and chief executive officer of our Group, and a
managing director of all our subsidiaries. He is responsible for
the overall strategic planning and business development as well
as executing the overall operation of our Group.

Mr. KY Tsang has over 45 years of experience in civil
engineering, building and construction industry. Prior to
founding our Group, Mr. KY Tsang worked as a project manager
in various construction contractors in Hong Kong, where he
commenced his career in the engineering and construction
industry. From July 1974 to August 1978, Mr. KY Tsang worked
in Wong & Ouyang & Associates Architects and Engineers Hong
Kong in contract section and was mainly responsible for contract
administration, preparation of tender specification and tender
documents. From August 1978 to October 1979, Mr. KY Tsang
worked in T.K. Shen Construction Co. as a project manager and
was mainly responsible for project supervision and liaising with
clients. From October 1979 to February 1982, Mr. KY Tsang
worked in Leon Eng. & Const. Co. Ltd. as a project manager;,
and was subsequently promoted to executive director and was
mainly responsible for project supervision. Mr. KY Tsang worked
in Hing Lee Construction Co., Ltd as contract manager from
March 1982 to February 1984 and was mainly responsible for
contract administration, project management, site personnel
management, preparation of building estimates and all works in
connection with tender documents.
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Mr. KY Tsang obtained Certificate of Land Surveying and
Higher Certificate of Building Technology from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic in July 1973 and November 1975 respectively. Mr.
KY Tsang also obtained an Industrial Management Diploma
from Institution of Industrial Managers in August 1983. In
March 2017, Mr. KY Tsang also received a Master’s Degree
for Engineering Management from University of Technology,
Sydney. Since October 2017, Mr. KY Tsang has been admitted
as fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Construction Manager. Mr.
KY Tsang is one of the controlling shareholders, and the father
of Mr. Philip Tsang and Mr. Jerry Tsang.

Mr. KY Tsang was as a member of the Registered Contractors’
Disciplinary Board Panel by the Housing, Planning and Lands
Bureau from 1999 to 2005. From 2007 to 2009, Mr. KY Tsang
had also been appointed as the Vice Chairman of Building
Committee of The Hong Kong Construction Association. From
2008 to 2009, Mr. KY Tsang served as the President of Rotary
Club of Hong Kong Northwest. In 2013 to 2015, Mr. KY Tsang
assumed the office of a Board Director of Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals. Since April 2017, Mr. KY Tsang was admitted
as Council Member of Hong Kong Construction Association.
Since April 2017, Mr. KY Tsang has become the Vice Chairman
of the Small & Medium Enterprise Committee of Hong Kong
Construction Association. Mr. KY Tsang is appointed as a
member of the Appeal Tribunal Panel by Planning and Lands
Branch of the Development Bureau for a period of three years
from December 2021 to November 2024. Since November 2016,
Mr. KY Tsang held the post of an independent manager of the
Incorporated Management Committee by TWGHs Tsui Tsin
Tong School.
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Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip (“Mr. Philip Tsang”), aged 42, was
appointed as the deputy director of Wecon Limited in August
2012. He was appointed as our Director on 25 June 2018 and
was re-designated as our executive Director on 23 January
2019. He is responsible for the overall construction projects
management and daily operation of our Group.

Mr. Philip Tsang joined our Group in November 2008 as a
project coordinator of Wecon Limited before he left our Group
in May 2010. Mr. Philip Tsang has returned to our Group since
August 2012 as deputy director of Wecon Limited. Mr. Philip
Tsang studied from Santa Monica College from year of 2000 to
2002 without obtaining accredited certificates. Mr. Philip Tsang
is the son of Mr. KY Tsang and the elder brother of Mr. Jerry
Tsang.

Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry (“Mr. Jerry Tsang”), aged 37, was
appointed as our Director on 25 June 2018 and was re-
designated as executive Director on 23 January 2019. He is
responsible for the overall administrative, information system,
financial and human resources planning of our Group.

Mr. Jerry Tsang joined our Group in March 2010 as an
investment executive of Wecon Limited. Mr. Jerry Tsang
obtained the Diploma of Commerce from Melbourne Institute
of Business and Technology in March 2008 and received a
degree of Bachelor of Arts (Business Enterprise) from University
of Birmingham in September 2013. Mr. Jerry Tsang is the son of
Mr. KY Tsang and the younger brother of Mr. Philip Tsang.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lau Chi Keung (“Dr. Lau"), aged 69, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 January 2019. He
is primarily responsible for providing independent advice to
our Board. He is currently a director of Fong On Construction
Limited, Fong On Geotechnics Limited, Po Shing Construction
Limited, James Lau & Associates Limited and the executive
director and chief executive officer of Ri Ying Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Shing Chi Holdings Limited), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1741) since February 2018.

Dr. Lau has over 45 years of experience in engineering. Dr.
Lau worked as a graduate engineer in Ho Chung, Wallace
Evans & Company Limited in August 1978 with his last position
held as an engineer in 1984. He was then employed by WS
Atkins (Services) Limited as a group engineer with his last
position held as a senior group engineer and head of the soil-
structure interaction group from May 1988 to August 1994. Dr.
Lau worked as an adjunct professor at The City University of
Hong Kong from June 2006 to June 2012 and The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University from April 2002 to March 2005. He has
re-joined The Hong Kong Polytechnic University as an adjunct
professor from March 2016 to February 2025. In recognition
of his valuable experience and knowledge in the civil and
environmental engineering industry, Dr. Lau is invited to be an
adjunct professor in the Department of Civil and Environmental,
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology from
April 2020 to March 2026.
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Dr. Lau was admitted to memberships of the following
institutions and bodies:

Name of institution Membership grade

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREERNERERT

BB LERARIA THEREBHKE

Month and year of approval
of membership grade

BEEE 2845 SERBINMZEBR BB
The Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators Fellow May 2018

BEMEFSE EXREE 2018457

The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators Member January 2005
BHFHHREE &8 200541 7

The Hong Kong University of Science

Honorary Fellow
and Technology

BEERKRE RERL

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers Member/Fellow
BETIZMMES g8 /BAXg8
The Institution of Structural Engineers Member

B IR RS g8

The Institution of Civil Engineers Member
TARTIZMES g8

November 2002

2002411 A

August 1983/June 1999
1983484, 19996 A
November 1982
1982114

December 1982
19824124

Dr. Lau has been a registered professional engineer (civil,
structural, and geotechnical) of Hong Kong Engineers
Registration Board since October 1997. He has also been a
registered structural engineer, an authorised person (list of
engineers), a registered geotechnical engineer and a registered
inspector under the Buildings Ordinance since August 1997,
April 1998, May 2005 and November 2012, respectively. Dr. Lau
has also been a first class registered structural engineer of the
National Administration Board of Architectural Registration of
the PRC since June 2000. Dr. Lau has also been an arbitrator
and mediator of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
an accredited general mediator of Hong Kong Mediation
Accreditation Association Limited and appointed as an
accredited adjudicator of Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre since April 2005, July 2017 and 2015, respectively.

In July 1978, Dr. Lau received the Bachelor of Science (Civil &
Structural Engineering) from University College Cardiff (currently
known as Cardiff University). In December 1985 and May 1989,
Dr. Lau further obtained a Master’s Degree and a Doctorate
Degree in soil mechanics at the University of Cambridge.
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Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond (“Mr. Chan"), aged 65, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on
21 January 2019. He is primarily responsible for providing
independent advice to our Board.

As a practicing solicitor, Mr. Chan has over 38 years of
experience in the legal profession. Mr. Chan was awarded the
Bachelor of Laws from University of Birmingham in July 1982
and passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination organised by The
Law Society of England and Wales in November 1983. Mr. Chan
then joined Johnson Stokes & Master (currently known as Mayer
Brown) as a trainee solicitor and was subsequently promoted
as an assistant solicitor and a partner before he left the firm
in 1995. In 1996, Mr. Chan formed the practice Raymond T.Y.
Chan, Victoria Chan & Co. and has been a partner since then.

Mr. Chan was admitted as a solicitor of Hong Kong in 1985 and
admitted as a solicitor of England and Wales and a barrister
and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Australia Capital Territory
in April 1989 and August 1990, respectively. In August 1990, he
was also admitted as an advocate and solicitor of Singapore.
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Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel (“"Mr. Sze"), aged 67, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 21 January 2019.
He is primarily responsible for providing independent advice to
our Board. He is currently a director of J&J Investments Limited
and an independent non-executive director of Pacific Textiles
Holdings Limited, which is a company listed in Hong Kong (Stock
Code: 1382) since January 2007.

Mr. Sze has over 43 years of experience in business and
administrative management. Mr. Sze worked as an internal
auditor in Ford Motor Company from 1980 to 1982. From 1982
to 1985, he worked as an assistant finance manager in National
Mutual. He then joined CITIBANK N.A. as a group financial
controller (private banking, Asia Pacific) from 1986 to 1989
and was subsequently promoted as business head marketing
(island central zone — Hong Kong) before he left CITIBANK N.A.
in 1993. From 1993 to 1995, he worked as a head of private
banking (Hong Kong booking centre) at American Express
Bank. He then joined Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd as an executive
director (private client sales department — Hong Kong & Taiwan)
from 1995 to 2001. From 2001 to 2007, he worked as a chief
executive officer (global wealth management, private banking,
Asia Pacific) at Barclays Bank Plc. From 2007 to 2009, he re-
joined CITIBANK N.A. as an investment and product head
(global wealth management, Asia Pacific). He then jointed EFG
International Group as a deputy chief executive officer (EFG
Bank, Asia Pacific) in 2009 and was subsequently promoted as
a chief executive officer (EFG Asset Management, Asia Pacific)
before he left the group in 2013. From 2014 to 2015, he joined
Julius Baer as a managing director and country head (China and
Hong Kong).

Mr. Sze has been admitted as a fellow of CPA Australia since
January 2007 and was licensed as a responsible officer for
conducting type 9 regulated activities by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong since September 2017.

In May 1980, Mr. Sze received the Bachelor of Business Studies
from Swinburne University (formerly known as Swinburne
College of Technology), Australia. In August 2007, he obtained
a Master’s Degree in Business from University of Newcastle,
Australia.
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Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors had not held
any directorship in the last three years in any public company
the securities of which is listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas.

Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors confirms
with respect to him that: (a) he did not hold other positions
in our Company or other members of our Group as at the
reporting date; (b) he did not have any relationship with any
other directors, senior management, substantial shareholder
or controlling shareholder of our Company as at the reporting
date; (c) he does not have any interests in our Shares within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, save as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Report of the Directors — Disclosure of
Interests” in this annual report; (d) he does not have any interest
in any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with us, which is discloseable under the Listing
Rules; and (e) to the best of the knowledge, information and
belief of our Directors having made all reasonable enquiries,
there was no additional information relating to our Directors or
senior management that is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and no other matter with
respect to their appointments that needs to be brought to the
attention of our Shareholders as at the 31 March 2024.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Wing Lun Allan ("Mr. Wu"), aged 46, is the senior
project manager of Wecon Limited and a member of the senior
management of our Group. He joined our Group in November
2007 and is mainly responsible for the management and
administration of different projects in our Group.

Mr. Wu has over 23 years of experience in civil engineering,
building and construction industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Wu mainly worked as structural engineer and project
manager in various structural consulting firms and construction
contractors in Hong Kong, where he commenced his career
in the engineering and construction industry. From 2000 to
2001, Mr. Wu worked in Shun Shing Construction Co. Ltd. as
an assistant site engineer. From 2001 to 2004, Mr. Wu worked
in Canwest Consultants (International) Ltd. as an engineer; and
from 2004 to 2007, Mr. Wu worked in Realfit Engineering Ltd.
as an assistant project manager and was mainly responsible for
assisting the project manager in monitoring project operations,
planning and site coordinating work.

Mr. Wu obtained a Bachelor of Engineering from McMaster
University Canada in November 2000 and a Certificate of
Engineering Graduate Training Scheme from Vocational
Training Council of Hong Kong in January 2003. Mr. Wu has also
obtained a Master’s Degree in Civil Infrastructure Engineering
and Management from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in November 2004. In November 2014, Mr.
Wu was admitted as the Authorised Signatory by the Register
of General Building Contractors in Buildings Department. In
September 2015, Mr. Wu was admitted as a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Mr. Wu has also
obtained a Certificate of Building Environmental Assessment
Method Professional (New Buildings) from Hong Kong Green
Building Council in May 2017.
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Mr. Ho Chi Ming, Wilson (“Mr. Ho"), aged 62, is the general
manager (projects) of Wecon Limited and a member of the
senior management of our Group. He joined our Group in
March 2017 and is mainly responsible for management and
administration of different projects in our Group.

Mr. Ho has over 39 years of experience in buildings and
construction industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ho mainly
worked as project manager in various construction companies
in Hong Kong, where he started his career in the construction
industry. From 1984 to 1987, Mr. Ho worked in Yeu Shing
Construction Co., Ltd. as a site agent. From 1987 to 1994, Mr.
Ho worked in Yau Lee Construction Co., Ltd as a site agent/
senior quantity surveyor. From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Ho worked
in Hoi Sing Construction Co., Ltd as senior project manager.
From 1996 to 1997, Mr. Ho worked in Wan Chung Construction
Co., Ltd as a senior project manager. From 1997 to 2000, Mr.
Ho worked in Dynasty Building Ltd. as a manager. From 2000
to 2002, Mr. Ho worked in Gammon Skanska Ltd. as a site
agent and from 2002 to February 2017, Mr. Ho worked in Able
Engineering Co., Ltd as a project manager.

In September 2005, Mr. Ho obtained a Bachelor Degree of
Applied Science in Construction Management and Economics
from Curtin University of Technology.

In August 2005, Mr. Ho was also admitted as a member of
The Chartered Institute of Building. Mr. Ho was admitted as
Chartered Construction Manager by The Chartered Institute of
Building in September 2014.

Mr. Choi Ying Tung (“Mr. Choi"), aged 49, is the safety and
environmental manager of Wecon Limited and a member of
the senior management of our Group. He joined our Group
in August 2007 and is mainly responsible for safety and
environmental management of our Group.
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Mr. Choi has over 26 years of experience in civil engineering,
buildings and construction industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Choi mainly worked as safety officer in various construction
companies in Hong Kong, where he started his career in the
construction industry. From 1997 to 1999, Mr. Choi worked in
Far East Consulting Engineers Ltd. as an assistant engineer.
From 1999 to 2001, Mr. Choi worked in Chevalier (Construction)
Company Ltd as a technical assistant. From 2001 to 2004, Mr.
Choi worked in Hip Hing Construction Co., Ltd as a safety
officer; and from November 2004 to August 2007, Mr. Choi
worked in Union Glory E&M Engineering Ltd. as a project
engineer and safety officer.

Mr. Choi obtained certificate in Hong Kong Advanced Level
Examination in 1995 and a Higher Diploma in Building
Services Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 1997. In November 2001, Mr. Choi obtained Post-
experience Certificate in Industrial Safety from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Choi also obtained a Certificate
for the completion of the training in Location of Underground
Electricity Cables from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
July 2004. In February 2005, Mr. Choi completed Safety Auditor
Training Schemes provided by The Hong Kong Productivity
Council and James Safety Consultant Limited. In 2008, Mr.
Choi obtained a Bachelor Degree in Engineering Mechanics,
Materials and Design from the Hong Kong Open University. In
August 2012, Mr. Choi obtained the Professional Certificate in
Environmental Management for Construction (Environmental
officer) from Vocational Training Council.

In March 2011, Mr. Choi was admitted as Registered Electrical
Worker (permitted work: BO and HO categories) by Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department. Mr. Choi was admitted as
Registered Safety Officer and Registered Safety Auditor by the
Labour Department in August 2002. In August 2012 and January
2009 respectively, Mr. Choi was awarded the Professional
Certificate in Environmental Management of Construction
(Environmental Officer) by the Vocational Training Council.
Mr. Choi was awarded a certificate of Building Environmental
Assessment Method Professional (New Buildings) since
November 2017 by The Hong Kong Green Building Council.
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Ms. Hui Pik Yuet (“Ms. Hui"), aged 51, is the head of human
resources and administration of Wecon Limited and a member
of the senior management of our Group. She joined our Group
in January 2015 and is mainly responsible for administrative and
human resources matters of our Group.

Ms. Hui has over 26 years of experience in business
administration, human resources and company secretarial
matters. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Hui mainly worked as
human resources officer and manager in various companies
in Hong Kong, where she started her career in the human
resources and administration industry. From 1998 to 1999, Ms.
Hui worked in Pruton Prudential Hotel as personnel and training
assistant. From 1999 to 2002, Ms. Hui worked in China Harbour
Engineering Company (Group) Limited as a human resources
officer. From 2002 to 2003, Ms. Hui worked in WorldCard (Hong
Kong) Limited as administration and marketing executive; from
2003 to 2005, Ms. Hui worked in Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
as a human resources officer; and from June 2005 to April
2008, Ms. Hui worked in China Resources Insurance Consultants
Limited as human resources and administration manager;
from April 2008 to December 2014, Ms. Hui was subsequently
transferred to China Resources Investment Enterprise Ltd. as
human resources and administration manager and was then
worked to the personnel and administration department in CRE
Properties (Hong Kong) Ltd. and China Resources Insurance
Consultants Limited as human resources and administration
manager and was mainly responsible for human resources and
administrative matter.

Ms. Hui obtained a Bachelor Degree in Bachelor of Arts from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1997. Ms.
Hui also obtained a Diploma in Management Studies from
Lingnan University/The Hong Kong Management Association in
September 2001.
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Ms. Lee Ching Ha (“Ms. Lee"”), aged 35, is the financial
controller of Wecon Limited and a member of the senior
management of our Company. She joined our Group in April
2021 as financial controller and is primarily responsible for
financial management and compliance assurance of our Group.

Ms. Lee has over 13 years’ accounting, auditing and financing
experience and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since October 2013. Ms. Lee
obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting
and Finance degree from the University of Hong Kong in
November 2010. Prior to joining the Group, she had worked in
an international accounting firm and was the head of finance
department in a company providing building construction and
civil engineering services in Hong Kong.

Save as disclosed above, each member of the senior
management of our Group had not held any directorship in
the last three years in other public companies, the securities
of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or

overseas.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is a long established main contractor in Hong Kong
principally engaged in the provision of (i) building construction
services and (ii) RMAA works services in Hong Kong. Details of
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant
to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) including the description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group is set out in the section
of “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 4 to 14 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of Directors’ report. Moreover, the details
of the financial risk management of the Group are disclosed in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the
Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 147 to 149 of this
annual report.

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK1.2 cents per
Share (2023: HK1.2 cents per Share), which amounts to a total
of HK$9.6 million (2023: HK$9.6 million) in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2024, to Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company (the “Register of
Members”) at the close of business on Friday, 23 August 2024.
The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the 2024 AGM scheduled to be held on Friday,
16 August 2024.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group's five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 90.3%
(2023: approximately 74.1%) of the total revenue of the
Group and the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 35.8% (2023: approximately 31.0%) of the total
revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group's five largest
subcontractors in aggregate accounted for approximately
35.1% (2023: approximately 24.0%) of the total subcontracting
cost of the Group and the largest subcontractor of the Group
accounted for approximately 10.6% (2023: approximately 6.0%)
of the total subcontracting cost.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group's five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 72.8% (2023:
approximately 70.1%) of the total purchases of construction
materials of the Group and the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 31.0% (2023: approximately 31.6%)
of the total purchases of construction materials.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company's issued Shares) has any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers or subcontractors.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS, SUBCONTRACTORS
AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers
to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering quality services to our customers on
time.

Subcontractors and Suppliers

The Group maintains a list of approved subcontractors (based
on their previous experience, skills, present work load, price
quotations and historical work quality) and suppliers (based on
their prices, quality, past performance and capacity).
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Employees

The Group recognises employees as valuable assets of the
Group. The Group intends to provide competitive remuneration,
attractive welfare benefits and continuous professional training
to attract and retain appropriate and suitable personnel to serve
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there was no material
dispute or disagreement between the Group and its customers,
subcontractors, suppliers and employees.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 236
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risks of non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations. During the year ended 31
March 2024 and up to the date of this annual report, the Group
in all material aspects has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group and there was no material breach or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

Charitable contributions made by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2024 amounted to approximately HK$188,000
(2023: approximately HK$134,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2024 AGM of the Company is scheduled to be held on
Friday, 16 August 2024. A notice convening the 2024 AGM will
be issued to the Shareholders according to the applicable law,
the Articles and the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the identity of the Shareholders who will be
entitled to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, the Register
of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 13 August 2024 to
Friday, 16 August 2024, both dates inclusive, the period during
which no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, all completed
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at its
office at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 12
August 2024.

Subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the 2024 AGM,
to ascertain the Shareholders’ entitlement to receiving the
final dividend, the Register of Members will be closed from
Thursday, 22 August 2024 to Friday, 23 August 2024, the period
during which no transfer of Shares will be effected. Subject to
the approval of the Shareholders at the 2024 AGM approving
the payment of the final dividend, the final dividend is expected
to be paid on Monday, 2 September 2024 to Shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members on Friday, 23
August 2024. In order to qualify for receiving the final dividend,
all completed share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at the above address not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 21 August 2024.
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SHARE CAPITAL

There is no movement in the Company’s authorised share
capital and issued share capital during the year ended 31 March
2024. Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out
in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, in the opinion of the Directors, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution to
Shareholders under the Companies Act (as revised) of the
Cayman lIslands amounted to approximately HK$25.8 million
(2023: approximately HK$36.9 million).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole
shareholder of the Company by way of written resolutions
passed on 21 January 2019. No share option has been granted,
exercised, expired, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption date and up to the date of this
annual report.

Summary of terms of the Share Option Scheme

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant share options to the eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group or any entity which is an associate
company of the member of the Group (the “Invested
Entity”).
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(b)

()

Who may join

Our Directors shall, in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, be entitled but
shall not be bound at any time within a period of 10 years
commencing from the date of the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme to make an offer to any employee (whether
full time or part time, including our Directors (including
any non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Director)), any of our subsidiaries (within the meaning of
Companies Ordinance) or any Invested Entity (an “eligible
employee”).

The eligibility of any of the eligible participants to an offer
under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by our
Directors from time to time on the basis of our Directors’
opinion as to such eligible participant’s contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares

()  The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share schemes adopted by
the Group shall not exceed 10% of the share capital
of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
the Share Option Scheme or other share schemes. No
share options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by
the Group if the grant of such share options will result
in the limit referred herein being exceeded.

(b)

(c)
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options (excluding, for
this purpose, share options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group) to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the share capital
of the Company in issue as at the date on which
dealings in the Shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange, being 80,000,000 Shares (“General Scheme
Limit”). As at 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 and the date
of this annual report, the number of share options
available for grant under the Share Option Scheme
was 80,000,000 share options, which represents 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue on 1 April 2023, 31
March 2024 and as at the date of this annual report,
respectively.

There was no service provider sublimit set under the
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March
2024.

The Company may seek approval of our Shareholders
in general meeting to refresh the General Scheme
Limit every three years in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

Subject to (e) below, the total number of Shares issued

and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the share

options granted under the Share Option Scheme and

any other share option schemes of the Group (including

both exercised or outstanding options) to each eligible

participant who accepts the offer for the grant of an option

under the Share Option Scheme (a “grantee”) in any

12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share

capital of the Company for the time being.
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(e)

Where any further grant of share options under the
Share Option Scheme to a grantee would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all share
options granted and proposed to be granted to such
person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
share options) under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Group in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of the share capital of
the Company in issue, such further grant shall be separately
approved by our Shareholders in general meeting with such
grantee and his/her close associates (or his/her associates
if the participant is a connected person) abstaining from
voting.

Grant of share options to core connected persons

(i)  Without prejudice to (ii) below, the making of an offer
under the Share Option Scheme to any Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or any of their respective associates shall be approved
by our independent non-executive Directors (excluding
any independent non-executive Director who is the
proposed grantee of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme).

(i)  Without prejudice to (i) above, where any grant of
share options under the Share Option Scheme to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates,
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all share options under the Share
Option Scheme already granted and to be granted
(including share options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the share capital of the
Company in issue.

(e)
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Any further grant of share options shall be approved by
our Shareholders in general meeting in accordance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules. The proposed
grantee, his/her associates and all core connected persons
of the Company shall abstain from voting in favour at such
general meeting.

For the purpose of seeking the approval of our
Shareholders under paragraphs (c), (d) and (e) above,
the Company shall send a circular to our Shareholders
containing the information required under the Listing Rules
and where the Listing Rules shall so require, the vote at the
Shareholders’ meeting convened to obtain the requisite
approval shall be taken on a poll with those persons
required under the Listing Rules abstaining from voting.

Time of acceptance and exercise of a share option

An offer under the Share Option Scheme shall remain open
for acceptance by the eligible participant concerned (and
by no other person) for a period of up to 21 days from the
date, which shall be a business day, on which the offer is
made to the eligible participant.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by our Directors
to the grantee thereof, and in the absence of such
determination, from the date of acceptance of the offer
of such share option to the earlier of (i) the date on which
such share option lapses under the relevant provisions of
the Share Option Scheme; and (ii) the date falling 10 years
from the offer date of that share option. The vesting period
of the share option shall be determined by the Board at its
discretion, which shall not be more than the exercise period
of the share option.

An offer shall have been accepted by an eligible participant
in respect of all Shares which are offered to such eligible
participant when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer duly signed by the eligible participant together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 21 days from the offer date).
Such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable.
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(]

(h)

Any offer may be accepted by an eligible participant in
respect of less than the number of Shares which are offered
provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for
dealings in the Shares on Main Board or an integral multiple
thereof and such number is clearly stated in the duplicate
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such
eligible participant and received by the Company together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof within such time
as may be specified in the offer (which shall not be later than
21 days from the offer date). Such remittance shall in no
circumstances be refundable.

Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price in respect of any share option shall,
subject to the adjustments, be at the discretion of our
Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the highest
of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on the date on which the Share
Option Scheme is adopted, i.e. 20 January 2029.
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SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Board adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award
Plan”) on 31 July 2020 (the “Adoption Date"”). The shares to be
awarded under the Share Award Plan only involve the existing

shares in issue.

Purposes

The purposes of the Share Award Plan are:

to recognise and reward the contribution of the Eligible
Participants to the growth and development of the Group;

ii. to give incentives to the Eligible Participants in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development
of the Group; and

iii. to attract suitable personnel for further development of
the Group.

Participants of the Share Award Plan

Any employees of the Group and the invested entities who
contributes to the Group or the Invested Entities (the “Eligible
Participants”) will be entitled to participate.

Maximum Entitlement of the Eligible Participants

Under the rules constituting the Share Award Plan, the
maximum number of Shares which can be subscribed for and/or
purchased under the Share Award Plan shall not exceed 10% of
the total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date (i.e.,
80,000,000 Shares). The maximum number of Shares which may
be awarded to an Eligible Participant shall not in aggregate
exceed 1% of the issued Shares of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

Vesting Period and Conditions of Share Award

The Board may from time to time, at its discretion, determine
the vesting date(s) which is within the life of the Share Award
Plan, any condition(s) or performance target(s) when granting
the share award to the Eligible Participants. The share award
may be granted to the Eligible Participants at nil consideration
or any amount which the Board thinks fit.
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Administration of the Share Award Plan

The Share Award Plan only involves existing Shares and no new
Shares shall be issued thereunder.

The Group has set up a trust (the “Share Award Plan Trust”)
for the purpose of administrating the Share Award Plan. The
Share Award Plan Trust will acquire the Shares from the Stock
Exchange, with a maximum amount of funds allocated by the
Board, and will hold such Shares until they are vested. Unless
early terminated by the Board, the Share Award Plan shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from
the Adoption Date (i.e. 31 July 2030). The trustee of the Share
Award Plan Trust holding the unvested share award shall abstain
from voting on general meetings of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company allocated
HK$1,000,000 to the Share Award Plan Trust, and approximately
HK$996,000 was utilised to purchase 5,304,000 Shares.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, additional 1,492,000
Shares, amounted to approximately HK$253,000, were

purchased.

As at 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, 6,796,000 Shares, 6,796,000 Shares and 6,796,000
Shares, respectively, were held by the trustee under the Share
Award Plan, under which no Shares have been granted to
any Eligible Participants and were available to be granted to
Eligible Participants. No share award has been granted, vested,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Award Plan since its
Adoption Date and up to 31 March 2024. No new Shares could
be issued under the Share Award Plan and there is no service
provider sub-limit under the Share Award Plan.

For further details of the Share Award Plan, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 31 July 2020.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Company and
Associated Corporation

As at 31 March 2024, interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO") which were required (i) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or (iii) pursuant to Model Code contained in Appendix C3
(formerly Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long position in Shares of the Company

ESRRETRAEBRA AR REBEEN
i

R2024%F3A318  EERA QNG ®EITH
ABRARAISHEAEMEEEZE(TRRE
HREAEGG([##REBEHRE ) EXVEL)
2D - BEERND RESFTFEE)REBEES
MHAEIEBIEXVERET R E8D B2 IR E A
MEARARREBRMAZERIORE (BIER
BESMAERY 2 ZEBRXESERE EX
RERBzERRIXE)  H(NVBREZSH K
HA & &) 3535214 7B B e IR sz IR Pl 2 B &2
Az oK A - =i iR & £ R A B
8:C3 (AT AMER10) FTEIZEFRI 2 EM
BAHEARRNA R 2 EmARIAT ¢

() RAERXANRGER

Number of Approximate

Shares held percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature (Long position) shareholding
iRt 8 8 IRAEREA

EEHE B4,/ HE (HFR) EEi)d
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (“Mr. KY Tsang”) Interest in a controlled corporation 600,000,000 75%

CREXRE(BREXRE]) (Note)

SAEHDEE S ()

Note: These Shares are held by Triple Arch Limited (“Triple Arch”). Triple Arch is 100%
beneficially owned by Mr. KY Tsang and therefore, Mr. KY Tsang is deemed to
be interested in the same number of Shares held by Triple Arch under the SFO.

(ii) Long position in ordinary shares of associated corporation

Name of

Name of Director associated corporation Capacity/Nature

Mt ZE D A Triple Arch Limited ([Triple Arch])
5B ° Triple ArchB3 & KE & A BB 100%
= FARREES RIS R - B RELERS
R Triple ArchFT# B 1ER 218 B fn A = o

(i) REEZENSERER

Number of Approximate
percentage of

shareholding

shares held
in associated
corporation in associated

(Long position) corporation

RAEBEE IEREEE R

RO EE IR A

ESpS R LB B8 5% HE (3FR&) Bkt

Mr. KY Tsang Triple Arch Beneficial owner 1 100%
BRESLE Triple Arch En#EAA
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares in the Company other
than Directors and Chief Executives
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BREBRESTRABUIIEIERRREL
AR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares held interest in
Name Nature of interest (Long position) the Company
FEROHE fhA A EER
BB A EEME (#R) R
Triple Arch Beneficial owner (Note 1) 600,000,000 75%
Triple Arch EmEA AP
Ms. Lai Yuk Lin, Eliza Interest of spouse (Note 2) 600,000,000 75%
("Ms. Lai")
RErEat+((Rat]) T B s (M 5E2)
Notes: B EE

1. Triple Arch is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. KY Tsang and therefore, Mr. KY Tsang is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by Triple Arch under the
SFO.

2. Ms. Lai is the spouse of Mr. KY Tsang. Therefore, Ms. Lai is deemed to be interested in

the same number of Shares in which Mr. KY Tsang is interested for the purpose of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, no person, other
than the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the
Company and Associated Corporation” above, had registered
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The controlling shareholders, Mr. Tsang Ka Yip and Triple Arch
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) had entered into
the deed of non-competition in favour of the Company on 21
January 2019 (the “Non-competition Undertaking”). Details
of the Non-competition Undertaking are set out in the section
in the
Prospectus. The Controlling Shareholders had confirmed the

headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”

state of compliance of the Non-competition Undertaking and
the INEDs have reviewed that state of compliance of each
of the Controlling Shareholders under the Non-competition
Undertaking and as far as the INEDs can ascertain, there has
been no breach of the Non-competition Undertaking by the
Controlling Shareholders during the year ended 31 March 2024.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2024 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (Chairman and CEQO)
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Lau Chi Keung
Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting. As such, Mr. Tsang
Tsz Him Philip as an executive Director and Dr. Lau Chi Keung
as an independent non-executive Director, will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
2024 AGM.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all of its INEDs to be
independent in accordance with the independence criteria as
set out under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contracts
of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company or his
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 March 2024 or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2024.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
2024 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2024 are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration of the Directors was reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and was determined according to the
qualifications, experience, skills, education background as well
as the contributions which the Director may bring to the Board,
with reference to the prevailing market remuneration level
offered by companies having similar business and size to the
Company, in order to retain and attract high-calibre executives
as the Directors. The Directors and members of the senior
management may also receive options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and the share award to be granted under
the Share Award Plan.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in the section of "Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 39 to
51 of this annual report.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. Other than
operating the MPF Scheme, the Group has not operated any
other retirement benefit schemes for its employees.

The total retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$3.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (2023: approximately HK$3.4 million).
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group did not have
any forfeited contributions which may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2024.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules were entered
into by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2024 were set out
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
the related party transactions would constitute a connected
transaction or a continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Plan, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended 31
March 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float of at least 25% of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto provided that, to the extend permitted by the law, such
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonestly which may attach to the Director.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of potential legal actions against the
Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the section headed "Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 15 to 38 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environmental policies and performance adopted by the Group
are more particularly set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 71 to 137 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no significant events occurred after 31 March
2024 and up to the date to this annual report which require
disclosure.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire at the 2024 AGM as the auditor of
the Company and a resolution for their re-appointment as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2024 AGM.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

On behalf of the Board

Wecon Holdings Limited

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIE . MERELSRE

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group recognises the paramount importance of
sustainability for our business activities as the world grapples
with pressing challenges, such as climate change, depletion of
natural resources, and human rights violations. We firmly believe
that our dedication to sustainability can enhance the quality of
life, safeguard our ecosystem, and conserve natural resources
for future generations. Simultaneously, we strive to meet all
the sustainability-related expectations and requirements of our
stakeholders.

We have established clear short-term and long-term sustainable
development goals and objectives. We have also been
implementing continuous emission reduction initiatives in line
with government regulations. We recognise our responsibilities
for evaluating and determining the Group's Environmental
Social Governance (“ESG") related risks as well as ensuring
that appropriate and effective ESG risk management and
internal control systems are in place, which motivates our strong
commitment to ESG issues.

We have also approved and overseen the process of selecting
and identifying material ESG topics by the management team.
The Board regularly monitors and evaluates the effectiveness
of management, including reviewing the company’'s ESG
performance and adjusting corresponding action plans as
needed. To highlight some of our existing ESG management
initiatives, under the environmental aspect, we have focused on
improving energy efficiency within our operations and managing
the waste we generate through various handling methods. It
also encompasses the resources we consumed, air and carbon
emissions as well as the identification of risks and opportunities
related to climate change that might impact on our business.
Under the social aspect, we addressed disclosures on areas
including but not limited to gender, diversity, labour relations,
discrimination, health and safety, training and development,
supply chain management, product responsibility, anti-
corruption and community investment.
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On the other hand, the adaptability of our business is vital for
the Group to govern itself and make effective well-informed
decisions in order to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations as well as to meet the expectations of the external
stakeholders. We believe that our engagement in ESG will be
highly beneficial to the strategic development on ESG and
sustainability policies, ultimately leading to a promising future.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Wecon Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its

"noou

subsidiaries, hereinafter referred to as the “Group”, “we” or "us")
is delighted to publish the fourth Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to summarise the Group's
policies, measures and performance on the key ESG issues in
accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Appendix

C2 to the Listing Rules.

Reporting Period

The Report illustrates the overall performance of the Group
regarding the environmental and social aspects from 1 April
2023 to 31 March 2024 (the "reporting period” or “2023/2024").

Reporting Scope and Boundary

The Report discloses related policies and initiatives for the core
and material businesses of the Company, namely provision of
(i) building construction services; and (ii) repair, maintenance,
alteration and addition ("RMAA") works services in Hong Kong.
There is no significant change in the scope and boundaries of
this Report from that of the ESG report for the year ended 31
March 2023 (“2023/2024").

The Report discloses environmental key performance indicators
("KPls") and social KPIs of the Group. While the Report does
not cover all of the Group’s operations, the Group aims to
upgrade its internal data collection procedure and gradually
expand the scope of the disclosure. The reporting scope covers
approximately 90% of the Group's total revenue of 2023/2024.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Reporting Basis and Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide (the "ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix C2 to the
Listing Rules and on the basis of the four reporting principles —
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency:

e "Materiality” Principle:
The Group identifies key ESG issues through stakeholder
engagements and materiality assessment.

e “Quantitative” Principle:
Information is presented with quantitative measure,
whenever feasible, including information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions used and provision of

comparative data.

e  “Balance” Principle:
The Report provides comprehensive disclosure of the
Group's ESG performance based on objective facts. Both
achievements and challenges of the Group are identified in

the Report.

e  “Consistency” Principle:
The Report uses consistent methodologies for meaningful

comparisons unless improvements in methodology are
identified.

The Report has complied with all “comply or explain” provisions
and disclosures outlined in the ESG Guide.

The information contained herein is sourced from internal
documents and statistics of the Group, as well as the combined
control, management and operations information provided
by the subsidiaries in accordance with the Group's internal
management systems. A complete content index is appended
to the last section hereof for quick reference. The Report
is prepared and published in both Chinese and English at
the Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company's website (www.wecon.com.hk). In the event of
contradiction or inconsistency between the Chinese version and
the English version, the English version shall prevail.
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Review and Approval

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the ESG Report and to the best
of their knowledge, the ESG Report has addressed all relevant
material issues and has fairly presented the ESG performance of
the Group for 2023/2024.

The Report was reviewed and approved by the Board (the
“"Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”) on 26th June 2024.

Feedback

Should you have any opinions or suggestions on the
ESG Report, please feel free to liaise with the Group at
irwecon@wecon.com.hk.

ABOUT THE GROUP

Founded in 1974, Wecon Limited (“WL"), one of the principal
operating subsidiaries of the Group, commenced business in
the building and construction industry in 1984. In response
to the business needs and future development, Wecon
Construction & Engineering Limited (“WCE"), another principal
subsidiary of the Group, was established in 1990 to undertake
the superstructure projects in the private sector.

Over the past decades, the Group has extensively involved and
completed a variety of projects in the provision of (i) building
construction services; and (ii) RMAA works services in both
private and public sectors. Our building construction services
primarily consist of building works for new buildings, including
residential, commercial and industrial buildings, while our
RMAA works services include the general upkeep, maintenance,
improvement, refurbishment, alteration and addition of existing
facilities and components of buildings and their surroundings.

The Group has established a long-term relationship with a
diverse range of suppliers, subcontractors, specialists and
financial institutions. As such, we are able to integrate and
interconnect these partners to deliver the best quality, timely,
technologically advanced, responsive, and valuable building and
construction services to our clients.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Awards and Recognitions

The Group's efforts have been recognised by a number of
awards during the reporting period. The details are as follows:

ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme 2023-24
Organised by Employees Retraining Board
e Recognized the organization’'s exemplary achievement
in manpower training and development
- WL

Good MPF Employer 2022-2023
Organised by Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority
e e-Contribution Award
e  MPF Support Award
- WL

Caring Company 2024

Organised by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

* Recognized the organization’s positive contribution in
the areas of “Caring for the Community”, “Caring for
the Employees” & “Caring for the Environment"

- WL
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ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors is committed to actively supporting
the Group's efforts in upholding its environmental and social
obligations. They oversee the development and implementation
of the Group’s comprehensive ESG strategy, ensuring alignment
with the organization’s sustainability goals and driving robust
reporting on ESG performance. The Board is responsible for
evaluating and determining the Group's ESG-related risks and
ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG risk management
and internal control systems are in place.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of the
implementation to the ESG Working Group (the "Working
Group”). The Working Group, composed of senior management
and key representatives from various departments across
the Group, is tasked with spearheading the adoption and
integration of ESG strategies and policies throughout the
organization. The Working Group regularly reports to the
Board of Directors on the progress and performance of the
implemented ESG initiatives.

The Board regularly reviews the Group's ESG performance as
well as examines and approves the Group’s annual ESG report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Maintaining continuous engagement and fostering open
communication with key stakeholder groups is essential for
developing a business strategy that effectively addresses
their needs and expectations. This approach enhances the
organization’s ability to identify and manage risks, while also
strengthening collaborative relationships with its stakeholders.
Stakeholders’ opinions are the solid foundation for the Group's
sustainable development and success as their priorities and
perceptions enables us to manage material ESG decisions
and make informed decisions. The Group utilizes a range
of communication channels to engage with its diverse
stakeholders, as outlined below.
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Stakeholder Key Expectations Communication Channel

BHE FEHE BERE

Government and regulators e Compliance with national and local e Regular announcements and other
BN REEHE policies, laws and regulations public information

Shareholders and investors

BRRRREE

Suppliers, Subcontractors and
Business Partners

HER  2REREBRBH

Customers

'F

BFBER R ARBER  ERRER
Drive local employment
B AL 2

Pay taxes in full and on time
SRR IR
Ensure production safety

BREEZS

Returns

B4

Compliant operation

BREE

Raise company value
R’RARBEE

Transparency in information and
effective communication

BRERERBRUBR

Operate with integrity
WIS
Equal Rivalry
$A‘ﬁ
Performance of contracts
%)
Mutual benefit and win-win result

ERiES

Health and safety
(A
Performance of contracts
FB#)

Operate with integrity
MIEHE

BIERERAT

EHREREMAFER
Examinations and inspections

EE MR

General Meetings

BERAE

Annual reports, interim reports, ESG
reports, announcements and other

public information
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Stakeholder Key Expectations Communication Channel
BHE FTEHE BERE
Community or ® Improve community environment ® Participation in community
Non-governmental HEMBIRE programmes
Organisations (NGOs) e Participation in charity 22 EaLt (@ 5T S
HERIFBUTHE DEEERE e Donations
e Transparent information B
ErEERE e ESG Reports
RE - Mg RERME
Media e Transparency and accuracy in e Enquiry Mailbox
e information B REAE
BRUERE MR
Employees e Occupational Health e Employee communication meetings
&8 B EEBBEH®
e Remunerations and benefits e House journal and intranet
HE KRR B B 5 N A B A
e Career development * Employee mailbox
B BEEM
e Humanity cares e Training and workshop
AX I B R TIED

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group identifies issues for disclosure in the Report
through internal and external materiality assessment. After
carefully assessing the stakeholders’ level of dependence and
influence on the Group, as well as the available resources, the
management has identified the key stakeholders to participate
in our survey. This survey aims to determine the materiality of
various ESG related issues. They have expressed their opinions
and recommendations on the sustainability issues related to the
Group's operation by participating in our survey.
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BRI HEREREE

The stakeholder-driven materiality results of the materiality MR2024FEZEMFHF - AFHEARTE
assessment in 2024 provided us with a recalibrated set of HMEZWHERARIUREI22EEEHERBE
12 material topics, which were identified from a list of 22 EMFIRFHRIE —RKIEEFFAERN12E
potentially relevant topics. The Group has developed the EZTXTE - AEEREEZHERE (M TAT
materiality matrix presented below. The issues positioned within 7<) ° ZEfE A £ 5 AT RaE B &5 A Y
the top right-hand quadrant of the matrix have been identified PERAEEEKEEMSHEEEAETEN
as having relatively higher significance to both the stakeholders & - IRIEEZ T HMER - AEE BT
and the Group’s business operations. Based on the findings I TNRIEBEMAIFERRZE -

of the materiality assessment, the Group has determined the
following to be the most pertinent sustainability issues:

Resource

. Management
Occupational Health

and Safety
BXERLZE

(Energy, Water Anti-Corruption
and Waste) REB
BRER (LR
KRN RED)

Protecting
Product and

Service Quality
Management

2 N AR

mEEE

Site Impact on

Local Communities

T HE i
HENTE

Corporate
Governance and
Compliance

EERERNAR

Transparent and
Fair Procurement
Practices
BEA KR
REBIE B

Human Rights
(Child and
Forced Labour)
REEAE
(BT REHI%T)

Climate Change
RIREE

BIERERAT

Employment
Practices

REED

Customer Safety,

Engagement
and Satisfaction
BEFLZE -

Employee
Training and

Development

BB MR

F432023/2024
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The Group will continue to improve its reporting process when & RREBUIKRERFEF EZEHEER -
there are relevant updates on methodologies of processing SEBFERSHHZERE -
data and disclosures in future.

Materiality Matrix
EEMERE

Histh BN E
(TS
®

Impact on the Stakeholders

0 Occupational Health and Safety e Product and Service Quality Management @ Project Management/E-Commerce Operations
WEREFRL S EmkREnEER and Material Usage
HRER ETRBEBRMEER
Employment Practices Customer Safety, Engagement and Satisfaction Site Environmental Impact
® LHws ® Crrr TR © LEige
e Employee Training and Development m Ultimate Customers’ and Users’ Health and Safety @ Green Office
1B B IFFI B R BREFLAFPRERZ S BEPNE
Diversity and Equal Opportunity Supplier and Subcontractor Engagement Climate Change
o Sl kT ERE ® HERE LD BEr2 8 ® faksid
9 Protecting Human Rights @ Supplier and Subcontractor’'s Environmental @ Community Investment and Engagement
(Child and Forced Labour) and Social Responsibility HERERSH
IRIEARE(ET K& T) HEBEAEBNRERLERE
e Corporate Governance and @ Transparent and Fair Procurement Practices @ Site Impact on Local Communities
Compliance B R A TEREEED ML E it R e
BERERRAR
e Anti-Corruption @ Air and Noise missions Control Environmental
RE&ES and Social Responsibility
BEREREHREHRERMEEE
@ Confidentiality and Data Privacy @ Resource Management (Energy, Water and Waste)
RE R BBELE ERER(BR - NRREED)
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group endeavours to embed an environmentally
responsible mind-set in our culture and sustainable practices
in our operations. The Group's subsidiaries have implemented
environmental management systems and energy management
systems, which have been certified to comply with the standards
required under:

e |SO 14001:2015 (Environmental Management System)
e [SO 50001:2018 (Energy Management System)

The Group also complies with BEAM Plus for New Buildings
Version 1.2 and implements the recommended environmental
mitigation measures on site during the construction phase.
We support the sub-contractors to demonstrate compliance of
required standards and as required by the Architect with a goal
to attain the BEAM Plus Certification.

Environmental Management

The Group's environmental policy demonstrates its unwavering
commitment to safeguarding the environment for the
betterment of our planet. We place the utmost importance on
upholding our stringent standards for environmental protection,
ensuring the satisfaction of all our stakeholders. Specifically, our
environmental policy is focused on:

e complying with applicable legal requirements and other
rules and regulations;

e preventing pollution, reducing waste and minimising the
consumption of resources;

e educating, training and motivating employees to carry out
tasks in an environmentally responsible manner;

e encouraging environmental protection among suppliers and
subcontractors; and

® integrating environmental consideration into the planning
and construction process.

BRI HEREREE

REEM

AEBBNONKBHRFEEENESBARI
PIRSUERRPIEETWAIREER - A%
MERREBERRREEERARNMERER

A ZERBRCEREFFEUTHRER
P

e |SO 14001:2015RBE B ELT)
e |SO 50001:2018(RERE R &%)

AEE T ASERFEEEI 20 I
R THEEREMREEZRNRRTZET R
B o BAISIS D BB T MRS R
SKHIRE - BSREBARZRTAENEIR

REEE

AEBENRRBRRIRE BN REHILH
RIBMAER - RASEERERFRFIBREDN
RRBENERAEFNDEME - LEX
T BFIRERIBHEREER ¢

o EBSTEMAEMTE N REMSAIM
BBl

o MEBER - BIEDEEEREKER
HFE

o HE  BHIIRBBEENERREEME
F T R T

o HHEBEEOBEEEERREH K

o HRILBEBRTHMAREEE -
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Driven by our commitment to continual environmental
improvements, we ensure that our environmental policies are
regularly communicated to all staff members, subcontractors,
and suppliers within the Group. This helps to foster a
shared understanding and collective responsibility towards

environmental stewardship.

Environmental Management Plan (EMP)

The implementation of the Group's Environmental Management
Plan (EMP) has enabled us to make tangible progress in
reducing environmental pollution. This plan also ensures our
ongoing compliance with environmental policies, as well as
all relevant legal and contractual environmental requirements.
The EMP focuses on the mitigation and management of the
following environmental impacts arising from the works:

e Air quality impact;

e Noise impact;

e Water quality impact;
e  Waste impact.

Targeting to minimize the environmental impacts during our
operations, the WECON Construction & Engineering Ltd. and
subcontractors shall implement mitigation measures according
to the EMP.

82 WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024

ERMEFERERENAENES T - ]
PR EHRALAEBEANAEET - DB
Kt EBEERMNRRRER - 56 BRME
EHIRFEEENHKRIRRNEREE -

8

SEEGSREEETE)

=
AEERFEEEAECGRREEEENE
it - ERFERDRESRT MBS ERE
& o BEA B TMRARRMFEETREBR
ARFBHRBENERMEORRENL - RR
EEFTESHHRNTRMEEA TR IRREES

BT -

PR, B/ 48R .
s ZTEREXRTE:
=Rl = -

e IRERE

o KEFE;
BENFE -

ARTERFNEEHRENZERERE -
BIZEERARLDEEARBREEE
AEIERT EA R o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Site Environmental Committee (SEC)

Site Environmental Committee ("SEC”) is established at project
site, depending on actual circumstance, to oversee all the
environmental-related matters. The organisation chart is as
follow.

Contractor
Project Manager

AGERIR B K8

B HERERHE

ITHERFREES(IHRREES)
RTEEBRIER » NEBNRIEB AR T ib
RREZES([ITHBRREES )  LAEEH
BRBERBET - AEBZEBEWT -

General Foreman
BET

Environmental Officer

RIREME

The Group has appointed an Environmental Officer who is
responsible for preparing, implementing, and regularly updating
the EMP. Any environmental issues are directly reported to
the Project Manager, and relevant environmental information —
such as mitigation measures, work procedures, training plans,
and emergency protocols — is disseminated to our site staff
through various channels, including board notices, emails, and
internal circulars. The SEC meeting is held regularly to discuss
the recent site environmental issues such as environmental
management plan, inspection items, housekeeping, mosquito
control, complaints, non-compliance, major findings and other
project related environmental issues.

Performance Monitoring and Auditing

To ensure that the environmental performance of our project
sites meets the necessary standards and remains in full
compliance with the contractual requirements and the EMP,
weekly environmental inspections are conducted at sites.
Additionally, environmental performance auditing is conducted
regularly to evaluate the effectiveness of the environmental
mitigation measures and to identify room for improvement.

Project Coordinator
HESE

Safety Officer

LETE

AEBERRRETITEERE  BEMEH
FHIRBEEEANE - HREMESERE
BTEEKE  WEBETRR  EBRAE

EETRREMNERE THMEBRTE
AR EF RS - TIERRF - 5l
FEIRERIERF) IHMRREZEEGTEHE
T8 AT RREHE - NIRRT
A KARIER R EWITHE K
FoTEREE  TEEHNAMIAR RS

RIFEMAE o

RBEERET

STERIE R WRNRRERAT A L ENZEE
FEENAaHNERMRRERTE - 88
WEHTHETRERS - 1IN REXRR
B S EHET  AHERBEREF RS
EVE R - R ZE A
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Promotion of Environmental Awareness

The Project Co-ordinator (PC) and Environmental Officer
(EO) are responsible for raising the awareness of relevant
environmental requirements as stipulated in the EMP
environmental legislation and the Contract to all key site staffs.
All site staff, including new hires, undergo comprehensive
environmental training that covers relevant and material topics.
These topics are also discussed during the Site Safety &
Environmental Committee meetings, which include:

e  Environmental Policy of WECON,;

e Environmental Management Plan;

e Environmental legislation relevant to site activities; and
e  Contractual requirements of the present project.

Complaint Handling Procedure

A clear and efficient complaint handling procedure is necessary
for responding to potential environmental complaints
efficiently. Such environmental complaints are referred to the
environmental officer for conducting an investigation and
subsequent analysis. Remedial measures are recommended to
the project manager if the complaint is related to the works. If
the investigation determines that the complaint is related to the
Group's operations, the respective on-site team shall implement
the recommended remedial measures. The complaint case can
only be closed once the effectiveness of the remedial actions
has been verified. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the
Group did not receive any significant environmental complaints
during the reporting period.

Emergency Response Plan

Given the nature of the Group's business operations, certain
unforeseen events may arise and result in environmental issues.
Therefore, the Group ensures that there are comprehensive
contingency plans established to deal with such situations which
includes emergency procedures for chemical spillage, typhoon
and heavy rainstorm and Contingency measure for failure of

wastewater treatment systems.
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Emissions Target and Objectives

Short-term
The environmental targets below are set for the existing
projects:

e 100% compliance with the air quality, noise, water quality
and waste management legislation;

e No exceedance of the air, noise and water limits or
complaint shall be received during the contract period;

e 100% of the waste to be sorted: soil, broken concrete
& bricks for reuse on site or for dumping at public fill
reception facilities, reinforcement bars/other recyclable
metal waste for collection by recycle companies, and
general refuse/packaging material/other non-inert waste for

disposal at landfills.

Long-term
In the long run, the Group targets to:

e Improve compliance with the legislation governing air
quality, noise, water quality and waste management

e  Control noise emission from the works

e Reduce waste generated and waste sent to disposal
grounds during the construction stage.

In order to achieve and secure a sustainable future, the
Group has set comprehensive emission reduction & resources
consumption target compared with the 2021/2022 baseline year,
and strive to achieve the following targets by 2026/2027:

e decrease air emission by 3%,

e decrease energy consumption per MWh of square feet by
3%;

i decrease water consumption per approximate tonne of
employee by 3%; and

e  decrease waste disposal by 3%.

B HERERHE

FREBEEREMN

FZHY
ATHRBERZRREBERE MK

o 100%EFTERER  BE  KEREY
EEADER

s MNAEKWHME TEREBHZER B MK
B EREESIREIRE

o 100%MEYK DR - T BRAKEA
EIR D A IRZ W) T8 - BORME
T RIER - AEKRAFWENRLS, A
R AR EEYIA RN EERZEN
—AREEY),BEME B IEEILREY

RA
REME » AEEWBRFWT :

e MEEBFEREER BT - KEREY
EIBEER

o IEHIZRBEIRMERE

e BAREIHHMELENEYRETERE
IBRIEEY) o

AERMERAUFEREAREK - KEEI

2021/ 20224F B EGFE H]F 2 MR R B

MERHEFEBIZ - BUH2026 /2027 4F #i

BEHRNTERE:

o ERPBURD3%
o BIERFITROEEREEMRK3I%

o BHWEBRKERLDI% &

o EMERERII% -
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Emissions

The Group’s project sites are subject to certain environmental
requirements pursuant to the laws in Hong Kong such as Air
Pollution Control Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance, Water
Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance, Public
Health and Municipal Services Ordinance, Environmental Impact
Assessment Ordinance, Dumping at Sea Ordinance and other
related environmental ordinances and regulations.

The Group ensures its compliance with relevant laws and
regulations through measures described in the following
sections.

Air Pollutant Emissions

The Group's air pollutant emissions generated from various
sources, including but not limited to generators onsite, vehicles,
dust from the construction activities and material transportation.

The total air pollutant emissions were 22.7 kg in 2023/2024,
representing a decrease of approximately 12%, as compared
to last year. The decrease of Nitrogen Oxide (“NOx") was
attributed to the reduced consumption of fuel of the Group’s

23567
REBRIE B 1 BAETIREFEEDNE
TIREME  WERSREHED - BFE
BHERBY « AOSRE BRG] - BEMEE RS -
NBREERTBURD - RIRFEFA RG] -
8 LRI R B AR RR R IR R AR

ol

REBRERELE BT EE PR EE T
PRI N

ZRSRMBE R

AEBENZRSRMIRESERIREL
BIEETRNBREER  9E  BEEY
EERIKE R YEHER o

2023 /20244 » RIS R Y BEREE A

27T BEFRLO12% RELED
(TE| DR R BN RS MEATTRE

BEARAD - BEUREEMTEMEDBRR P

motor vehicles due to the reduced travelling distance during the 2+ HEEERE FUEE - TREIIILET
reporting period have been included for disclosure. The table NZATE|DMZE RS2 YAALE
below sets forth the breakdown of air pollutants by category
and premise:
2023/2024 2022/2023
Air Pollutant Emissions’ ERT R 2023/ 2024% 2022 / 2023%F
Kg Kg
Fr Fr
NOx REW=E 20.0 23.2
Sulphur Oxides? (SOx) et (a2 1.2 1.0
PM FENYE 1.5 1.7
Total #st 22.7 25.9
! The data covers emissions from diesel, petrol and towngas consumption only. It is ! ZEBERELH  URA LR REEENTER - HiR
estimated based on “How 1o prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance e 8 B 2 ) R BR R E A
on Environmental KPls” published by the Stock Exchanae of Hong Kong and the latest 7 fin2 : R R NRIBIE 15 1 LR B b 2
sustainability report published by The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited. HERARA Tﬁ*ﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁi%ﬁ"ﬁ%%?ﬂ: WEMRE -
2 The emissions of SOx from the stationary source of sites during the reporting period 2 BIERE AR R E T RRNRE/ IS E -

was included.
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Preventive and mitigation measures are implemented at project BB MR EHEAITEN RBEREELT

sites as follows:

Air Emissions

Preventive/Mitigation Measures

BESR BE R Wb R ERE
Dust e Watering dusty exposed areas, stockpiled materials or cover with tarpaulin sheets
RE HAESER - EEDHERBI RS

Gaseous emissions

REEHEIN

Odour
82X

Vehicle speed is limited to 8 km/h

BIRFRHITES AR /N

A wheel washing facility is provided at the site entrance
AR A ORISR

Pave the area with concrete, bituminous material or hardcore, where vehicle
washing takes place and the road between the washing facilities and the exit
point

LRI B ROB R R B O B 2 MHER I ROB R L - ES MR skEn
Construct a hoarding with a height of 2.4 m or above
FE—{l®2.4K3 A EH)ER

Power-off the idling vehicles/powered mechanical equipment

HMEEER, HBRENE

Avoid open burning of solid waste on site

e AR BR R IR B RS RE )

Avoid using ozone depleting equipment such as fire extinguishers and
substances

R AR A 255 REVEFER M R E
Ultra-low sulphur diesel is used as a fuel of powered mechanical equipment

BIERSOH B IERBRBHNER

Carry out vehicle maintenance properly to prevent excessive discharge of
exhaust fumes and noises

ZEITERRE LA ERARRS
Dlscharge the sewage of site toilets and similar into a foul sewer, a septic tank or
a soak away system

HERR T RIS )57k 2)57K38 ~ (LB UBKER
Avoid water from stagnating to reduce emission of odorous gases and attraction
of mosquitoes

ERIEIK - DUR D RSB 5| =408
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A Materials covered with tarpaulin sheets

RpIkmEEYH

A Designated wheel washing area at site
A AR ER ST 15 7E #n BB L IR
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Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Responding to the growing community concerns around
greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions, climate change, and other
related issues, the Group has been monitoring and reporting its
GHG emissions annually through our ESG report. The primary
sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are from the use of
diesel for generators, consumption of petrol for vehicles, and
the utilization of electricity and towngas.

BRI HEREREE

BERBCRERE)HRK

AEAEREAERE(BRERE DM
RIRE R EMBEAMENRTARRES
AEBSFERIIRR HEREIREEE
MERBERBIN - AEEREREHEM
FERIRNBERMSHERE - REAHE
B URFEABNNMER -

2023/2024 2022/2023

GHG Emissions?® BERBHENR 2023 20245 2022 20234
tonnes tonnes

CO2-equivalent CO2-equivalent

WM-_F{mEE M-S{mE2

Scope 1 Emissions* g E—HmE 201.1 167.5
Scope 2 Emissions® EE PN ES 4431 675.3
Scope 3 Emissions? EE =g Ee 47.5 35.1
Total Emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) HHENE(EE- - —R=) 691.7 877.9
Intensity (per million HK$ revenue)’ ZE(BEEBTWE) 0.6 1.0

The calculation of GHG emissions is made reference to the Guidelines to Account for
and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong published by the Environmental
Protection Department, and the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, the
latest sustainability reports published by the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, Hong
Kong Electric Investment and The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, Water
Supplies Department and Drainage Services Department.

4 Scope 1: The direct emissions from the business operations owned or controlled by the
Group, including the emission from the Group's vehicle fleet and the generators used
in project sites.

5 Scope 2: The "indirect energy” emissions from the internal purchased electricity
consumption by the Group.

o Scope 3: All other indirect emissions that occur outside the Group, including both
upstream and downstream emissions, including the emissions due to electricity used
for freshwater processing by the Water Services Department and electricity used for
sewage processing by the Drainage Services Department.

/ The Group's annual revenue is approximately HK$1,160.4 million in 2023/2024 (2022/2023:
HK$869.0 million).

7

BERBIMENFE2EREREELMETIEER
e EEREY (M  FEARAMR)WREREBH
BRBERHOZEMBREES]) - FEENERAA - B
BHEERBEPERRERAF  KBEERREBEE
MrE R AT AR RIS

EO[E — R B UEA S HI A0 RIS E R BB
%Ezﬁxﬁ%&lﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ HAOBERL

= NEEABEEREL N FRER PR

E=  REBIMBERMAEMERIR . BEL
WX TR - BREKBEBREIRKKNENARR
&R KHE N PTELEMPER

42023 / 20244 « REEFE WL A1,1604E BB
(2022 /20234 : 869.0EEHETT) °
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2023/24 GHG Emissions by Scopes

2023/ 24 F1RH E & 5

VR = RS HER

® Scope 1
FE—

® Scope 2
#HE_—

The Group’'s GHG inventory during the reporting period
primarily consists of Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions, consistent
with the previous year. Scope 1 emissions, which encompass
GHG emissions from the consumption of petrol, diesel, and
towngas, account for approximately 29% (2022/2023: 19%) of
the total GHG emissions. Scope 2 emissions, include GHG
emissions primarily resulting from electricity and towngas
purchased, account for approximately 64% (2022/2023: 77%) of
the total GHG emissions.

The total GHG emissions and its intensity were 691.7 (2022/2023:
877.9) tonnes CO2-equivalent (tonnes CO2-e) and 0.6 (2022/2023:
1.0) tonnes CO2-e per million HK$ revenue respectively
in 2023/2024. The total GHG emissions decreased by
approximately 21%, as compared to last year, due to decrease
in energy consumption of electricity during the reporting
period.

The Group will continue to assess record and disclose its GHG
emissions annually.
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Waste Management

The Group's materiality assessment has identified waste
management as one of the most critical environmental
issues. Our stakeholders have voiced concerns regarding
the level of progress we have made in reducing waste. The
Group recognises that waste generation is part and parcel
of our business due to the operations such as site clearance,
excavation works, and construction and fitting out works. The
stakeholder feedback has underscored the importance for
the Group to mitigate its environmental impacts by adopting
appropriate waste reduction and recycling measures. These
include prioritizing the avoidance and minimization of waste
generation, reusing materials, as well as recovering and
recycling construction and general wastes. The Group has
established Waste Management Plan and Construction Sites
Working Guidelines to workers as guidance to reduce the
generation of non-hazardous wastes. To further strengthen
our waste reduction efforts, we have implemented measures
to consistently remind our employees to conserve paper
usage. The Group applies for waste disposal licenses for
each construction project and discards non-hazardous wastes
generated into the designated landfills. Waste management
measures are also briefed and to all employees during
the Group's environmental trainings. Mitigation measures
implemented at project sites are as follows.

Waste Type

e BB E

BRI HEREREE

BEYEE

AEENER T EESENEERM SR
FARHIREREZ — - LAWK EHRK
PMERLEY T RGN ERKREL - &
REMN2EREHRFBIE  BWITE - A
FRERKETRS  AREEHIENE
ERBMNER LEEM#ER - HHENE
ROBRETAEEALZFEBRIVEE K
BMEEMEIIE B R E S RBTE - tER
EEEELEEREREBEERIEMES
NP R DA B B4 K B 1R SRS SR A0 — AR R
e AEBEE /ST ABIEEYEETE M
R TIFRES  (FRRBDEEEMELNE
3l o R — F IR FIEIR D BRI B S
B REUE RIS 2 IR EE R B AN O AL - X
SESEBEZRAEHFENREMR - I
5 P EE A O S R BE W) R B4R E RO R
[ o EYERERTERASENREE
RRAMAREN A - 18 BB BT RIS
MBI e

Treatment Approach

General refuse, including office wastes, food wastes and  ®

other packaging wastes

—REEY  BRERLEEY  BRREGCOREY

Construction wastes including both inert (e.g. rock,

rubble, boulder, earth, soil) and non-inert (e.g. bamboo

and timber, paper, and other organic wastes)
BERY SEBEHMER -BA-ER-EL -LBR
FEEM (T FRAM » HRAREMEHED)

Variety recycling bins are provided to collect paper,
plastic for waste segregation, and other wastes
separately

RED BB A D FR SRR - ZREREY DB R HEM
REY)

Reuse and recycle construction wastes, as much as
practicable

RALBENARBRREEEY

Replace timber with metal for site hoarding formwork
and scaffolding

LA B8 B AR A 3 A2 [E AR AR 48 R M 42
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Waste Type

BEyEE BT %

Treatment Approach

Chemical wastes including spent lubrication oil and diesel

fE2EY - SFECEREE RN

Properly store chemical waste in a designated
container/storage area

ZEFRICRBEYNIEENTRFHE

o Employ a licensed chemical waste collector to collect

and dispose of chemical waste

B EEDRERREREE(CEREY

2023/2024 2022/2023
Waste =37 2023 2024%F 2022 / 2023F
tonnes tonnes
7] U]

General refuse, inert and non-inert construction wastes —fgEEY) « 1514 K IEE
EEEREY) 13,270.4 17,022.8
Total non-hazardous wastes8 BMERBEYHES 13,270.4 17,022.8
Intensity (per million HK$ revenue)’ RE(SEEBTWE) 11.4 19.6

The total amount of waste was 13,270.4 tonnes, and its intensity
was 11.4 tonnes per million HK$ revenue in 2023/2024. With
the Group's persistent effort on waste reduction, the total
waste amount decreased by approximately 22%. Meanwhile, its
intensity was decreased by 42% due to the significant increase
in its revenue from approximately HK$869.0 million in 2022/2023
to approximately HK$1,160.4 million in 2023/2024.

The Group was not aware of any significant amount of
hazardous wastes generated in the course of our operation in
the project sites and the office. Looking ahead, the Group will
continue to refine and enhance its waste reduction measures,
and will provide relevant disclosures on the progress made,
where appropriate.

8 It includes general refuse, construction wastes.
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Wastewater Treatment
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BKEE

The Group's operations, such as pre-drilling works, bored piling, BEKAAREBEZEFHTBELEBHFERTE - #E1L
and wheel washing activities, generate wastewater. To prevent HBILRERWRELZEHFESE - REBEK
contamination and blockage of public drains and sewers, the BUEEREMEAE®5ERIEERNEIKER

Group has implemented appropriate measures: TIIKER -
Wastewater Type Treatment Approach
JEKARAE BRIE A
Construction activities e Wastewater would be treated properly by effluent treatment plant in order to
BEEH comply with the discharge criteria/requirements, as stated in WPCO license
FKEIEE B AN ERIBEK « LSR5 RE HIEGIFT AT 38 7t ) B g2/
RTE
e Cover open stockpiled material with tarpaulin sheets or similar fabric and peg
them down to the ground during rainstorms
725 R HA R A D 7k An SR U K1 78 2 B B R SERR MR (B 2 A 3t |
Site facilities e Manholes would be adequately covered and temporary sealed so as to prevent
ih B2 3 e silt, construction materials or debris being washed into drainage system
FOBEWERREERES - AR - BEM B B AR RS
Surface run-off e An adequate drainage system (e.g. temporary ditches, drainage channel,
HE R U-channels and drain pipes) is maintained to collect runoff

BIEZHORESG (NRRBR - #PKEE - UREBREDKEB) ARELR

Set up sedimentation basins or traps at temporary ditches or permanent
drainage channels

RERE B RIOKAKRER LB KB REE
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Noise Control

The construction activities carried out by the Group have the
potential to generate noise that may disrupt the surrounding
communities. Sources of this noise include the operation
of excavators and tower cranes, piling work, erection or
dismantling of scaffolding and formwork, and hammering.
Mitigating noise nuisance is also an important part of pollution
mitigation since many of our construction sites are located in
urban areas. Adhering to the Noise Control Ordinance, our
project sites have acquired construction noise permit before
operations commence. To mitigate the noise impact from
its operations, the Group has implemented several effective
methods, including:

e Use quiet plant or quality powered mechanical equipment
("QPME")

e Switch off equipment when not in use to eliminate noise
generation by idling machine

e Use facilities in good maintenance condition and provide
regular maintenance to powered mechanical equipment

e Strive to avoid noisy operations taking place at noise
sensitive areas

e Cover powered mechanical equipment with acoustic
material/shield to reduce noise impact when exceeding the
noise limit

e Erect substantial noise barriers between the Noise Sensitive
Receiver (NSR) and the workplace to reduce the noise
generated during the hacking works

e Erect noise barriers to surround the work place before
demolition works commenced, the sound reduction
fabric and noise absorbing sponge will be hitched on the
hoarding to absorbed the noise emission

e Conduct noise monitoring regularly

) Separate operations of construction plants where
practicable
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A Noise absorbing sponge
=i

A  Noise barriers hang on the hoarding
RERE RS RE
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Use of Resources

The Group's operations involve the significant consumption of
resources, including energy, water, and construction materials.
Recognising the importance of reducing resource usage, as
outlined in the Group’s Environmental Policy, the Group has
implemented relevant measures to minimize the potential
for energy wastage. On top of adopting the ISO 50001:2018
(Energy Management System) Standard, energy consumption
is also controlled through administrative measures such as
switching off electrical appliances during non-business hours.
The Group's operations consume electricity and fuel for both
office and project site activities, including for vehicles and on-
site generators. However, the Group’s business activities do not
involve the consumption of packaging materials.

BERERA

AEBEMNEESIRRNEZERBER Bk
R KRBEME - ZRIIAEEIRIBECR

FEREBLEREANEEZN A5EEE
MeAR AR HELAURK BETROR B MY A BEME © BREK
FA1SO 50001:2018 (BEJRE T2 R4t ) IR AN
RNEBE B B1TEIE e (AR IEE X5 FH A

Ees) EHIRERERE - AREREERMBA
=RIEBMBEEHAE ) AR - BIEE

WML BREER - AT - ARENXRTES
WS KB BRM L

2023/2024 2022/2023
Energy Consumption BERHAE 2023 / 2024% 2022 / 2023%
MWh MWh
B I LB
Direct Energy Consumption HiEmRERE
Fossil Fuel Energy Consumption? L BEBRE B IR E FE° 772.4 639.2
Indirect Energy Consumption R REIRUR #E
Purchased Energy Consumption® BBABLREER" 976.0 1,299.5
Total Energy Consumption BRERERE 1,748.4 1,938.7
Intensity (per million HKD revenue)’ ZE(BEEBTRR) 1.5 2.2

It includes the energy consumption from the fuel uses of Group’s vehicles and
generators.

o It includes the energy consumption from the purchased electricity and towngas of the
Group.
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During the reporting period, the total energy consumption and
its intensity were 1,748.4 MWh and 1.5 MWh per million HK$
revenue respectively. The total energy consumption and its
intensity decreased by approximately 10% and 32% respectively,
as compared to last year. The increase in fossil fuel energy
consumption was mainly due to the fact that more activities
required fossil fuel trunks during the reporting period.

RIE - HERERRE

RFEHE - BEEREERERED A
17884 K R B EE B TR EISKE
Fr o BRERBRELREZE D RREFRIL
10%5%32% - {b AR KL BETRBREE M H EE
AR EHRB2CARRAEREENIE M -

A Energy saving reminder

EHIREIREE R 55

During the reporting period, the Group obtained water from
third-party suppliers, and was not aware of any issues in
sourcing water that was suitable for our operational needs. In
order to reduce the use of freshwater, the Group encourages
the reuse and recycling of wastewater at project sites; for
example, the treated wastewater is reused for dust suppression
and washing vehicles.

ATREER - AEERE = H HERERUK
ﬁ i B EE AR E B HIKERE - 3
W ELIREIEIRE o BB DAKER - K
SESETIEE R BANAMBREREK
ANAS BR TR ) BE /K AT B A R AN EE KA BB o
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2023/2024 2022/2023

Water Consumption'’ Akm 2023 2024%F 2022 / 2023F
m? m3

MK K

Water Consumption RAkE 19,508.0 9,878.9
Intensity (per million HK$ revenue)’ ZE(BEEBTWER) 16.8 11.4

During the reporting period, the Group recognised a substantial
increase in total water consumption, as compared to last year.
This was attributed to the increase in the construction area of
projects during the reporting period.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue refining measures and
evaluate the related results achieved if applicable.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group views sustainability as essential to driving operational
excellence. As such, the Group places significant emphasis on
protecting the environment and conserving natural resources.
The Group’s subsidiaries have implemented environmental
management systems and energy management systems, which
have been certified to comply with the standards required
under: ISO 14001:2015 (Environmental Management System)
and ISO 50001:2018 (Energy Management System) respectively.
To avoid any adverse impact on the environment and natural
resources, the Group ensures that its project sites are located in
areas that are not ecologically sensitive. Additionally, the Group
has established emergency response plans to address potential
issues such as chemical spills, adverse weather conditions, and
the failure of wastewater treatment systems, in order to prevent
problems caused by such emergencies. Nevertheless, the
Group has identified potential environmental impacts of related
business activities as follows.

n It includes the water consumption on the project sites and offices.
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Environmental Impacts
REZE
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Activity/Process
EEBR

Management Approach
EEE

Air and noise pollution, smog

ZRRBREFTR BB

Degradation of aquatic habitat and
drinking water supply
EFERRRERKAKEEEL

Soil and groundwater contamination

TER T KSR

Global warming and air pollution

2HRBELARERTHR

Depletion of natural resources

RRE RS

Machinery operations
MR 1E
Construction works
BETR

Discharge of wastewater

BEZKBEIN

Spillage and leaks from machinery engine e

MR B AR FR

Power supply
HE

Office operations
WAEEE
Construction works
BETRE

The Group is committed to introducing additional measures to

minimize the potential environmental impacts of its operations

on the environment and natural resources. The details of action

taken were illustrated in the sections headed “Emissions” and

“"Use of Resources”.

Emission sources
controls

HERE 2

Emission sources
controls

PERE

Preventive controls
Tak

Impact mitigation
controls
BRI

Resource utilisation

BIRMA

Resource utilisation

BIRFIA

AEEBRNRRE ZEEEREESEHIR

BRFREREEREYE -

B BEFTERER

TTEIM R IBIRI HE ) | & [ BIR(E R I e

[

;)l'Lo

BIERERAT

F432023/2024 99



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERRE

Climate Change

Climate change is one of the single biggest health threats
facing humanity. Climate impacts are already harming health,
through air pollution, disease, extreme weather events, forced
displacement, starvation and poor nutrition in places where
food is inadequate. Logistics and supply chains are particularly
vulnerable. Heavy rainfall, rising tides and sea levels or
floods can cause serious damage to assets such as buildings,
warehouses, manufacturing plants and goods in storage,
resulting in financial losses. To tackle one of the most significant
global risks, ambitious, rapid, and collaborative action will be
required to make progress in the issue. Therefore, the Group
believes that all stakeholders should work collectively to
address climate change. Despite the obstacles faced due to the
pandemic in recent years, we remain constantly committed to

our goal of decarbonisation.

In response to the Paris Agreement, the Hong Kong
Government issued the “Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan”,
and formulated various plans and actions, setting out the
vision of "Zero-carbon Emissions, Liveable City, Sustainable
Development". The government has determined to set medium-
term goal as halving Hong Kong's total carbon emissions from
2005 levels before 2035. Such situations may present potential
impacts and opportunities for the Group and regular reviews of

climate change issues are therefore extremely vital.

The Group essentially plans to respond to local government
initiatives and be aligned to the local government’s emission
reduction requirements. We aim to reduce GHG emissions by
around 3% by 2027 and ensure the Group’'s GHG emissions
will comply with the local requirements on or before 2030.
Our target is to achieve carbon neutrality by 2050 in Hong
Kong region. We are committed to continuously improving
our efficiency in the use of resources as well as protecting
the environment in all aspects. We also strive to seize every
opportunity to accelerate the transformation and make the
Group smarter and more environmentally friendly to be resilient
to the current climate change conditions.
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Action on Climate Change
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P SRIR BT

Action responding to climate change is embedded in the EBHREEHNITHERNANEBEMNERE
Group's business strategy and is reflected in its governance &% ' JIERAEAREERIZ - U TR
and management processes. The index table below outlines the  FBEFIAEE R ERFEFRIEELEES
core elements of the Group’s response to the climate change SKEJZLEZ= o

disclosure requirements in this Report.

Core element

BNER

The Group’s response

REENELHER

Governance
=0

Strategy
0

Risk Management

[ b

Metrics and Targets
EERER

The Group has established an ESG Working Group that meets regularly to
discuss relevant topics. Additionally, the Group has integrated ESG, including
climate-related issues, into its corporate decision-making processes.
AEBEKRIRE S RERTIENE - YEMBMSHTHBMEHERE - 1o K
SEEHERRRARZRERNNRET - £ B REBMALERFRE -

The Board and ESG Working Group meets regularly and identified related risks
in the short (0-1 year), medium (5 years), long (over 5 years), as well as possible
opportunities for the Group’s business. The Group implements and reviews
corresponding measures to assess their effectiveness in minimizing environmental
impacts.

ERgHRE HEREAIENMEATHARESE  BAREHOR1F) - hH(G
F) - REI(SF LA L) BRERR - ARAEEEB AR #EE - AEEERILIR
SABREEE - U ERE RO EHREZENERE -

The Board is focused on addressing ESG risks as part of the Group's
strategic priorities, climate-related risks are incorporated into the Group's
risk management framework. This includes preparing the organization for the
transition to a low-carbon economy and setting up measures to manage physical
climate risks that may impact the Group's operations.

BEERBNNERARE  HaRERRRERTEERBERN—S - LHRIE
HERRAAREERREIRIER - EEEERDEZR S BRIEREEE M EE
WHIERERER A BEREEEENERBRIRRER -

The Group has been measuring and reporting the GHG emissions (Scope 1,2
and 3). Emission reduction and resources consumption targets were set to
be achieved before 2026/2027. Please refer to section “Emission Target and
Obijectives” for further details.

FEB-BFSRREAEREHN(BE— k=) - BHEREREEBEFEER
2026/2027FFIEBE - BAFIEF2HMIHERNERERBEM | —H -
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It is imperative that we assess its potential climate related

risks and explore possible opportunities for our business. The

following transition and physical risks are discussed in the

sections below.

Risks
s

FHEEE R XA AR
%Tﬁzﬂiﬁﬁﬁ HEEEYIME - T8

2 MRR B EB B
ERERS
EL/(Tﬁﬁﬁqj nTuFﬁi °©

Opportunities
s

Short term
(0 - 1 year)

EH
(0Z1%)

Medium term
(5 years)

H
5% (5%)

Physical risks from extreme weather events
such as heavy precipitation and severe
typhoon, causing the destruction of operation
facilities and equipment
Xéﬁfﬁ&ﬁﬂaﬂ—rﬁiﬁiﬁ$1¢5_% BRI
MEREHIEN B ER

Securing the skills and capability required to
implement climate strategy

TR ERE b SR IR SR B P 7 B0 B2 B

Transition risk — risk of the shlftlng of client
investment preferences, leading to a potential
reduction of revenue to our business

operations
BERR-FPRERIAENER - FTEEEEH

B EFEEWNRD -

Transition risks — Increasingly stringent

environmental and climate-related standards
and legislations, having higher risks of
litigation

BERK - IRERREEBRENIER
% SEFRERES

Transition risks — Supply and demand for

I

certain commodities, products and services
may change as climate related risks and
opportunities are increasingly taken into
account

BERR -EERREERREEEAZZ I
A ETEG  EmRRBHOEKAIGEEREE
1t
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New services to help communities
decarbonise

B Bh At R R 80 #T AR 7%

Gain reputation as a low-carbon emission
organisation to cater to the environmental-
friendly customers
EREREREREENRE - JNBE
ES S

Technologies to enhance the performance

RIR

of operation (e.g.: the development of
DfMA and the implementation of BIM
technology can shorten construction time,
improve working environment and site
safety, reduce environment impact, improve
construction quality as well as enhance
resources and project management) and
energy efficiency

RAEERE (W0 - ERARFNEREER
BEEEBEBENAIHEEEINME ST
f?faiﬁﬁliﬂﬁﬁ BORBZE NERE
HFEE  UREZERREEEE) KRR
RE) R

Transitioning to low carbon economy market
to meet government decarbonisation
targets

AR AR AS B T 5 8 A DA B IR BURPRLER B 13
Opportunities arising from transition
enablers

AR RTROKSE
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Risks
BB

BRI HEREREE

Opportunities
s

Medium to long
term (5+ years)

IR
(5FBLE)

Physical risks — workers are more likely to
suffer from heat stroke due to increase in
global temperature, insurance premium might
increase

FRER -BRERAALHA  TAFSHKE
KEhN - frig B 7R AT B A A

Physical risks — rising sea levels may cause
disruption to relevant operations impacting
the Group’s productivity

BREAR —SFE s BRMERXIE -
EMTEREENEEND

Transition risks — Potential new regulations and
policies, incurring higher costs for the Group's
business transition

B A — BEEFER RBGE
ERIERE BHRAR

Transition risks — Development and use of

RS SLIES

emerging technologies may increase the
operational costs, and reduce the Group's
competitiveness

B L — T Ll e B 8 e R R R BE & A N
BRA - WK SEER ST

Transition risks — the Group's reputation may
be impacted due to changing customer or
community perceptions of said the Group’s
contribution to or detraction from the
transition to a lower-carbon economy
BERR-BARNEFPRHEHAEENBERE
BT AN ERMSURE 2 BEEERE - K&
EmEEIEeRTE

Transition risks — The Group may not be
able to keep up with the trend of digital
transformation, which may impact the Group's
business performance

@ERR - ANEE AR FEIS (L EA NS
T MR EARENEBRE

Physical climate risks can potentially damage the Group's assets

or directly interrupt our service delivery. The Group has already

set up a number of measures in place to enhance the reliance

of its operations, including contingency plan for extreme

weather or emergency conditions that cover our project sites.

Chemical spillage, typhoon, heavy rainstorm and fire are likely

to cause environmental problems.

e Provide better working environment to
workers and review their working hours,
with better working conditions to facilitate
the recruitment of workers
RIARHEENTIERERBRENT
TERY B - SO ER (S8 (£ 80 TARE IR (2 3E T A
B

e Transitioning to low carbon economy market
to meet government decarbonisation
targets
MEHRAS I T 5 8 8 A B IR BUT R B 12

e Opportunities arising from transition
enablers
BAVER R R RS

e To build up reputation as a eco-friendly
pioneer in the industry and build up
BUTHERREENEE

e To work as a pioneer in the industry to
enhance internal communication: project
progress monitoring by utilising mobile
application for the establishment of
communication platform
PR ARATERSESE - ISR AEDER - MIARE
ARARBRTA  HLERIAREER

e Full utilisation of Technologies which
enhance environmental friendliness of
operations

ZEEAEREERFRERRHR

ERRRERIEEREASENEENE
EEELBMNRB RN - AEREEHEZ A
a2 ENE - BIERERB B
Him KRR BB RN RS - (EE5
i B - BREIRASARA A REE BRI
FIEIEJEL; ©
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Transition risks can potentially increase the operational costs
and legal risk of the Group due to change of policy, technology
development, digitalisation, relevant risk affected to supply
and demand, and reputation due to public perceptions. The
Group has already identified the relevant risks and will continue
to monitor the market and policy updates. The Group has also
planned to invest according to the market needs and take this
as an opportunity for long term development.

Over the years, a series of measures has been adopted to put
in place along the Group's value chain helping the Group to
be resilient to extreme climate events. These measures are
deployed for different geographies, taking into account the
asset types, locations and relevancy. They are summarised in
the table below:

Relevant part of the value chain  Relevant measures

HRBERE(L - RIER - BB - ZHK
TENEHERRAMEARBEAZENR
2 BERERE AT FELE AN SR B i) ' E R AR
FOERRER o AEEE #5808 R I A S
BERMERBRRHER - AEEITRCE
ZREMSFRETREL R RRYIER
FYHIE o

ZENR - AEEDREBEES RN —
RIEEH A EBETR R RIREM o A
SEKEREERR LERE@EME - T
TR EHEZERBE - TR B@RE
iii

BEERED MR ERE b
Supply chain Diversify materials supplies from multiple suppliers, sources and countries
e MZEHRRER - RN EREREAREM B HEER
Operation Monitor and inspect assets regularly:
EiE EHERLREEE
—  Maintain a contingency plan for all project sites’ facilities
RFEIR R R RGeS
To address extreme heat and increased temperature:
FEH R HOR BSROR BT
- Maintain cooling equipment in good conditions
RIFI2 AR BRI R AR RS
—  Ensure reasonable working hours and safe working environment for workers to
achieve potentially lower insurance rates
RETANTESBARRTHERRS  NEDEERENRRER
- Boost drinking fountains for employees and workers
REB M T ABINEUKEEE
To address the risk of water shortage and drought:
FES R N R
- To maintain adequate water tank(s) in facilities
TR HME AR B S 7K AE
- Purchase drinking water with sufficient storage
BB LT R MR AR
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Relevant part of the value chain

EEEEREID
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Relevant measures

iElezR i

Investing Transition Enablers

To address flooding risks:
SR A

Construct protection walls for facilities and run-off water storage

AR MR N RK TR E

Deploy anti-flooding measures suitable for the assets, including drainage
systems, flood gates and flood barriers, if necessary
EVERREEIESENOIEER - IEHKEL - BrtR Rt RE

Assemble additional coverage with tarps, grass planting and drainage works to
avoid soil erosion if necessary
ELEREARHKM - BHE RBPKIIES

SHENEEEE - BRELRK

To enhance business continuity:

]

EBEEMN

Establish a typhoon response protocol and Emergency Response Team and
enhance internal communication to ensure smooth execution of contingency
plans

78 e XY U7 B A ST R/ N - I A58 P BB SR A R B MR 1T R AT I
Enable rapid construction of temporary masts that can shorten the restoration of
power supply through the employment of emergency restoration system
FBEAZSIWMERLS - REBHERSEE - 1M AEE HERERH

Enhance the communication capacity of customer services especially post-
incident customer communication

RARFRBBREN  BRRERBELERNTFER

REBHEFHRE

During the course of transforming into a low-carbon business,
the Group is reviewing on methods such as, replacing old fossil
fuels vehicles with electric vehicles ("EV"), adopting renewable
energy sources (i.e.: Photovoltaic on rooftop of sites) into
its business operations or purchasing more Quality Powered
Mechanical Equipment ("QPME") or quiet plants, to fulfil its

business needs and goals in the future.

Our Path to 2050

The Group is prepared to address the threats climate change
poses both to its business and to the communities that it serves.
The Group is determined to deliver and provide quality and
reliable services for its customers and the Group is fully aware
of the importance of environmental responsibility. The Group is
ready to raise the targets, wherever possible, to strengthen the
environmental protection measures at least every five years.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS
Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group recognises that employees are crucial to our
success. They are the driving force behind the execution of
our mission and play a vital role in our achievements. As the
business grows, the Group must establish sustainable human
capital to attract and retain talents. The Group strictly abides
by the Employment Ordinance, Employments’ Compensation
Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance, Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance, Discrimination Legislation Ordinance
and Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the "MPF Scheme”)
Ordinance. During the reporting period, to the best of
our Directors’ knowledge, the Group was not aware of any
significant non-compliance case in this regard. The Group has
established human resources management policy and handbook
(the “Employee Management Handbook"”), setting out the
details on remuneration, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, rest periods, diversity, equal opportunities and
anti-discrimination.

Remuneration, compensation and dismissal

With a view to attracting and retaining talents, the Group
offers a competitive remuneration package to employees.
This includes a base salary, performance-based bonuses,
overtime pay, and other cash incentives. In general, the Group
determines employee salaries based on each employee’s
education/technical qualifications, responsibilities, experiences,
performance and skills. The Group has implemented an annual
performance review system to assess employees. The outcomes
of these reviews serve as the basis for decisions regarding salary
adjustments, bonus awards, and promotions.

For employees who voluntarily resign, a written notice of
termination is required to be provided to the organisation.
Alternatively, the employee may opt to forgo the notice period
by providing payment in lieu of such notice. An exit interview
is conducted with the resigned employee to provide an
opportunity for the employee to discuss the working experience
with the Group. The feedback received is beneficial to the
human resources system, working environment and future

positioning of jobs.
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An employee may be summarily dismissed by the Group without
advance notice or payment in lieu if the employee in relation to
his/her employment has any misconduct or is guilty of fraud or
dishonesty or habitually neglects his/her duties.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group believes that efficiency, effectiveness and success
of the organisation depends primarily on the skills, abilities
and commitment of the employees who constitute the most
important asset of the organisation.

The philosophy of the Group is focused on attracting the
most qualified candidates who are aligned with our mission
and values. We strive to foster an environment that respects
and promotes excellence through diversity. The Group aims
to recruit the most suitable talents and to maintain a pool of
employees according to the human resources planning and
needs. Well-performing staff will be transferred and promoted
to fill our vacancies and provide them with the opportunities to
explore their better prospect in the Group.

The Group recognises the importance of development and
growth of employees. Performance appraisal is conducted
regularly to evaluate employees’ performance regarding
but not limited to safety, work attitude, technical skills, and

interpersonal skills.

Working hours and rest periods

The Group is committed to ensuring reasonable working hours
and adequate rest periods for its employees. All employees
are entitled to public or statutory holidays as announced in
The Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Gazette each year. In addition to those holidays, employees
are entitled but not limited to annual leave, sick leave,
compensation leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, marriage
leave, and compassionate leave.
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Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination

The Group recognises and embraces the value of having a
diverse board and workforce, as this enhances the quality and
effectiveness of our performance. Board Diversity Policy is
established which defined board diversity in terms of a wide
range of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length
of service, and diversity is also the value incorporated in our
recruitment practices.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer, committed
to providing equal opportunities in all human resources
matters and throughout the course of employment including
but not limited to recruitment, training, promotion, transfer,
compensation, benefits provision, termination, regardless of
age, gender, physical or mental state, marital status, family
status, pregnancy, race, colour, nationality or ethnic origin,
religion, or sexual orientation. Employees are recognised and
rewarded based on their contribution, performance, and skill
level. The Group provides a competitive remuneration package
and training opportunities to all employees, with an objective
focus on their job requirements, personal capabilities, and
work performance. During the reporting period, to the best
of our Directors’ knowledge, the Group was not aware of any
significant discrimination cases.

The Group has a strict policy that prohibits any form of sexual
harassment as stipulated in the Employee Management
Handbook. Employee, who believes that he/she has been or is
being sexually harassed, is encouraged to report the incident
of sexual harassment, as well as seek advice and guidance
to the relevant supervisors or department heads. He/she can
further lodge his/her complaint to the Human Resources &
Administration Department who will investigate thoroughly and
confidentially in accordance with the guidelines in handling
sexual harassment complaints.
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The Group will take appropriate disciplinary measures against
any individual who violates the policies and regulations. In the
most serious cases, this may result in the termination of the
employment contract. During the reporting period, to the best
of our Directors’ knowledge, the Group was not aware of any
significant harassment cases.

Employee benefits and welfare

In accordance with the applicable laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, the Group offers many benefits and welfare to the
employees. The Group participates in the defined contribution
scheme under the MPF Scheme Ordinance which is available
to its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme by the Group and employees are made based on a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed to
the MPF Scheme. The Group also provides medical insurance,
employees’ compensation insurance, marriage gift, maternity
coupon, condolence money, and reimbursement to employees.
Mobile phone reimbursement is also eligible for employees
whose job duties regularly require emergency call back, or
other job-related factors that require the employee to routinely
utilise mobile phone to enhance their ability to perform their
job duties. On the other hand, the Group has organised other
welfare activities and arranged benefits for our employees such
as birthday, Mid-Autumn Festival and Christmas parties as well
as distribution of mooncake coupon to employees.
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As at 31 March 2024, the Group employed 212 employees.
All employees are located in Hong Kong. The details of the
workforce and employee turnover rate during the reporting
period are as follows:

M2024%3R31H - A & B & A212% &

B - FrAREHUNES -

BINEERAENFBWT

BN SRS

Workforce'? B T2 2023/2024 2022/2023
As at 31 March A3A31H 2023 20245 2022/ 2023%F
By Gender =5l

Male B 148 165

Female pog s 64 64
By Age Group RER AR

Below 30 30mA T 36 42

30-50 30E505% 97 111

51 or above S515A 79 76
By Employment Type RIEEER

Full Time 2R 210 226

Part Time F B 2 3
By Geographical Region #itE

Hong Kong BE 212 229
Total L 212 229
Turnover Rate® ML ES 2023/2024 2022/2023
As at 31 March MA3A31H 2023 / 2024% 2022 / 2023%
By Gender g ezl

Male B4 40.1% 33.2%

Female pegi 36.6% 31.9%
By Age Group RERER

Below 30 30 AN 44.6% 40.0%

30-50 30E505% 37.4% 34.3%

51 or above 513 A 38.3% 25.5%
By Geographical Region R E

Hong Kong BE 39.1% 32.8%
Overall st 39.1% 32.8%
me\oyees of the Group only. Workers of the subcontractors are not mg\ CAEESBENIA -

included.

1 Turnover rate = Number of employees left the Group during the reporting period/
(Number of employees left the Group during the reporting period + Number of
employees as at the end of the reporting period). The Group had a total of 136
employee turnover (2022/2023: 112 employee turnover) during the reporting period.
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Health and Safety

Given the inherent nature of the construction industry,
prioritizing workplace safety and accident prevention measures
is of the utmost importance. As such, the Group has adopted
a health and safety policy statement (the “Policy Statement”)
which emphasises on safeguarding the health and safety
of all employees, subcontractors, and the wider community
during the execution of operations. The health, safety and
wellbeing of our people is a key concern of the Group. The
Group's subsidiary has adopted an occupational health and
safety management system according to the requirements of
ISO 45001:2018 (Occupational Health and Safety Management
System) accreditation and has in place various policies and
procedures to ensure the health and safety of our employees in
the workplace.

The Group strictly adheres to the applicable laws and
regulations in Hong Kong pertaining to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards, including but not limited to Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance, Factories and Industrial Undertakings
Ordinance, Construction Sites (Safety) Regulations, Occupiers
Liability Ordinance. During the reporting period, to the
best of our Director’'s knowledge, the Group had 5 cases of
non-compliance with Factories and Industrial Undertakings
Ordinance and Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance
which resulted a total of HK$67,000 fine. Individual investigations
of each cases were carried out and the relevant corrective
action plans (“CAP”"s) were adopted in order to avoid repeating
similar cases in future. We are committed to continuously
enhancing our safety measures and policies in order to foster a
safe working environment for all employees within the Group.
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Safety organisation

The Group has established a Company Safety Management
Committee and a Site Safety Committee with clearly defined
responsibilities. The former is responsible for developing,
reviewing and revising the Group’s health and safety policy
and regularly monitoring the proper implementation of the
safety management system. The latter provides and improves
the safety at work on-site and shall be able to participate in
the making and monitoring of arrangements for safety at the
workplace.

Health and safety measures and implementation

In addition to adhering to the laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, the Group enforces a comprehensive safety plan at the
start and throughout the implementation of each project. This is
to ensure a safe and healthy working environment. Job hazard
analysis is also conducted by a safety officer or construction
team whereby risk is assessed based on all of the occupational
health and safety aspects of the works. The safety officers, safety
supervisors and site management personnel conduct regular
site visits to ensure the workers have taken all necessary safety
precautionary measures. Some key measures are implemented
at the project sites as follows:

e all new employees are required to attend site safety
induction training conducted by safety officers within two
days after their commencement of work on-site; and

e all employees are required to wear or use appropriate
safety equipment or clothing and use the appropriate
safety devices

e all employees are expected to familiarise with the relevant
requirements outlined in the project safety plan, as well as
any other specific safety guidelines.

The Group places great importance on safety driving practices.
Staff who use the vehicle provided by the Group or own vehicles
for work purposes, is asked to pay attention to drive safety and
strict compliance with all traffic laws of the HKSAR Government.
A "Declaration of Safety Driving” is provided to the staff who
drive the Group vehicles.
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Meanwhile, the Group has established Standard Construction
Site Arrangement and Safety Measures In-House rules
for workers to comply and follow at work to mitigate the
occurrence of accidents and occupational hazards. To increase
the awareness of safety at workplace, a Safety Penalty Schedule,
which was a management system to identify and follow-up on
any non-compliance of Occupational Safety regulations that
were established to lower the possibilities of accidents and
fatalities further.

Monitoring system

The most up-to-date information and procedures related to
health and safety are disseminated during regular meetings
are held for directors, safety officers and site supervisors. In
the event of the occurrence of incidents and near misses,
swift rectifications will be made by following the emergency
preparedness and response procedure which have already
been well-established. Follow-up investigation will be carried
out to review the safety system to find out the root causes of
the case(s) and prevent reoccurrence of similar cases. Apart
from routine safety inspections, regular safety walks by senior
management and safety audits are conducted at all project
sites to verify the sufficiency and effectiveness of safety control

measures.
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Safety performance

During the reporting period, the Group achieved zero fatalities.
The accident rate per 1,000 employees or workers for the
Group and our subcontractors in 2023/2024 are 3.3 and 6.5
respectively, which are much lower than the Hong Kong
construction industry’s average of 29.1 per 1,000 workers'™. The
total number of lost days due to injuries is 510 days (2022/2023:
1,251 days) in 2023/2024. We will continue our efforts to raise
safety awareness amongst our stakeholders and to ensure that
we learn from these events to improve our safety performance.

oo 30 )

RBEHB  AEBERSRTEER - K
ESEREDBEMK2023, 2024F N F T
ZRESITASBHES R A33K6S5  &IE
REBRBEENTFHETEITA291% B
2023 /2024 F A T 5B KB B H A510K
(2022 /20234 : 1,251K) » IS4 ER
hiEeRnENT2EE  BREMEZS
EHPREE  ARBESRMANLZEERE -

2023/2024 2022/2023 2021/2022
2023 /20244 2022 2023%F 2021/ 2022%
Number Reportable Accidents AREEHHE
— The Group _AREE 0
— Subcontractors - 9BH 10
Accident Rate per 1,000 employees &1,000&{EE T AMNEHES
or workers'®
— The Group - A&EE 33 0.0 0.0
— Subcontractors - 5B 6.5 9.6 10.9
Lost Time Injury Frequency Rates BAIRIESEHUER(HAT
(LTIFR)"® R TEEHRE])
— The Group - A&EE 0.1 0.0 0.0
— Subcontractors - HEE 0.2 0.3 0.4
Number of Work-related Fatalities —EHI{FBIEMIE T HIAZ
— The Group _KEEH
— Subcontractors ]
Fatality Rate per 1,000 employees  &1,000&{E&3 T AME TR
or workers'”
— The Group _KEE 0.0 0.0 0.0
— Subcontractors - PBH 0.0 0.0 0.0
W The accident rate is extracted from the Issue No. 23 (August 2023), Occupational mlﬁﬁﬁifz%&@%%@im%%?%

Safety and Health Statistic Bulletin, Occupational Safety and Health Branch, Labour

Department.

average employees or workers) x 1,000

during the reporting period) x 100,000

employees or workers) x 1,000

Accident rate per 1,000 employees or workers = (Number of reportable accident/Daily

LTIFR = (Number of lost time injuries/Total hours worked by all employees or workers

Fatality rate per 1,000 employees or workers = (Number of fatality/Daily average
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The Group will continue to review the existing occupational
health and safety management system and elevate the safety
awareness of the employees and subcontractors.

Development and Training

The Group's training and development programs are designed
to educate employees and enhance their productivity. In line
with the Group's training and development policy, all staff are
provided with equal opportunities to develop their knowledge,
skills, and abilities. This is achieved through a diverse range
of learning channels, including mentoring, coaching, on-
the-job training, courses, conferences, and seminars. These
programs allow employees to acquire new skills or update
their existing capabilities, ensuring they remain proficient and
contribute effectively to the Group's operations. Employees
are also encouraged to take up training programmes and
seminars for self-development. By providing perpetual learning
opportunities, the Group can enhance employee engagement
and increase attendance rates, leading to long term profitability
growth. Therefore, the Group will expand our training aspect to
align with the development of the industry or in response to the
update of new skills and knowledge to meet the internal and
market demand.

The Group offers a range of training opportunities for its
employees. In addition to providing in-house training programs,
the Group also sponsors employees to attend external training
courses and further educational programs that are deemed
beneficial for their job roles. This comprehensive approach
to employee development aims to equip the workforce with
the necessary knowledge, skills, and qualifications to perform
their duties effectively and contribute to the overall success of
the Group. During the reporting period, we provided a series
of trainings to our employees. To raise the safety awareness
of our employees and workers, we provided site safety
training covering various topics (such as prevention of heat
stroke, proper usage of monitors, accidents analysis, stamina
management, fire prevention, electrical safety, safety policy,
public safety, safety induction course, safety enhancement
training, working procedures under adverse weather conditions,
emergency response procedures, protection gear, safety
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awareness of office and project sites). To enrich the working
knowledge of our employees, we provided training on various
topics (such as introduction training relating to contract
management, changes in laws, Excavation and Lateral Support
preloading test, BIM related training, Project insurance
introduction, Certification for Labour Relation Officer). Relating
to the job hazard analysis as mentioned before, training courses
are provided to workers and supervisors who are required to
do the high-risk task identified in the risk assessment report.
Furthermore, The Environmental Officer (EO) will conduct
environmental training, such as induction training sessions and
toolbox talks, for site staff especially new employees, which
focuses on major environmental issues on site which includes a
variety of pollution mitigation measures.

Future Leader (FL) Club

Alongside the training and development programs, the Group
has established a Future Leader (FL) Club. This initiative
focuses on supporting employee engagement and internal
networking, while also providing younger employees with
valuable opportunities to develop new knowledge and skills. By
creating this dedicated platform, the Group demonstrates its
commitment to nurturing the next generation of leaders from
within the organization, ensuring a steady pipeline of talent
and facilitating the growth and advancement of its workforce.
All employees can join the FL Club on a voluntary basis and
participate in various activities including networking events,
movie sessions, and organised dinners. Events also frequently
include sharing sessions to allow participants to share their
experience, knowledge and reflections on particular topics. Such
activities help newer members of the Group make connections
with other colleagues while also gaining exposure to others’
experiences and skills.
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During the reporting period, the Group had 50% (107
employees) of the total number of employees received training,
and they received 580 hours of training (2022/2023: 447 hours).

RBERE  AEBERER

BrEV50% (1074

BE)LEIEI - MKkEEIEINREE
A5801R/|NBF (2022/20234 « 447 /N ) ©

The details are as follows: BAFBOT -
2023/2024 2022/2023'®
Indicators EBE 2023 / 2024% 2022 / 2023%F'®
Percentage of employees trained" ZIEEF DL 50% 81%
By Gender® &1 Rl
Male Esfis 88% 83%
Female 7 12% 17%
By Employment Category?' ZEEER
Senior Management BRERE 8% 6%
Middle Management/Non-management Professionals RARERE IEFEEHEAS 18% 18%
General/Frontline Staff —#% HIGEAE 74% 76%
2023/2024 2022/2023
Average Training Hours? 1G5 3| B 222 2023 / 2024% 2022 /20234
hours/employee hours/employee
E¥ ES KY ES
By Gender ZE R
Male B 3.6 2.3
Female i 0.7 1.1
By Employment Category RERER
Senior Management SRERRE 4.4 4.8
Middle Management/Non-management Professionals PREIEEJEFEBEEAE 2.4 6.6
General/Frontline Staff —R RIS AE 2.7 1.4
Overall #Et 2.7 2.0
mbeen restated due to an update on calculation methodology. 5£§%ﬁfﬁ%§§§” °
¥ Percentage of the number of employees trained: (Total number of employees trained ¥ FHEBAKED L : (RBEBEOTHIES RAK
during the reporting period/Total number of employees at the end of the reporting RIREHROESLALD X 100% °

period) x 100%.

B Percentage of employees trained by gender: (Number of employees trained in the
gender during the reporting period/Number of employees trained during the reporting

period) x 100%.

2 Percentage of employees trained by category: (Number of employees trained in
the category during the reporting period/Number of employees trained during the

reporting period) x 100%.

2 Average training hours = Total training hours during the reporting period/Total number

of employees at the end of the reporting period.

s ZEEEANZIEES AZBEBE DL
ERIZIIE BB RIREERE

N A B IR 1 B S
#) % 100% °

- (RS B R IR R 1%
BB A X 100% °

= IR I B=10 4R 5 HAR A0 AR 1 B B B TSR R A

ER®E -
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to upholding international human
rights standards throughout its business practices. We strive
to maintain our operations free from any form of human rights
abuse, including child labour, forced labour, and illegal labour
practices. By adopting policies and procedures that respect
human rights, the Group demonstrates its ethical approach to
conducting business, ensuring that the dignity and well-being
of all individuals associated with our operations are protected
and prioritized. Our commitment to operating with respect for
human rights. The Group also commits to running the business
while respecting human rights by establishing a comprehensive
internal guideline of employment which prevents having child
labour, illegal immigrants or workers from being on-site:

1. Human resources and administrative officers inspect and
take a copy of the original of the Hong Kong identity
card and/or other documentary evidence of the applicant
showing that he/she is lawfully employable in Hong Kong;

2. The subcontracting agreement includes a clause that
requires subcontractors to only hire individuals who are
legally permitted to work on-site and to prevent any
unauthorized or illegal workers from entering the work site;
and

3. The Group evaluate, identify, track and manage the human
rights impacts of our business operations on a regular basis.
If any child or forced labour cases have been identified,
they will be dismissed from work immediately. The Group
will strictly follow the local labour laws and regulations to
handle such cases.

The Group is committed to complying with all relevant
employment and labour laws and regulations, including the
Employment Ordinance and section 38A of the Immigration
Ordinance. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, during the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding child
labour, forced labour, or the employment of illegal immigrants.
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Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management
The Group recognises the critical importance of its supplier
relationships in maintaining consistency, stability, and efficiency
across key areas such as cost-cutting, process optimization, and
supply chain management. The Group's suppliers of goods and
services primarily consist of:

e  subcontractors;

e suppliers of construction materials mainly provision of
concrete and reinforcing steel bar; and

e machinery and equipment rental service providers.

The Group employs a rigorous and systematic approach to
supplier and subcontractor management in order to identify
and address potential environmental and social risks within its
supply chain. The code of conduct adopted by the Group (the
“Code of Conduct”) regulates the conduct of our employees
in the course of their employment. Alongside with other
procurement-related policies and guidelines, we dedicate
to a fair, transparent and competitive procurement process
which requires all employees to observe the highest standards
of business integrity and to comply with relevant laws and
regulations.

The Group maintains an updated list of approved suppliers and
subcontractors, and typically sources materials and services only
from these pre-approved vendors for its projects.

The Group's supplier and subcontractor selection process
involves a comprehensive evaluation of various key factors,
including safety performance, costs, technical expertise,
financial standing, past track record, reliability, quality of
goods and services, and overall workmanship. Also, we will
take priority to consider selecting suppliers that provide more
sustainable products and services over other suppliers given
that they share the same business nature as well as the standard
of performance. When supplying the Group with products and
services, suppliers must meet the environmental protection
statutory requirements, other industry requirements as well
as the Group's Environmental Management Plan. For certain

BRI HEREREE

LEED

HIEEETE

7R 5 R B B 1AL IR 7 O B R S S U ORUAX
A BORE R MR EE SRR AN —
B BEMEMSERERE - AEENE
mE R HEREERE

s NEB:
o IRIRMURR L MIEIAHZEM IR

[T
o HMMREHERMBEHER

AEBBBEREBNAERBORER LD
BREEE - AHEBIMEHEHEETERE
REMEERR - NEBRMANITRT R
(TTRAFADRERMNREREES EXEY
BIETT A o BRI EMIREEERR LES|
BB NERAY EANAEMSHET
MERBRIE  BRAEREETRSNEE
HERE - WESTAEBADI LAA -

AEBEREEHMNWAAHRER LD BEA
B ORTRERZSEARTNERYEN
KERFBITIAMIRIER -

AEBNHER LD EBBERRE L RER
AR ERR - KA RITER - FHR
o BERR - AIRE - EREREERIA
RERRMERE - I EAREMERA
BEHRRERGEE RESIRENFIRET - T
BT L BB RIRMH B r B Em MRS
MR IE R M IR R - ERAREHE
2 in MRIGE - (HEER VAN ARREAER
K BEMITERENRAEBNRITE R
go-pETHEMS RANEPAFRER

BIZRBRAT  FH2023/2024 19



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERHRSE

projects, our customers may retain their rights to nominate
certain specific suppliers/subcontractors to fulfil certain parts of
the works under the relevant contracts. Where our customers
nominate a supplier/subcontractor, the Group generally retains
the right to object to the use of such nominated suppliers/
subcontractors with supporting reasons.

The Group regularly evaluates the performance of its approved
suppliers and subcontractors, at least annually, to determine
if any corrective or preventive actions are required, or if they
should be removed from the approved vendor list.

For further information regarding the Group’s measures in
relation to environmental compliance, safety and quality
control of subcontractors, please refer to the sections headed
"Environmental Aspects’’, "Health and Safety” and "Product
Responsibility” in the Report.

During the reporting period, the Group had a total of 1,896
(2022/2023: 1,724) suppliers and subcontractors, and 1,891 of
them were located in Hong Kong with 5 being based in the
People’s Republic of China.

Product Responsibility

Quality and safety are the foundational pillars that the Group
stands upon. The Group fully recognises the critical importance
of upholding the highest standards of quality in its construction
and maintenance work. Adhering to its quality policy, the Group
is committed to carrying out its contractual duties with utmost
integrity and efficiency to ensure the quality of its work. The
Group aims to attain a strong understanding of customers’
demands and implements a clear control system to perpetually
heighten the competitiveness of our services. The Group
promotes among all employees the awareness and importance
of quality and calls for the co-operation, participation and
leadership in achieving the Group objectives.
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mE EE

Driven by its commitment to continuously enhancing the AEBRNFEEREETFEFPZREZE
quality and safety of services provided to customers, the ERZZ2 BEEHRERANEEEERSR -

PedaN

Group has implemented a formal quality management system HL&LRFR SISO 9001:2015 (EEEFE R
which is certified to be in compliance with the requirements #)ETE - AEBNAETEEEZES (&
of 1ISO 9001:2015 (Quality Management System). The Group BEZE®|)FMBEEHITHEELZSEE ' &
also implements a project quality plan for all Projects for HEMETH%ZE MRIEERFMN=KE
Hong Kong Housing Authorities ("HKHA") jobs with three ZEHEBRE  UFEEGHNREBEZERE
main quality objectives targeting safety, quality on materials T/ERIBFDHIERNRE - XEEHEITHE
and workmanship to meet contract requirements, meeting =EEHIFEELT ©

requirements of the MASS system from HKHA. The quality

control measures are implemented as follows.

Phase Quality Control Measures

F& ER B EEGIEN

Tendering Phase e  For all building construction projects, identify and assess requirements of
1S ER potential clients during tender phase to confirm the Group has the necessary

Project Planning Phase

B REIREER

resources, capacities and procedures in place to fulfil requirements outlines in
the tender documentation.

HRABETRERAME » RNREBRANEE MFHEEEZTPHER - URRAEE
BEMEER e REFMREEXHHRTE -

Identify and mobilize resources with the appropriate competencies and
qualifications to form the project team in a timely manner, allowing for adequate
project preparation and alignment with client requirements.
BRILBDAEARBESENRERNER  UREKIEEEK - AFFEE EHTEN
HEaTPER -

Place material orders early, put in place required contracts and acquire necessary
trade workers and machinery resources for the works or projects to start in line
with the project timeline.

RETBYMEIE  FTUMBEANTESIENEEVENT ARKRER - LS
HERMBKRET -

Once contract is confirmed, publish the contract award notification and hold a
tender handover meeting to inform project team members about key project
information and immediate actions, with a particular focus on early procurement
requirements.

RRRBEHE%  TEAORTAM  URTEERESZ - UASHABKKERH
TEBEEEHNMARTE  LEREMNMEFRERTE

Conduct meetings with project team members to discuss the relevant
contract and resources issues to ensure the project team is well resources
based on specific project needs and has a good understanding of the project
requirements. Such meetings will also allow to discuss the project scope and the
proposed approach for the tender.

HEEBRKERTEH  fwiAEa O NEREE - RFRERERCRIBEFTEIRA
FREBARER  URMTHIEBRT - ZE5 SR MBEARNRTHEBRERE
ENZEZESE -
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BRI HEREREE

Phase Quality Control Measures
F R B S EHEE

Project Implementation Phase .
HEEEER

Completion Phase i
TR

The project manager will ensure that surveys are conducted in any existing
foundations underground services and adjacent structures to determine their
condition before commencement of works. The project manager will also
coordinate and oversee the preparation of any early submissions such as site
layout plans, method statements, quality plans, inspection and test plans and
temporary works design.

T8 B R AR MR A B TR LA A B E LR RA S TS NEEH
R - TR B AR TR A R EREMRRF RN S R(NEGER I HE &
S8 B LAFEGEARGR TREEE) 2R -

Prepare detailed documentation such as plans and/or schedules to support
the communication with approved suppliers and subcontractors for required
materials, trade workers and machinery.

TR - PlanEt &I R, SRERER - ESLAIR YR - TA RS ER A e
ELEREE

Review requisitions and quotations submitted by suppliers and subcontractors to
ensure proper control before and upon delivery of such materials, services and
machinery to the project sites.

FEHHER LD BEREZNRBELRE - UHERAZSEDE - R L0 xR
AR B MR AR (E R & BT -

Conduct regular site review meetings with suppliers/subcontractors to review the
works progress, resources arrangements, project health, safety and security, etc.

HER D EMBTERMBREREE  UERIREE  BRTH  HARRE -

LERRRE -

Identify, evaluate and control any risks related to job hazards or potential
hazards. Ensure relevant measures are in place to reduce such risks to acceptable
levels.

Fh - AT EREEARIIFESHEAERENAR - BERDZEMEERE - AR
RZERRZEEZAKF -

Conduct regular inspections of works and safety, health, environmental and
quality ("SHEQ") to ensure that the completed works conform to agreed client
requirements, and that the site performance conforms to the Group SHEQ
policy, legal and other requirements.

ETEHIREREZSE  BE RERBESRR( %2 #FE REKE2]) UER
PR IRCER—BRAENEFPATE  RMBERRDERAEELE  BF B3R
NESBOR - EEREMBTE

Any aspects that are found to be non-compliant or defective will be resolved as
soon as possible, or otherwise will be physically identified by markings, tags or
notices or, where practical, segregated to prevent any unintended use.
EARERATERNARBEHFTESERHR - TAKEREREL  EHLBHN
(EAIATH ) D BEAZLERR - DAy IE TR E R -
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Complaint handling

The Group has formulated many customer complaints
and feedback handling procedures so as to enhance the
effectiveness of complaint handling and quality assurances. To
the best of our directors’ knowledge, the Group did not receive
any official complaints from its customers during the reporting
period.

Health and safety, product return, intellectual property
protection, advertising and labelling

The health and safety of workers and the surrounding public is
of paramount importance to the Group. As such, the Group has
made substantial efforts to develop and implement stringent,
detailed internal policies and procedures to ensure the highest
standards of health and safety for all relevant stakeholders. For
further information, please refer to the section headed “Health
and Safety” in the Report. On the other hand, the Group's
business does not involve any research and development,
product manufacturing, packaging and labelling activities.
Besides, the Group does not rely on marketing or advertising
heavily, and respects intellectual property rights fully. Being
a well-known brand in the industry, the Group has registered
for the trademark of our principal brand name “Wecon” in
Hong Kong. In addition, the Group has 1 domain name which
is material to the business, namely “wecon.com.hk”, for which
the Group is the registered proprietor. To the best of Directors’
knowledge, the Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance relating to customer health and safety, product
return, intellectual property rights, advertising and labelling
involving the Group.

Employee and customer data protection and privacy
Confidentiality of employee and customer information are of
utmost importance to the Group. The Group strives to protect
the privacy of its customers, business partners and employees
in the collection, processing and use of their business or
personal data. The Group’s Employee Management Handbook
can provide more guidance on the handling of confidential
information.
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As per the Group’s Employee Management Handbook, the data
protection policy mandates that all employees must maintain
the confidentiality of information and matters related to the
Group's business and affairs. Employees are prohibited from
disclosing such confidential information to any unauthorized
third parties or other employees who do not have access to
such information. This obligation to maintain confidentiality
remains valid after the cessation of employment of the relevant
employees. In addition, all documents and information
belonging to the Group that any employee possess should be
returned to the Group upon the end of their employment with
the Group.

Non-compliance to such policies may lead to disciplinary action,
and in serious cases will be treated as gross misconduct. Any
personal data, including employees and customers’ personal
data should also be dealt with meticulously.

The Group strictly follows the laws and regulations relating
to product responsibility. During the reporting period, to the
best of Directors’ knowledge, the Group was not aware of any
significant non-compliance case in this regard.

Anti-corruption

The Group is steadfast in its advocacy for its core values of
honesty, integrity, and fair competition, which it expects all
employees to uphold. All new employees are briefed thoroughly
about anti-corruption and our Code of Conduct. Our employees
are required to respect the Code of Conduct when dealing with
any matters related to acceptance and offer of advantages,
conflicts of interest, misuse of official position, company assets
and information.
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Other than the internal anti-bribery and corruption guidelines
as stipulated in the code of conduct, the Group has in place an
anti-fraud policy to provide guidelines for fraud risk evaluation,
anti-fraud measures, handling of suspected fraud and fraud
identification. In addition, a whistleblowing policy has been
established as a communication channel for employees
to report concerns relating to ethical business or personal
conduct, accounting and financial matters, integrity and other
misconduct, or maltreatment by other staff members after
making a genuine complaint. Employees are welcome to send
their concerns via mail or email. The Group also protects the
whistle-blower from being dismissed or mistreated even if his or
her concerns are not justified ultimately. The Board of Directors
and the Audit Committee have the responsibility to monitor
and review the implementation of the policy and to advise on
investigations into complaints. The Group has also implemented
appropriate and effective internal controls at different business
processes to prevent and detect fraudulent activities.

During the reporting period, as a form of anti-corruption
training, the Group has disseminated links to a comprehensive
set of training webinar provided by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC"). the training contents
included introduction of the relevant ordinance and analysing
common corruption risks and ethical issues in construction
industry. It was instructed to spend 60 minutes on the training.
1 member of the Group attended the training.

The Group strictly adheres to all laws and regulations related
to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering in Hong
Kong, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. During
the reporting period, to the best of Directors’ knowledge,
the Group was not involved in any material non-compliance
incidents or material litigation, prosecution, disciplinary actions
or complaints relating to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or
money laundering.
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Community

Community Investment

The Group has been devoted in the community investment
in the areas of poverty alleviation, education support,
environmental protection, social charity and encourages
employees to repay the society with pragmatic actions such as
volunteering and working through collaboration with strategic
giving as well as capacity-building initiatives to try and create a
positive impact in the community. We believe that community
contribution is essential for sustainable development as it helps
to establish a harmonious society and strive to develop long-
term relations with stakeholders based on mutual trust, respect
and integrity. The Group is proud to have attained the “Caring
Company Logo” for six consecutive years.

Presented to

e
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Caring for the neighbourhood

We make sure to build good relations with the local community
near our project sites especially considering the possible
repercussions of our construction projects for the surrounding
environments. We are proactive in communicating with the local
community to understand and respond to their concerns, which
has also recognised our efforts.

Contribution to society

We support the communities we serve. The Group aims to
provide opportunities that support youth development through
their donations made such as to Project Tomorrow Limited,
which help potential young people and support the innovation
of Hong Kong youth. In addition, the Group contributes to
the health sector and the people who in dire straits through
their participation and donations such as establishing a golf
team for the charity golf tournament, focusing on supporting
children suffering Thalassaemia and helping to improve the
education and living conditions of children in impoverished
areas. We also donated for the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
("TWGHs") and Chung Chi College of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong to support patients and “My future and Partnership
Fund for the Disadvantaged” established by PMF Limited to
support the disadvantaged. To help raise funds for children
with rare diseases to access life-changing medical care, the
Group participated in the Lifewire Run. Meanwhile, we joined
TWGHSs Flag Day 2023 to raise funds for our community and
education services. As a value-adding community member, we
also participated in the Lo Pan Rice Campaign to show our care
to low-income families by distributing “Lo Pan” meal boxes to
them for free.

The Group shall keep abreast latest trends and best practices
related to environmental protection. We also encourage
employees to actively participate in community and voluntary
work to further the benefits of local communities and render
assistance to the needy.
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E%’J\E?ﬂ?‘e%f (S o ttoh - NREE TS
BSELIBE) - PIIAR AL = B R IRF 2

ERBXIRE  BAXEEAMHIEE ML
REUARREEENERMENTEZHE
REFRE  TEREREZEREFENRRN
*MPE’J/\W BB RE =T ([ RE

BT DARBERXKREBRESRUATE
ﬁ)\ WHBIPMFE R R R8Iz &9 #EF
SED AT EIHY Ziﬁ-*» %T%’E)ﬁﬁ;
ﬁfﬁﬁ’]?ﬁii‘i?ﬁ B EBEREHE

K’EIJ‘TE//\<<RE@°%ZY%>> Eﬁiikt
Hﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁ/Aﬁﬁ—&ﬁﬁEmB
BRMAMEERBERBEER - (EAUANRE
HEADZEN—HTF BTS2 EBRTT
& BRAERARERERE B IRE
RIEAE -

AEBKERRFRBENRNBE MRER

B RPN EEEEREGSEARE N ERET
B UREEMHEEERAEZTEA LR
HiE8 -
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During the reporting period, the Group donated and supported RImEHHE @ AEBERESEEFRER
approximately HK$188,000 (2022/2023: HK$134,000) for charities. ~ #7188,000/% 7T (2022 20234 : 134,000/
The Group strives to give back to the society, which led to our 7o) e AEBEHR NEEL S @ BFER RS H
increase in total funds donated for the reporting period. The TR ERBREBFT LA - BEFFIFW

details are as follows: ™
Event Resource Contributed
EE Money contribution (HKD)/

Activity hours (hours)/
Participants

BERMERBROER) ED

B (NE) 28RE

Sponsorship for Thalassaemia Charity Golf 2024
organised by Children’s Thalassaemia Foundation

BB PEEMBESE KNE2024
mithhEE MR E LS T

Donation for TWGHs Flag Day 2023
organised by Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

BERE=[RHEH2023

P AR EE = P it
Donation to TWGH for Inauguration of the Board of Directors
BEORE=REERMMAIE

Participation in Lifewire Run 2023
organised by Lifewire Foundation Limited

2 HiLifewire Run 2023(E i « EKEB)
M e BB E AT AR AR M
Participation in Lo Pan Rice Campaign
organised by The Hong Kong Construction Association
SHEHERTH
mEBRER S TN
Participation in Community Care Activities
organised by nursing homes and merchants
SHEAEBRETES
mEERIEE IR
Donation for Sowers Action Charity Golf Tournament 2023
organised by Sowers Action
RYEESEAEERE2023
B E TR
Donation for Tomorrow in Metaverse
organised by Project Tomorrow Limited
BRI TFHE
BRITARER R E EH
Donation for My future and Partnership Fund for the Disadvantaged
organised by PMF Limited

B RNAR IRBFERBES
HPMFARR B i
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$23,000

$5,000

$20,000
$10,000

10 Participants /£ #%
2.5 Hours //]NE§

5 Participants /£ 82
1 Hour //]\EF

11 Participants /£ 8%

1 Hour //|\E

$16,352

$20,000

$12,000
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Event

BB

Resource Contributed
Money contribution (HKD)/

Activity hours

(hours)/

Participants

BERERBE

R(BT), EB

BN, SHEE

Participation for TWGHs Flag Day 2023
organised by Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
SERE=[RHEH2023
BRI =P i
Donation for Chung Chi College for Block E Redevelopment Project
organised by Chung Chi College of the Chinese University of Hong Kong
REREZREEERZE
MEETXARBRES W
Donation for Tung Wah Charity Gala —

Charity Golf Tournament at Mission Hills Golf Club 2023
organised by Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

BHBLHRRE  BRNSEAREZAE2023
FRERE =T

Donation for 2024 HKCA Charity President Cup
organised by The Hong Kong Construction Association
BYEBREREEREEE2024
mMEBRERE TN

) F—

@za;@m &ren

Lifewire Run

A Lifewire Run
£10

$4,681.7

10 Participants 2k
1 Hour //|\B§

A TWGHs Flag Day 2023
RE=[TEMEHE2023

BIERERAT

FE$52023/2024

$30,000

$50,000

$2,000
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

GUIDE INDEX

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

Section/Statement

R HERERBREESIART RS

Page number

TEHE  EE - —REEREEERIEZREED B B
Subject Area A. Environmental
TEHEARE
Aspect A1 Emissions
BEATHHY
General Disclosure Information on: Environmental 81-86
—REE (a) the policies; and Management; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations Emissions

that have a significant impact on the issuer BIEEE

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, & BERY

discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

FHBERIOREREBYN - AKREHHEDS - BF

NEEEYZEELESN

@) BE: &

(b) ETHEITABEAZENHEBMERIERNE

e

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Emissions 86-88
BERERIEZRAL data. B

PER R R ARRE B EBUR -
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Emissions 89-90
FREMISEAL.2 Greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where BEm)

KPI A1.3
BRERIEEREALI

KPI A1.4
HRAMIERALL

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (HEN) g REE (BE2) )R =REBEEMEA
WA ) R (ER) BE(WMASES B - BIERE
HE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FTESAEEYAE(CAEAE) R(MER)HE (|
WSER B  SERIHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FrEEEEEYRE(CAEE) R(ER)BE (1M
NEESEM - BERETE) -
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No significant
hazardous wastes
produced.
WRELEAX
BEREY -
Emissions

3¢

Not applicable
TE A

91-92
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)
TEHE - BH  —REERBRENSZ (M)

Section/Statement
8- g

Page number

R

KPI A1.5
BRARIERALS

KPI A1.6
RREMIEEALG

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

MAPRETSZ BN E B IR R BEHZE BRI
5 -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
fERIR A = KB REY O TTE - R RT SR HE
BN AERZE B IZAMRIA LR -

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

BEA2E R EH
General Disclosure

—RiRE

KPI A2.1
BRAMIERA2.1

KPI A2.2
BREMIERA2.2

KPI A2.3
BRENIEEREA2.3

KPI A2.4
BRANMERA2.4

KPI A2.5
BARAMIERA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BIFLIR - KREMERM ) BBEK -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

REAEISMERE R SEEER(WE - Ralon) 8
HREUNTETERFE) REE(WNAGESSEM -
FIEFRME)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
BRKELREZE(WAGESEN - BERMETHE)
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
MAPTET LB RE AU B ERABERZEBFEAMIR
ERE) 8K -

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

Al SREE R /KOR £ R A ERI R - BRI AKR
@mARRAERZE A EMERNIE -

Total packaging material used for finished products
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced.

SR mABeEEM e S (AEE) R(ER) &
HEBMEE -

BIERERAT

Environmental
Management; and
Emissions
RIREE R
Environmental
Management; and
Emissions

RIFEE - MBI

Environmental
Management; and
Use of Resources

BEEE
MEREA
Use of Resources

BIREA

Use of Resources

BIREM

Environmental
Management; and
Use of Resources

RIREE
K& REH

Environmental
Management; and
Use of Resources

RRERE

K& RE A

It is not relevant to

the Group's business.

L p=va SRS
AR -

85, 87-88

85, 91-93

96-97

96

98

85, 96-97

85, 97-98

Not applicable
A
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

Section/Statement

Page number

FTEEGE - EEH - —REEREBEEVEE(ME1) -y po EN
Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
BEASRERAAEIR
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant Environmental 85, 98-99
—RIRE impacts on the environment and natural resources. Management; and
WRBITAHIRBERRABERERKERNTZEMBL © The Environment and
Natural Resources
REEE  MRRER
RABIR
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities The Environment and 99
BRREMIEEA3A on the environment and natural resources and the Natural Resources
actions taken to manage them. RBERRAAER
MR HIRBERRRERNEATE R BRI
ERFHTENTY -
Aspect A4 Climate Change
B EAARIRE L
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of Climate Change 100-105
—RIEE significant climate-related issues which have RIREL
impacted and those which may impact, the issuer.
BRI REHEE RIS U BTAEELENS
REINRNEEHEEEER -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues Climate Change 100-105
FAEENIEEAL which have impacted, and those which may impact, RIREL

the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
A ERAREEERTAEERENERRIRIEH
EE REEBBFENTY -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)
TEHE - BH  —REERBRENSZ (M)

Section/Statement Page number

EHHm

R

Subject Area B. Social
FTEAEBAME

Employment and Labour Practice

ERRE TEHR
Aspect B1 Employment
EEB1IEMR

General Disclosure*

—RIRE

KPI B1.1
B R A RIERB.

KPI B1.2
BRAMIEHB1.2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

ERAFHRERE  BREERET  TESHK - RE - F

Ee  Zlt - RIERUREMSE KRR

(@) HE: R

(b) ETHETABBEAZENMEMEARLERNE
Ko

Total workforce by gender, employment type

(for example, full- or part-time), age group and

geographical region.

ZIER) - EERE(HImERRE) - Ficdhl kit

EENHIEBAR -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

BRI FRAR MBS SRS RALEK -

Aspect B2 Health and Safety

EEB2REHZE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

ERREZ2THERERREREEHEBELRS

By -

@ HE: R

(b) BTFHETABEAZENHERMERILERNE
e

Employment

(A

Employment

B

Employment

(=

Health and Safety
2R 2

BIERERAT

106-109

110

110

111-113
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

Section/Statement

Page number

FTEEGE - EEH - —REEREBEEVEE(ME1) -y po EN
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Health and Safety 114
BRENIEEB2.1 occurred in each of the past three years including fERRM LR 2

the reporting year.

RBE=F(BRERESFE)SFFEIIEREMIETH

ABR L -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety 114
BMRERIERB2.2 ETHBERTIEAE - e
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety 111-113
R NIBIER2.3 measures adopted, and how they are implemented fEpRaZ 2

and monitored.

f TR BRI B R 248 b - DA RABREATT I

BERAE -
Aspect B3 Development and Training
/B EIB3&/E RIZF|
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and Development and 115-116
—RIEE skills for discharging duties at work. Description of Training

training activities. ER &IET

BRARIMEE BT TIEBE N B R EENHER -

AIFFES -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender Development and 117
AR E NI EB3.1 and employee category. Training

RUERINREBERBDNRIEEBD L - R AT
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per Development and 117
BEENIEEB3.2 employee by gender and employee category. Training

RIERIREEERE S - FREE TKEINFIHR R NI

2 o
Aspect B4 Labour Standards
EEB4% TEA)
General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards 118
— R E (@) the policies; and AL TR

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced labour.

RN IEE Teoam 8T

(@) BE: &

b) ETHETABEAZENHEMERILERNE

%o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Labour Standards 118
BARENIEEBL practices to avoid child and forced labour. BT AR

AR B E DI R HE AR R B T KORHIS T -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Labour Standards 118
BRENIEEB4.2 practices when discovered. BT |

R RIRE R BERR ER A BB TR 28 -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI HEREREE

Section/Statement

Page number

TREHE  EE - —REERBRARES(ME1) BEE EWN
Operating Practices
EEIEH
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
EEBSHE#E R
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social Supply Chain 119-120
—RIFE risks of the supply chain. Management

ERMHEENRERTERRBE - HIEEE R
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain 120
BRERIEEBS.1 R E S HEEEEE - Management

HrEgEEe

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain 119-120
R EMIEEBS.2 suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices Management

are being implemented, and how they are HEEER

implemented and monitored.

fit A RS AR AIED) - MERITARIEDIR

FEEEE - ARABABHINRITRERTE
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain 119-120
B EMIBIEBS.3 environmental and social risks along the supply Management

chain, and how they are implemented and HrEEER

monitored.

st AR B R B ERA IR T AL 2 R R 18

Bl ARIERER T RERZFEDINITE -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply Chain 119
REREMISIEBS.4 environmentally preferrable products and services Management

when selecting suppliers, and how they are HEgEER

implemented and monitored.

A BRE R R RS (2 (2 2 IR R E @ MIRTE V18

Bl - PANAEREENTT M B R L FEOIN A -
Aspect Bé Product Responsibility
[EEIB6EREF
General Disclosure Information on: Product 120-124
—RIRE (@) the policies; and Responsibility

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations EmAf

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.

BHREERMBRBNEREZS  ES  BE8EL

FLRE =B IA R AR A8

(@) BER: &

(b) BTHETABEAZENHEMERILERNE

or
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

Section/Statement

Page number

TELGE  EE - —REEREEEVEE(MEE BEE EN
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped It is not relevant to Not applicable
BA S4B M I51EB6.1 subject to recalls for safety and health reasons. the Group's business. TiEF

EEACERERARTRLE EERIEHMAR YK Ih TR BN R [ 2 7S

NBEDHT 1R -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Product 123
BERENIEEBG.2 received and how they are dealt with. Responsibility

BRERNE M MR IRFE B AR EETTE - EmEE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product 123
BRENIERBG.3 protecting intellectual property rights. Responsibility

it B AR IR A E A RO E B EmBAE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product 121-122
BEENIEEB64 procedures. Responsibility

fil B 848 F PR REMEWIRT EmEE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Product 123-124
BARENIEEBSL.S privacy policies, how they are implemented and Responsibility

monitored. EmEE

Rt B EERMRE RALBEE - ARBERTRE

BIE °
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption
BEB7RESS
General Disclosure Information on Anti-corruption 124-125
—RIFE (a) the policies; and k&S

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BRI LB - 9% - BEFRARE

@) BE: M

b) BTHBETARBEAXENREERIERNE

o

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding  No case discovered Not applicable

AR ENIEERT.1

corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

R EPREET AR EERLIEEENEISTH
AEMREE M AER -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

Section/Statement

Page number

TELHE - BEH - —REEREBEEVEE(ME1) EE EW/N
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Anti-corruption 124-125
EEMIEERT.2 whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are xE)S
implemented and monitored.
M &S Em R BRIET - ARBERITRERS
io
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Anti-corruption 124-125
BRENIEERT.3 directors and staff. RES
HilmEERE TREMNRESEI -
Community
HE
Aspect B8 Community Investment
EEBSH ERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand Community 126-127
—RIEE the needs of the communities where the issuer Investment
operates and to ensure its activities take into HERE
consideration the communities’ interests.
AN RBER T RETALEMEL 2T EME
REZEBEFHEEBLEFEABOR ©
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Community 127
BAE & MI51EBS.1 environmental concerns, labour needs, health, Investment
culture, sport). HEEE
EXEREB(UHE BREE BIFK &
Rk 885) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the Community 128-129
FREMIEIERS.2 focus area. Investment
EEFEEABAER(INSERRME) HERE
Note 1: All general disclosures and KPIs under “Subject Area A. Environmental” and “Subject M1 P —MRBERI EZEBHBARS IR FEHEB AL
Area B. Social” are “comply or explain” provisions which set out in the ESG Guide. BB ANBREBISEIRE  He REARERE
SIFT# 2 [ N8 T REAREE 15X
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 AR

EY:

To the shareholders of Wecon Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Wecon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 147 to 235, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R

BREEXER

REBERPNEEHE - BREZFEIHRM
BERAMGRAMBHREATRRERNER
BN ELBEGEVBRREEXEER
KRR ER  MAERZEFTREBE
RER - TXHARMNWEBZ TN EE
SEZR -

B BIIARE LD F LA E R
KAFEMNE T SRR EE - BIEEZ
EFRRBFZEREBENEM - At - BFIW
BERTERENITREHFENGRE MR
REASHRRARRMRANEREF - &F
BREFNERBIERBATEENES A
BIPIABEM AR & M IRR B B RIR M
Ef o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HRELEE

Accounting for construction contracts

BEEHNNETEE

RRELSEER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNELTFINEERREREE

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group's
revenue and costs recognised for construction
contracts amounted to approximately HK$726.0
million and HK$699.8 million, respectively.

HE2024F3A3NBIFE  EEEMEERSOERH
Was R AN D R4 B726. 08 B TT R 699.8F E B T o

The Group's revenue from construction contracts
is recognised over time using the output method,
based on direct measurement of the values
transferred by the Group to the customers with
reference to the certified values of work performed
up to the end of the reporting period and the
estimated total revenue for the contracts entered
into by the Group. The Group’s contract costs are
recognised when work is performed, together with
any provision for expected onerous contracts.

EREEERBREERTRARE X TIENRAEE
AREEEERIAHZEHREaMER TEFPZEE
MEEE  EREMNEES QKSR R AR
BHER - EREMNAORAREIT LIEREREMAEH
EBEANBREIELRER -
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We performed the following procedures in relation to
the recognition of revenue and costs for construction
contracts:

BRP2RITA TR » NHERREES N MR

e performing analysis of revenue, gross profit and
cost structure of construction contracts;
Hiles - ENSEES DK ANEEETOMN

e obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the Group's process and control over contract

revenue and contract cost recognition and
budget estimation;

TR FHE SR B YA X W M A KIS FERR A K
REMET R RIE R

e testing the calculation of the revenue and profit
recognised from construction contracts;

RIRZEA 2 R et Mo M REHE

e checking if the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation
agreed with the customers’ latest architect
certificates;

RHBANETEE TR ERERRETP

AEERS 2

RATA R EE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BRERSE

Accounting for construction contracts (continued)

BELHNEEE (E)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R

RRELSER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNERTENNEEHRERSE

The Group’s revenue and costs for contract works
were quantitatively significant to the Group's
consolidated financial statements as a whole and the
recognition of contract revenue and profit relied on
management’s estimate of the final outcome of each
contract, which involved the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in forecasting
the costs to complete a contract, in valuing contract
variations, claims and potential liquidated damages
and in estimating the provision for onerous contracts.

BEEENANIRKGE LKA EEEEGEAVBHRRE
BMEBREEKN eSO NEREEEEE
HEBHNRRERNMGS - B RITEERETEAE -
LERERZRAORAN - A OEE - BRNE

BEHEEREEE  URGBAEBERAORE -

The accounting policies, accounting judgements
and estimates and disclosures for the recognition
of revenue from construction contracts are included
in notes 3, 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BEEBRERAOMB WS SRR - ST HE L&
FHARBBRENGE M ERRMEES - 4R6 -

discussing with management and the respective
project teams about the progress of major
projects and the estimates and assumptions
adopted in the forecast of contract costs,
including estimated costs to completion,
assessment of potential liquidated damages
for major contracts and provision for onerous
contracts;

EEENZHA BN mEREEMNE
LA)SZTE/EUE' IR PR A B (5T R RAR - Fjéixl
MR TERONEBEEE TIRERENESE
BB RS

checking the supporting documents of the
budgets on a sampling basis, which included
sub-contracting contracts, material purchase
contracts and price quotations; and

AT AR HBENE EHX#F BEIESR
#) - MEERBA QR ME

comparing last year’s budget against current
year's budget or actual costs incurred for major
contracts on a sampling basis.

KT AR EFNREEAFENAERTES
MELMERKAEITHER
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BB R

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R

EERRE
(&)

MBEBRARENSE

RS EMIEHAE BAREEBEET
HEEBEFELENEN  YEERBLT
WEESELLEENEE  UREREFE

REREHER  RIERRIEZTAEHKE
SEBRIEFILE - HPIEEMERNEY
(A

H BEAR

DILE

ERREFEEZZESHMBTE
%% ﬁ7f ﬁm/}lﬁimf{f"

REEMHRBERGS M B HRAREN
B

Bz B EREEFREFRAM B MARER
ENEFHEHRRFFRERMEH 2 EAHE
ARER - 3 R EARMIE R Z A% B R
Fo ARESERNBATMES—EREMAER
W MEEMAE - A THAREARTY
TREMATBESAERT -

BEFRERRKFHRE - BTEERERR
BB ERETHNEZAREEREAER
BRA - $AERPRAM AT EARFE SR BE AR E L - WA
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

144

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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BB R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Yuk Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

26 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEmRAMEERAR

Year ended 31 March 2024

HZE2024F3A318IFE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE TF# T FHET
REVENUE g &= b 1,160,370 869,032
Cost of sales 5 B AR (1,115,274) (830,011)
Gross profit ER 45,096 39,021
Other income and gains E AU A R Wz 6 7,158 13,242
Administrative and other operating T R EAMGERE -
expenses, net R (45,098) (45,403)
Finance costs BA TS AR 2R 7 (272) (180)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AT R 8 6,884 6,680
Income tax FTiS®t 11 (883) (733)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE XA R#EEEE AELS
INCOME FOR THE YEAR FRBHNREZEBA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY Febc]
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 6,001 5,947
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE #AARIEREE AENG
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BRER
COMPANY 18
— Basic and diluted —EARKREE HKO.8 cents HKO0.7 cents
0.87ll 07784l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 March 2024
20244 3A31H

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
L TFE T FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 14 7,055 9,271
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 9,515 7,021
Financial assets at fair value RAREF A BTN ERMEE
through profit or loss 16 12,805 13,383
Prepayments and deposits AT RIE R RS 18 10,536 4,123
Total non-current assets IRBEELE 39,911 33,798
CURRENT ASSETS hRBEE
Contract assets and trade EHEEREHEWIA
receivables 17 389,692 251,761
Prepayments, deposits and other  FB[IFRIE » {&d R EMERGK
receivables | 18 33,917 57,013
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABRNCREE
through profit or loss 16 19,010 13,735
Pledged deposits EHFER 19 34,190 34,190
Cash and bank balances IR& MIRTTA SR 19 77,467 64,226
Total current assets BN EEETE 554,276 420,925
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and retention payables B o RNFIARENRES 20 176,184 129,115
Other payables and accruals o FE < FRIA M FE 5T B 21 129,037 35,970
Lease liabilities HEAE (5 5,748 aL1%53
Tax payable FERTHEIE 964 455
Total current liabilities REBEEEEE 311,933 169,693
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 242,343 251,232
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #AEERARDAE
LIABILITIES 282,254 285,030
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI &
31 March 2024
20245 3A31H
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FHET FAET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EFREBERS
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE 22 384 618
Lease liabilities HERE 15 3,541 2,566
Total non-current liabilities FRBABELE 3,925 3,184
NET ASSETS EEFH 278,329 281,846
EQUITY k=
Equity attributable to equity RATEREE AEGEZR
holders of the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 23 8,000 8,000
Reserves e 24 270,329 273,846
Total equity s 278,329 281,846
Tsang Ka Yip Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry
BRE B R
Director Director
EF o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

meEm B ER

Year ended 31 March 2024

HZE2024F3A31HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARBERE AR
Shares held
Issued Share Merger  under share Retained Total
capital premium* reserve*  award plan* profits* equity
RERH
KR
BREARE  ROBE  AKEE FARERDT  REERN ags
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TARL TARL TARL TARL TARL TARL
(note 24())  (note 24(ii))
(Wrz24)  (HEEE24i)
At 1 April 2022 #202254R1R 8,000 61,231 18,900 (99¢) 192,553 285,688
Profit and total comprehensive EREFREZERNEE
income for the year = = = = 5,947 5,947
Final 2022 dividend declared BERRHA02EHKE 12 = (9,536) = 2 = (9,536)
Purchase of shares held under BERERHRE 2R
share award plan AR 24(ii) = = = (253) = (253)
At 31 March 2023 and ROBF3IANBR
1 April 2023 2023%4R18 8,000 57,695 18,900 (1,249 198,500 281,846
Profit and total comprehensive EREHREERALE
income for the year = = = = 6,001 6,001
Final 2023 dividend declared EERAHNBFHRS 12 - (9,518) - - - (9,518)
At 31 March 2024 R2024%63A318 8,000 48177 18,900 (1,249) 204,501 278,329
s These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$270,329,000 (2023: % ZERFRGBREREAMBRARANEGES #EB

HK$273,846,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A =
GEHERER
Year ended 31 March 2024
HZE2024F3A31BIFE

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BIsE FH&T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHABRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R 75 A A 6,884 6,680
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs BT RS 272 180
Interest income FEMA 6 (3,056) (1,712)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HERAAEHABSENSE
fair value through profit or loss, net BEzWE  F8 6 (355) (1,468)
Dividend income from equity RARE ABRORERE
investments at fair value through profit Z B BHA
or loss 6 (1,222) (1,143)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair Tﬁ@f‘tfﬁﬁ]\?ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂ@%ﬁﬁ?
value through profit or loss, net ZAREERE  FHE 8 3,157 635
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) BE 5 &SR (zs) 2 ©)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BEKERERE
equipment 1,665 2,035
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 5,648 5,639
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of AHBERE CRERR)
contract assets, net Pt (49) 426
Impairment of trade receivables, net B S W IARE - TR 303 352
Loss on disposal and write-off of items & RMEEY 2 - B RS
of property, plant and equipment HE &R 8 207 =
13,456 11,621
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets and & XEENE 5 R IE®K LD~
trade receivables (1) (138,185) 70,462
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FERFRIA ~ 2@ R E A EUEIA
deposits and other receivables (38 m) 7,164 (9,405)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and retention B 5 A FIE K B[R E & 18
payables i/ Crd) 47,069 (55,891)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and H b FIB M EFTE RGN,
accruals R A>) 93,067 (16,460)
Cash generated from operations KETEEFTRIRE 22,571 327
Interest portion of lease payments HERNZF LD (272) (143)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNEAFEH (608) (874)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating & &EBEFTS(FTA)RE&ERE
activities HRE 21,691 (690)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER
Year ended 31 March 2024
EZE2024F3A31BILFE

2023
20234
HK$'000

T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Loans to subcontractors

Repayment of loans to subcontractors

Interest received

Purchases of items of property, plant and

equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of

property, plant and equipment

Purchases of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Dividends received from equity

investments at fair value through profit

or loss

Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time
deposits with original maturity of more
than three months when acquired

REZHHERERE

BT BENER

7 BEEREER
BEWFE

BEME  BFENMREEE

HEME - BEKRREHEB ZM
B50R

BERAAEFABRGSNERE
B
HERRAAEFABENERE
B TS 50R

WER B 3% A R (Bt AR s A R
BEZBE

REERRIBAZR=(EAK
FHRIREHEROR D (42 0)

(16,488)
12,929
1,712

(1,034)

(23,865)

17,364

1,143

(5,215)

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing

activities

REZBHE/(FIRARSRE
R

(13,454)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Purchase of shares held under share

award plan

Interest paid

Principal portion of lease payments

Dividend paid

MEZHRERERE

FIRITE R
ERRITER
BERER Y ZEF B E R

%)

BENFE
HENRAE D
EfBRE

24(ii)

Net cash flows used in financing activities

REEBMAREREFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n/-_r\ Iﬁzéljlbiﬁ

Year ended 31 March 2024

BN 202453 A31HIEFE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BIsE FH&T T
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HERBESE@YHM,(GRD)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HE 18,458 (29,489)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#IH& MRS EEY
of year 59,011 88,500
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JMNEEXREE)H)FE (2) -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRREERASEEY
END OF YEAR 77,467 59,011
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReERAESEEYEHR 2N
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 72,037 27,948
Non-pledged time deposits I E BT X 5,430 36,278
Cash and bank balances as stated in the ?%1@-\:917]%#%%%%25%@&@&
consolidated statement of financial 1745
position 77,467 64,226
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B RIEERRIBEZN=(E
original maturity of more than FH) SR T BifF R
three months when acquired - (582415)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in mealRenERMIICRE MR
the consolidated statement of /i\%;fﬁf‘%
cash flows 77,467 59,011
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR M aE

31 March 2024
2024F3H831H

154

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 23 March 2018.
The registered address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is located at Room 1801-1802, 18/F.,
Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-252 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Group's subsidiaries were principally engaged
in the provision of building construction and repair,
maintenance, alteration and addition ("RMAA") works

services.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Triple Arch Limited, which was incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the "BVI").
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARRAXEEER(Z)
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries BERKE D RER
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: RATRIMBRAB ZFFENT :
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary Percentage of equity Principal
Name registration and business share capital  attributable to the Company  activities
£ AR T R A BT ERAREERERDL TEEHR
EBRRA
Direct Indirect
Hik %k
Wecon Holdings (BVI) Limited ~ BVI Us$1 100 - Investment holding
RERIES E RERR
Wecon Limited Hong Kong HK$2,600,100 - 100 Provision of building
BIFRRE Bk 2,600,100/ 7T construction and

maintenance services

REETRERFRERYE

Wecon Construction & Hong Kong HK$17,400,000 - 100  Provision of building
Engineering Limited B 17,400,000/ 7T construction services
BTEEBRAAF REETEERS
RH Studio Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Provision of building
BE 10,000 7T information modelling
services

R REE BRARSE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ER AR MY

31 March 2024
2024F3A31H

2.1

156

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. Profit or loss and each component of
other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and exchange fluctuation reserve;
and recognises the fair value of any investment retained
and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MEE

31 March 2024

2024F3H31H

2.2 CHANGES

158

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1 and

Insurance contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs

that are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
The Group has disclosed the material accounting
policy information in note 3 to the financial statements.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items
in the Group’s financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between

changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since
the Group's approach and policy align with the
amendments, the amendments had no impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The adoption has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MEE

31 March 2024

2024F3H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d) Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published
by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development. The amendments also introduce
disclosure requirements for the affected entities to help
users of the financial statements better understand
the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar
Two income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar
Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known
or reasonably estimable information of their exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the
legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but not
yet in effect. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively. Since the Group did not fall within the
scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the amendments
did not have any impact to the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements. The Group intends to apply these

revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback'

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)"

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the 2022 Amendments”)"

Supplier Finance Arrangements’

Lack of Exchangeability’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

g No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

162

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute
a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024

2.3 © BB & R 4 M & 8 B 55 3R

HER(E)

EABBKERARARB Z&EE B
BmE R 2 E—FERFRTX -

FEMBHRELRFI0R BB S
A F285R (BRI AN )RR IEE BT B |
HERFI105 M E L G5 ERF285
HMEEREABIREEEEBZE AR
BECERZAZEEREIIERNT
—HE - RFERIARE  BEELE
SEBBR—IAEHE - BEBERT
BRPEENRELER - EXH R
TER-—EEBNEER  AZXHE
R s RS ENZIREE B BT i
R EEUATHERRE BN R E AR
HEELFENWERBR - ZFEFTAH
REWEMR - BEEHMASEIVET
TREEEMHBERELNEI0RLE
B G R85 (E 7] ) /Y 58 il £
WA o A - ZFER] AR A IR

BRMBHRELERE165R(ERTA)ET
REN - ABEARRGEERELDRS

EBATSHREMREBEAREED
FAREBIEESRE - ZZEEBITARN
2024F 1 A1 R 2 % FB M FE M
ER - W B BREAREBY RS E
BIZE165E & X FE R B EA(BN201941 A1
HI)ZRIINNERBERRS - Z251E
RN ETIRAIER - ZFEET AT
SHAEBM B RERBREMNERE
%0 o

=
=



2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an
equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification of
that liability as current or non-current. Additional disclosures
are required for non-current liabilities that are subject to
the entity complying with future covenants within 12 months
after the reporting period. The amendments shall be
applied retrospectively with early application permitted. An
entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required
to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision but is not in a position to state whether
these amendments would have any significant impact on its
financial position.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

164

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require
additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist
users of financial statements in understanding the effects
of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application
of the amendments is permitted. The amendments provide
certain transition reliefs regarding comparative information,
quantitative information as at the beginning of the annual
reporting period and interim disclosures. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or to the cumulative amount of translation
differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
contract assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis or
reducing balance basis to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:
Land and buildings Over the shorter of the lease
term and 25 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Machinery and equipment  20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis or
reducing balance basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Leased buildings ~ Over the lease term

Motor vehicles 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of offices (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of
scanners and copiers that are considered to be of low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified
or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised
as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 1.5 years past due. The Group
has rebutted the 90 days past due presumption of default
based on reasonable and supportable information,
including the Group’s credit risk control practices and
the historical recovery rate of financial assets over 90
days past due. However, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised
cost or fair value through profit or loss. A financial liability
is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is held
for trading, is a derivative or is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value with net gains or losses,
including interest expenses, recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Interest expenses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantees contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract assets

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods
or provide service to the customer. A contract asset is
recognised when the Group has the right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer when that right is conditional on
something other than the passage of time.

The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and
have substantially the same characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same type of contracts. Impairment
policy for trade receivables as explained above also applies
to contract assets. They are reclassified to trade receivables
when the right to the consideration becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Shares held under share award plan

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group's own equity instruments.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in profit or
loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

* when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods

or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Revenue from the provision of building construction
services and RMAA works services is recognised over time,
using an output or input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service by performance
obligations, because the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced. The output method recognises
revenue by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the work certified
up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of
total contract value for each contract. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs for
satisfaction of the services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
contract. Claims are accounted for as variable consideration
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
The Group uses the expected value method to estimate
the amounts of claims because this method best predicts
the amount of variable consideration to which the Group
will be entitled.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously
proposed and declared, because the Company's
memorandum and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Claims to customers

Claims are amounts that the Group seeks to collect from
the customers as reimbursement for costs not included
in the contract price. The measurement of the amounts
of revenue arising from claims is subject to a high level
of uncertainty and often depends on the outcome of
negotiations. Therefore, judgement is made to determine
whether it is probable that the customers will accept
the claims and to estimate the amount of claims to be
accepted by the customers in order to recognise such
claims as contract revenue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Accounting for construction contracts

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
has recognised revenue of HK$726,022,000 (2023:
HK$560,670,000) from building construction services.
The Group has primary responsibility to fulfilment of the
contract and quality of the overall work and has discretion
in selecting subcontractors and determining the pricing for
subcontractors. Thus, the Group is acting as the principal
and recognises revenue on a gross basis. The Group's
revenue from construction contracts is recognised over time
using the output method and is measured in accordance
with the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations, which is measured based on
direct measurements of the value transferred by the Group
to the customers with reference to the certified value of
the work performed. The determination of the progress
of the building construction service involves judgements.
The Group has quantity surveyors to periodically measure
the value of work performed for each construction project
and the work performed also certified by the customers’
quantity surveyors.

Budgeted contract costs are prepared by the management
on the basis of contract concluded with and/or quotations
provided by major subcontractors, suppliers or vendors
involved from time to time, the experience of the
management and current market condition. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract costs to
completion, variation orders and contract claims prepared
for each contract work as the contract progresses.
Significant judgement is required in estimating contract
costs to completion, variation works and contract claims
which may have an impact to the total outcome of the
contract and recognition of profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment assessment for contract assets and trade
receivables

The policy for impairment of contract assets and trade
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of recoverability and ageing analysis of contract assets
and trade receivables as well as other quantitative and
qualitative information and the management calculated the
lifetime ECLs based on historical credit loss experience,
and on management’s judgement and assessment of
the forward-looking information. Management applied
judgement and estimates in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, based on the current
creditworthiness, the past collection history and subsequent
settlements of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provisions may be required. The carrying amount of
contract assets and trade receivables at 31 March 2024 was
HK$389,692,000 (2023: HK$251,761,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements.

WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024

BEAEHE R (E)

fhEt PRER R

RIEEE - BEARRERAERS
EEEEA T — R EARE
2 RIAMEEBR R TRERE
2 oty EBAOR - I TFTAL -

BHBEREZ BEWH A BEF

AEENEHNEERE S ERIGERE
BENDEREGHNEERE S RIEIED
A E M R AR D TR E AR E M E 2
MEMER  MEBBERBEEES
B UREEBHAEEERNH
BT R E M E 2 EREEEE -
BEATGZSRBREZ ZKER
B BEERSEFPHNEREE  BAK
RO AR K R 18 45 PR A FI B R AE AT o
fin 2N 68 B 35 = B9 B 765 1K 0 88 2 T 1 55
HAREES - RIRpeE E AN - 1
202453 A310 ' EREERZEHEK
FXE /) BR T {8 /52 389,692,000% 7T.(2023
F 1 251,761,000/ 70) » #—FHFIBER
B TS mARMIE1 73R EE -



OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their services and has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Construction contracts; and
(b) RMAA

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before

tax.

The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's profit before tax except that other
income and gains, fair value changes on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, net, depreciation
(unallocated portion), impairment/reversal of impairment
of contract assets and trade receivables, net, finance costs
and unallocated head office and corporate expenses, are

excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude property, plant and equipment,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, pledged
deposits, cash and bank balances and other unallocated
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

e RRE R

AERBENME ﬁ‘i HEREE D
EBEM - MERZ2REEDEAOT

Eﬁ/j&ﬁjxﬁaéq/@&u;'féﬁiﬁﬁﬁ g’ %n:
EAHESAREEESBEE - DT
FKIDIRIE A 285 5 A (A 2L
ARRBIATR M) a7 G o

RRHERBADENF EN D N EAEE
FREL AT AEt B RT3 — B0 HEAUR
ARWeE BAREBEFABENER
/éfFZ’&ftTEmEb R E(RS
B#n) - BHEEKRE 5B IER
fﬁ/i@i@ﬁé@ C RER - ISR ARR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ER AR MY

31 March 2024
2024F3A31H

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. &R&HWER(E)

() Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DIHEE - EERERE
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments BB 20245 &2023F3H318 Lk
as provided to the Group's key management personnel FEHERERKRT G ERRM
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment T AAEETIEZEREASRH
of segment performance for the years ended 31 March BRAAREER 2| FERET A
2024 and 2023 is set out below. TS

Construction contracts RMAA Total
BEAN KBREBIE CE

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
2024% 2003% 2024% 2003% 2024% 20035
HK$'000  HK$'000 = HK$'000  HK$'000 = HK$'000  HK$'000
fex | TAx [ FEm| TEx [ TEm|  TER

Segment revenue: a8k
Revenue from external customers REMDZP 2 Wiz 726022 560,670 434348 308362 | 1,160,370 869,032
Segment results: THEER: 26,171 18289 | 18925 20732 | 45096 39,021
Other income and gains LGN L6 7,158 13,242
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair ~ BAR B ABRNESBEE L

value through profit or loss, net DAEEE  F8 (3,157) (635)
Depreciation (unallocated portion) REERAEHS) (6,841) (7,301)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) of ~ AKAERERD,/ (F(E) -

contract assets, net kel 49 (426)
Impairment of trade receivables, net BIRWKTERE 58 (303) (352)
Finance costs BTEFR AR (272) (180)
Unallocated head office and corporate RALEPREERRL

expenses (34,846) (36,689)
Profit before tax BBATRR 6,884 6,680
Income tax expense FEHAX (883) (733)
Profit for the year EREH 6,001 5,947
Segment assets and liabilities IREERER
Segment assets DEEE 322,373 229408 | 107,274 78918 | 429,647 308,326
Unallocated KA 164,540 146,397
Total assets BEE 594,187 454,723
Segment liabilities Nk 250410 123592 52846 38920 | 303256 162512
Unallocated RO 12,602 10,365
Total liabilities BaE 315,858 172,877
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B # ek i =t
31 March 2024
2024F3A318
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. &&3IBER(E)
Geographical information it @ E R
Since over 90% of the Group's revenue was generated RN BB B90% ) Wz 2k B A B
from the sales in Hong Kong and over 90% of the Group's BIHE - BARKERB0%H A5 3E
identifiable non-current assets were located in Hong Kong, MEEEMNES - S RIRRE Y
no geographical information in accordance with HKFRS 8 BREENBRA L D2 R E
Operating Segments is presented. e
Information about major customers EREIEEZEFNER
Revenue from each major customer, which accounted for FAREZETERPHAEEHKZE
10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year, is set out 10% 3 A FEY GRS T AA T -
below:
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Customer A ZFEA 414,974 269,212
Customer B =ZFB 239,679 N/A* 3@ B *
Customer C BZEC 219,597 N/A* i >
Customer D ZFED 132,788 104,669
Customer E EFE N/A* A58 B * 125,682
5 The corresponding revenues from these customers are not disclosed i Hﬂﬁ@%i%j@ﬁﬁ@ﬁ?ﬂﬁ’\ﬂﬂwﬂléiﬂiﬁzﬁ
as the revenue individually did not account for 10% or more of the FEEYE10%IA E - BEABREU S TER
Group's revenue for the year. e
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Wk HAMUWAR K=
An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows: REBHWESE AT :
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Revenue from contracts with customers X E %5 & #IHIK 25
Construction contracts BEAY 726,022 560,670
RMAA REEREETRE 434,348 308,362
1,160,370 869,032
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ER AR MY

31 March 2024
2024F3A31H

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WEREMIKARKE(Z)
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () DERzZEH
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BZE2024F3A3NBIEFE

Construction

Segments contracts RMAA Total
2 BEEH HEREBIRE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET FHET
Type of services PR % %8 B
Building construction services EFRERS 726,022 = 726,022
RMAA works services KEREETIRRE = 434,348 434,348
Total revenue from contracts REBEP &R
with customers e zs 726,022 434,348 1,160,370
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B ZE2023F3A3MBILF R

Construction

Segments contracts RMAA Total
PaN:i! BESH) REREEIR #aEtT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Type of services PR % %8 Bl
Building construction services EFEIERS 560,670 - 560,670
RMAA works services RKERETIRRE - 308,362 308,362
Total revenue from contracts with REBEF &R
customers W x5 560,670 308,362 869,032
The Group's revenue from contracts with customers AEEERMERREEFE L
was recognised over time. Was o
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations

For the building construction and other RMAA works
services, the performance obligation is satisfied
over time as services are rendered and payment
is generally due within 30 days from the date of
billing. As at 31 March 2024, the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations was HK$1,889,064,000 (2023:
HK$1,818,871,000), and the Group will recognise
this revenue in the future when the buildings are
completed, which are expected to occur over the next
12 to 48 months.

For RMAA works services under term contracts, the
performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30
days from the date of billing. The Group applies the
practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and
does not disclose the amount of the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance obligations
for contracts with an original expected duration of one
year or less.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

6. WamkHMKARYEE)

REAFFANNWE (&)

(ii)

BRIEE

REFEEAREMFEEREET
BIRBME - ARERERE - M
MR —MREZERBHR0ER
BH - MUBHE (EBERREER - B
202438318 * HEEEHRTELHE
TR R 5B 4B 5 A1,889,064,000
7T (20234 : 1,818,871,000/87T)
REBBEREFRETRE(FBEA
RIR12Z481E A M) FERA U o

SLEHIA A TEVRIE R gE TIZR
BmE BRERERSE - W
KRR BEZAHE0E AR
Hl - EM B AR REEX - A%
B EREBMIERE ERIFEI55
FI2BEMATRER L B E
RESEZH T RERAHEA—
FHRATHENBHNEENR HE
REH e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ER AR MY

31 March 2024
2024F3A31H

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WEREMIKARKE(Z)
(continued)

Other income and gains HA A K W &
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Interest income F B A 3,056 1,712
Government grants*® I RT Al A 17 2,660
Gain on disposal of financial assets at ~ HEEAR BT ABZNESRE
fair value through profit or loss, net E2 W - FE 355 1,468
Dividend income from equity BRARBEFABROREREZ
investments at fair value through & S A
profit or loss 1,222 1,143
Sundry income B A 2,508 6,259
7,158 13,242

* HZE2023F3A3MHIEFE 2B EE
EUWER B BB AITTREK IR T &R
REHEIRFERE o B IR RAARRE 2 RIERK IR

3 Government grants for the year ended 31 March 2023 mainly
represented receipt under the Employment Support Scheme from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. There

were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to the grants.

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of the Group’s finance costs is as follows:

(EE7S s E
B HE AR AN

AREBNMBERADHET

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

Interest on bank borrowings HRITHERAR - 37
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENR 272 143
272 180
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 S R B

31 March 2024
20245 3A31H

BRBE A 2 7

AEBMRBADE M IO, (GTA) T3
BRS¢

2023
20234
Notes HK$'000
s FAET
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERRETE
equipment 14 2,035
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 15(a) 5,639
Lease payments not included in the Tt AMEaEFEZH
measurement of lease liabilities Bt 348
Other charges in respect of rental FRAMEEME  EMlE
premises 229
Auditor’s remuneration ZEA & 1,070
Employee benefit expense (excluding REEAFAZ(TREE
directors’ remuneration (note 9)):* EME (H:E9)): *
Wages and salaries IERF® 90,402
Pension scheme contributions RS EIHERCER
(defined contribution scheme) HFRETE]) 3,109
O
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HERAR BT ABRD
fair value through profit or loss, net TRMEBEZ W - FHE (1,468)
Dividend income from equity BARER ABR A RE
investments at fair value through &z RBIA
profit or loss (1.143)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair ~ ZAREFFABZNSH
value through profit or loss, net** BEZ A REREE  F
-l 635
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of ~ AXI&ER(E, CR{E R
contract assets, net** |) - FREe 17 426
Impairment of trade receivables, net** B ZIEWRIERE
R 17 357
Loss on disposal and write-off of items HE R - BB R
of property, plant and equipment** RABIEE B =
*  The employee benefit expense included in cost of sales was % T ASHE KA K E B 8 FIF X /378,966,000

HK$78,966,000 (2023: HK$75,347,000).

**  Amounts are included in “Administrative and other operating
expenses, net” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

77T (20234 : 75,347,000/ 7T) °

> SEEHARCBSEREMEERARZ
(TR R E LR - FEIA -

BIZRERAT  FiHR2028



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MEE

31 March 2024

2024F3A31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERESTHAEEM
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, BRIE ETARB] - BB QR REDIFE383(1)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (@ b)) kHELAR(EEEZESER
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and mBRDROE 2 BEBENANFREES
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about NEEITHRAEFHMAT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TETT
Fees e 560 560
Other emoluments: HfhEr B
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REMET 4,148 3,950
Pension scheme contributions RSB R CERERGED
(defined contribution scheme) 329 305
4,477 4,255
5,037 4,815
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FAENBILIENTESTNEEN
during the year were as follows: ik
2024 2023
20244 2023
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET R
Dr. Lau Chi Keung 25 E+ 180 180
Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond BRRN IR ST A 180 180
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel B 8 5 A 200 200
560 560
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAREENBIIERITESHE
independent non-executive directors during the year € (20234 : &) ©
(2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 S R B

31 March 2024
20245 3A31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. BEERBE{THAESHMZ

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) HMITEERESTHAE

2024 20245
Executive directors: HTESE
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (“Mr. Tsang")* BRELA([EEE )
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip BRREE
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry BRGEEAE
2023 2023%
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Tsang* B - 1,950 162 2112
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip PR EAE - 1,161 79 1,240
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry BREES & - 839 64 903
- 3,950 305 4,255
o Mr. Tsang is the executive director and the chief executive - BAERARRNITESHRITHA
officer of the Company. # o
There was no arrangement under which a director REANBBRESHENFERET
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during A F B2 ZBE (20234 : &) o

the year (2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MEE

31 March 2024

2024F3A31H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 10. EBBREHFAL

The five highest paid employees during the year ended
31 March 2024 included two (2023: two) directors of the
Company, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
three (2023: three) non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

HZE2024F3A31BILEE  Ad&e
¥ e B B IEAR MM E(2023F -
MB)EE  HEFMFEEMN £
9o H#p=F(2023F | ZR)IEBER
FEEEITHRABZSHFMEERFAZ
FNFIEEIIT ¢

2024 2023

20245 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR T FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & ~ EEE R EWEH 5,823 5,635
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIER 95 93
5,918 5,728

The number of the non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

HIE TSI BERNZ IFEERIERDT
BAB&=FHMEE ABESIAT

Number of employees

EEHE
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7T 21,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001;% 72 22,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T % 2,500,000/ 7T - =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £ 3,000,000/ 7T 1 1
& 3

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to any of the non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2023: Nil).
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11. INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the BVI. Hong Kong profits tax has
been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime effective from the year of assessment 2018/2019.
The first HK$2,000,000 (2023: HK$2,000,000) of estimated
assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining estimated assessable profits are taxed at
16.5%.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

1. FiB#H

BERSHERRBELES ZHAIK
RO AEEDERNAESHEREE
BRRBESEMMEE - MG
BRERNERTBELZGAERTER
LA B R16.5% (20234 : 16.5%) 5 12 #
% HAEE—FMBARKRIN £
2018/20195% Ft F [5 #8 A4 7 /9 F) 15 B /i
BHTHEERELRE - ZMBARZME
ST FE SR B F 85 2,000,000/ 7T (20234
2,000,000/ 7T ) LATR % 8.25% &1 8 - A
BR B 1 51 FE AR 0 a5 ) Bl DA B R16.5%5T
7 o

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Current — Hong Kong BNHA — &%

Charge for the year FAX M 1,124 953

Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BEFERETRE
(BRERE) @) 8
Deferred (note 22) AEFE (M 3E22) (234) (228)
Total tax charge for the year FABIEAST 883 733
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT RS SRR BT 5

31 March 2024

202443 A31H

11. INCOME TAX (continued) 1. FrBH (&)

BORERRETE 2 RV AT 8 A
AX HERERR R E 2 IR

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory tax rate to the tax expense at

the effective tax rate is as follows: HERWT -
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Profit before tax B A B A 6,884 6,680
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% REEMEN16.5%TEH A 1,136 1,102
Concession under the two-tiered rate ZHRMETHER (165) (165)
Income not subject to tax AN AR A (404) (951)
Expenses not deductible for tax RO S2 183 599
Adjustments in respect of current tax of  FHE AT BRI AYBIERES 1B
previous periods (7) 8
Tax losses not recognised AR IEEE 140 140
Tax charge at the Group's BRASEERTRAENHIE
effective tax rate X 883 733
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12.

13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS AR YL
31 March 2024
2024F3H31H
DIVIDENDS 12. BB
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Final dividend in respect of the previous  FRE{J_E— & B F Z AR Ef
financial year paid during the year — &S —
HK1.2 cents (2023: HK1.2 cents) EhCE B .28
per ordinary share (20234 : 1.27%84l) 9,518 9,536
Proposed final dividend — BEAARE—
HK1.2 cents (2023: HK1.2 cents) BT BBR.281
per ordinary share (20234 : 1.27%84l) 9,600 9,600

The payment of a final dividend in respect of the financial
year ended 31 March 2023 of HK1.2 cents per share,
totalling HK$9,518,000, was based on the number of
ordinary shares in issue less shares held under share award
plan.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. These financial statements do not
reflect the final dividend payable.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$6,001,000 (2023: HK$5,947,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
793,204,000 (2023: 794,592,877) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation for the year ended 31 March 2024 is the
number adjusted to reflect the 6,796,000 (2023: 6,796,000)
ordinary shares held by the trustee under the share award
plan of the Company.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

3.

BIEZERERAA

IR B E2023F3A3TBH LM BFRE 2
REI AR B & .28 (& 719,518,000
BIT) AR BT E BB B R
RE)ETEIR B 2B °

FREZARAR B BFARABRRNIE
ERRBFEANS LHERTAIEER - Z
FEATE R I R AR A R AR R

RARESRSFAARLGESREF

BREABFZ RBIIERAN QD A
@ A A B 1L F W& 716,001,000 7T
(20234 : 5,947,000 T ) R ERN D
B 17 I 38 A% 00 4 15 20793,204,0000%
(20234 : 794,592,8770% )5t & -

HZE2024F3A31B I FEARTER
BN ZEHE - B
RERAA RIS SRE T EIIE TRZEEA
F5E2.6,796,0008% (20234 : 6,796,000
i) L imAR o

B 220245 K2023F3A3NA LFE -
ARBTEABEESYENDETE
A o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EA RS R R MR
31 March 2024
20244F3A318
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERKRE
31 March 2024 202453A31H
At 1 April 2023: R2023F4A18 :
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation LEE
Net carrying amount BEEE
At 1 April 2023, net of R2023F4R1H
accumulated depreciation HEFTE
Additions NE
Disposal and write-off HE R MR
Depreciation provided for FNTERE
the year

At 31 March 2024, net of R2024F3A318 -
accumulated depreciation BRTE

At 31 March 2024: R2024F3H318 :
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE
Net carrying amount REFE

206 WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023/2024



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. ¥1% - BERRE(E)

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Land and Leasehold and  and office Motor
buildings improvements  equipment equipment vehicles Total
XA KE
HRET MENERE BELRE ERRE HE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR TR THER THER TER
31 March 2023 2023%3H31H
At 1 April 2022: M202244R18 :
Cost A 900 3,648 3,186 8,029 7,344 23,107
Accumulated depreciation Rt HTE (900) (3,648) (1,494) (4,145) (2648 (12,835)
Net carrying amount REFE - 2 1,692 3,884 4,696 10,272
At 1 April 2022, net of 202254 A8
accumulated depreciation RREHTE - = 1,692 3,884 4,696 10,272
Additions NE - = = 681 353 1,034
Depreciation provided for FARERR
the year - - (309) (829) (897) (2,035)
At 31 March 2023, net of R2023%3A318 »
accumulated depreciation BRHTE - - 1,383 3,736 4152 9,271
At 31 March 2023: M202343A318 :
Cost A 900 3,648 3,186 8,710 7,697 24,141
Accumulated depreciation Rt HTE (900) (3,648) (1,803) (4,974) (3,545 (14,870)
Net carrying amount REFE - - 1,383 3,736 4,152 9,271
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was HE2021F3A3BHEFE 5 &
granted a government grant of HK$1,479,000 related to HEBEE THHEREER ([ EH#tE
purchase of certain items of machinery and equipment R 1) & X BUT 6 851,479,000 7T °
(the “"Approved Equipment”). As at 31 March 2024, M2024F3A318 - R @ F E O B
the Approved Equipment with a net carrying amount 331,000/ 7T (20234 : 404,000/ 7T ) #Y
of approximately HK$331,000 (2023: HK$404,000) was BREERBEIIEHRBRE=FNE
forbidden to be transferred, sold or leased, with a # - BENHEREUER)

view to making profits, within the first three years of its
procurement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MEE

31 March 2024

2024F3A31H

15. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for certain offices, a staff
quarter and a motor vehicle. Leases of offices, the staff
quarter and the motor vehicle have lease terms of 2 to 3
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There
are several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options which are further discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets

15. HE
REBEREEA

AEBERETHAE - —BFREBEER
AEFBEHESN - MAE  -BEES
KAERERH2E3F - —ME * &
SENEREEEESREAEBHERSE
Esh o ETHEESEREKIEERNEE
BHRTXE— TR ©

(a) RAEEE

REE 2 (EREEENFANRE

and the movements during the year are as follows: BEREZEHNOT :
Leased Motor
buildings vehicle Total
HERTF RE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 April 2022 202241 H 8,315 - 8,315
Additions NE 4,345 - 4,345
Depreciation provided WeERE (5,639) - (5,639)
As at 31 March 2023 and M2023F3HA318 &

1 April 2023 2023F 4718 7,021 - 7,021
Additions B 6,931 1,211 8,142
Depreciation provided ITERE (5,608) (40) (5,648)
As at 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31H 8,344 1,171 9515
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15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. HE (&)
REEERFBA(E)

(b) HEERRE

B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

movements during the year are as follows: W
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Carrying amount at beginning of year REFRREE 6,719 7,893
New leases FHE 8,142 4,345
Accretion of interest recognised during ~ FRIERH RIEF| &
the year 272 143
Payments (= (5,844) (5,662)
Carrying amount at end of year RERNREE 9,289 6,719
Analysed into: DR
Current portion mEER 5,748 4,153
Non-current portion ERENE D 3,541 2,566
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEBENIH B TR E#REK

note 32 to the financial statements.

327 B -
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31 March 2024
2024F3A31H

15. LEASES (continued) 15. #HE(2)

REBEREBA(E)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) FHEERIEZPHEZLEEMT :
leases are as follows:

(d)

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

2024 2023

20245 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 272 143

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FREEENITEST H 5,648 5,639

Expense relating to short-term leases BRAREEER X

— Included in cost of sales - ST ASHERAR 513 311
— Included in administrative and - FEAITEU R H A4S

other operating expenses, net B ¥ 8 37

521 348

Total amount recognised in profit or loss A8z iR 2 B %8 6,441 6,130

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note
27(c) to the financial statements.

PROFIT OR LOSS

(d) HEHIRE R AREM SRR

F27(c)P#EFE o

16. RAREFABENETHMEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P aE FET FAT
Non-current: FEFRE :
Other investment, at quoted price HEMIE BB E (a) 4,200 5,000
Life insurance policy ASRE (b) 8,605 8,383
12,805 13,383
Current: SRE :
Listed equity investments, at fair value _ETARIEIRE AR
Bt & (©) 17,362 12,729
Other investment, at quoted price HEMIRE - RREF= (c) 1,648 1,006
19,010 18,7315
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a)

The investment was classified as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss as the contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
entered into a key man life insurance policy (the
“Insurance Policy”) to insure Mr. Tsang Tsz Him
Philip, an executive director of the Company, with an
insurance company. Under the policy, the beneficiary
and policyholder are the Group.

The Group paid a one-off premium of US$1,282,063
(equivalent to HK$10,082,000 in total) for the Insurance
Policy. The Group can terminate the Insurance Policy
at any time and receive cash based on the surrender
value of the Insurance Policy at the date of withdrawal
(the “Surrender Value”).

The investment in the Insurance Policy is denominated
in United States dollars (“US$").

The investment in the Insurance Policy was mandatorily
classified as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

At 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Insurance Policy was
pledged to a bank to secure certain banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The investments were classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as they were held for
trading.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

16. RAAEBEFABENESRMEE
&)

(&

(a)

BIZRERAFA

HRANREREVIHFENESE
KRB ZRERIBEREAAE
AAABENEREE

HE2023F3A3MBILFE - K&
EE-ERBRARG L EEERE
Aﬂ% 2([RE]) - BARRAIH
TEEYHHFELERR - BER
E B ARREREALAREE

o

i

AEBERREHN —RAMKER
81282063k (& HBFER
10,082,000/ 7T ) ° 7N & [# 7] BE 5
fRIERE - WRIBRARIR A BRE
FERREBE(RRER]) WEER
% o

REREAFIT(IET])EHE °

REFERABH DB RIEAAER
ABRNEREE - TJEEEA SN
BEeRBWIFEINAERFE

20244 K 202343 A31H * (RE
DERTIRT - NERR T AREH
& TIRITRLE -

ARFERER -
BonEst AEa

SREWRERIAR
SRS REE ©
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31 March 2024

2024F3A31H

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

212

17. BREERE S ERFE

2024 2023

20244 2023%F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

L FET FAT

Other contract assets HibS5HEE 162,191 98,817
Retention receivables FEUIRE & 67,675 66,812
229,866 165,629

Less: Impairment o ORE (793) (842)
Net contract assets BHEEFR 229,073 164,787
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIA 161,295 87,347
Less: Impairment o ORE (676) (373)
Net trade receivables B S RIWGRIE T 160,619 86,974
Total et 389,692 251,761

(a)

Other contract assets consist of the Group’s rights
to consideration for works completed but unbilled
amounts resulting from construction contracts and
RMAA. Other contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional
which was generally in one to three months. As at 1
April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024, the
Group's other contract assets were HK$62,947,000,
HK$98,817,000 and HK$162,191,000, respectively.
Other contract assets increased in 2024 and 2023 due
to an increase in the ongoing provision of construction

services at the end of reporting period.
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(a)

Hitta N EEBRREASEA#EST
WIEWH%RF%*%E%%%

B (REEANUAREBRIE
@I&ﬁ%i)om%ﬂﬁ%ﬁm
iz CRAEAR—Z=@EA) - Hftt
ABREEEREZZE FHEIWGIE -
720224818 ~ 2023F3A318
}2024%3A318  AEEZ HA
BHREED R £E62,947,0007 7T
98,817,000 7T 2 162,191,0007%
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b)

Retention receivables are part of the consideration
that the customers retain which are payable on
successful completion of the contracts in order to
provide the customers with assurance that the Group
will complete its obligation satisfactorily under the
contracts, rather than to provide financing to the
customers. As at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2024, the Group's retention receivables were
HK$97,719,000, HK$66,812,000 and HK$67,675,000,
respectively. At 31 March 2024, retention receivables
are repayable within terms ranging from one to
two years. Included in the retention receivables of
HK$26,226,000 (2023: HK$21,173,000) was expected
to be recovered after more than one year. Retention
receivables of HK$41,449,000 (2023: HK$45,639,000)
are expected to be recovered within twelve months.
Retention receivables increased in 2024 because of
more contracts achieving significant progress in 2024.
Retention receivables decreased in 2023 since there
were more completed contracts.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

17. BRNEERESEWRRE(EZ)

(b)

BIZRERAFA

FRREEAEFRENT SR
8 EEAKRIDEXE LR -
NREFREAEEBIZELOTK
BABME  MIEAAMEFFRZHE
B & o 202264818 ~ 202343
A31H K2024%3A31H » KEE
2 FEWIREB & 9 5l A£97,719,0007%8
TT 66,812,000/ 7T & 67,675,000/7%
JC ° A2024F3A31H  EUIRE
CERN—EMFAEE - H - &
IR 4 26,226,00078 7T (20234 :
21,173,000 7T ) TE 2R & A — & A
FUE - EUIRE £41,449,00078
7T (20234 : 45,639,0007% 7T ) 78 Hf
BR+ =@ ARKE - BURIRE S
2024532 MR EZ SR
2024F S ERER - ARE TR
MAEKHEZ  2023FHMEKIRE S
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31 March 2024

2024F3A31H

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(c)

214

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment

of contract assets and trade receivables are as follows:

17. ENEERE S BWRIR(E)

ANEEREHERERENE
BRESBNT -

Contract assets BREE
2024 2023
20244 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At beginning of year F4]) 842 416
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) BME, CRERE)

(note 8) (KI5E8) (49) 426
At end of year FAR 793 842
Trade receivables B 5 RRIE

2024 2023

20244 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At beginning of year E7) SY8) 21
Impairment (note 8) BB (HIES) 303 352
At end of year FR 676 373

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets
and trade receivables are based on the customer
bases. The provision rates of contract assets and trade
receivables are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by customer type and rating). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(c)

(continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group's contract assets and trade

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

( (#&)

B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A31H

17. BRNEERESEWRRE(EZ)

NTHINBRAARBENEENRE
2 NGRS RE [ AR /)

receivables using a provision matrix: FERRER :
Contract assets BREE
2024 2023
2024 20234
Expected credit loss rate TEEMEEEE R 0.34% 0.51%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) @WEREE(FE7T) 229,866 165,629
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEHEEEE(TET) 793 842
Trade receivables g 5 rWRIE
2024 2023
2024 20234
Expected credit loss rate TBHEEREEX 0.42% 0.43%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REEEE(TAT) 161,295 87,347
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEHEEBEB(TET) 676 373

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially

d RBEHRROEERTENEE
(RETTHBDAREBITINRZE

unsatisfied) as at the end of the reporting period REE F RS MR RAEE TR
related to building construction and RMAA works AR -
services.
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Expected to be recognised within one year FBE#E A —F AR 939,742 949,589
Expected to be recognised after one year FBEAfSA —F1&HER 949,322 869,282
1,889,064 1,818,871

Included in the revenue recognised during the year
was HK$15,810,000 (2023: HK$17,972,000) related to
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods.

BIEZERERAA

(e) FTAFAE MR ZR15,810,0007%
(20234 : 17,972,000 jT ) £
BARHEBEITNENETER -
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31 March 2024
2024F3A31H

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(f)

216

Trade receivables represented receivables for
contract work. Management generally submits interim
payment applications to customers on a monthly basis
containing a statement setting out management’s
estimation of the valuation of the works completed
in the preceding month. Upon receiving the interim
payment application, the architect or the consultant
of the customer verifies such valuation of works
completed and issues an interim payment certificate
within 30 days. Within 30 days after the issuance
of interim payment certificate, the customer makes
payment to the Group based on the certified amount
stipulated in such certificate, deducting any retention
money in accordance with the contract.

There is a certain concentration of credit risk. The
balances of the five largest trade receivables as at 31
March 2024 represented 92.8% (2023: 83.5%) of total
trade receivables while 49.8% (2023: 35.4%) of total
trade receivables as at 31 March 2024 were due from
the largest debtor. Trade receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on
the invoice date and net of impairment, is as follows:

17. ENEERE S BWRIR(E)

B2 RUGIRIEE O TI2M B
B BEE-REZARNTFER
RHINREE - EREE—HER
BHE L —EAMTkr TRAE
RBHEE - RETHNREFR T
P eV EERN S B & X B P ST A EY
Ti2MERMEE - WHEKAE L
FHNREE - EFERBELTH
MREZRIORA - HREME
EP AT N 2 BN ER
REAONRES)AANKEEL
5K

rEBEFEETEFEERR -
R2024F3A31H A KE 5 &
WHIBESREE SR KIBERE
#992.8% (20234 : 83.5%) * MR
2024% 38318 » R AEWFIEG
Z 5 & IR IB #E B H949.8% (2023
F :35.4%) - B 5 EWFKIA L &
ETE o

RIEZZBHRLNGRE  BFE
WRTER AR B AT AN T

2024 2023

2024 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FABT

Within 3 months 3EAA 159,941 86,085
3 to 6 months 3fEZ61E A 280 180
6 to 12 months 6EZ=12ME A 398 695
Over 12 months HBiE121E A - 14
160,619 86,974
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18.

19.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A31H

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. {RIE + & RHEMEKKE
RECEIVABLES
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Prepayments TEfFRTE 23,888 42,058
Deposits and other receivables L& K E b FEFRIE 20,565 19,078
44,453 61,136
Less: Prepayments and deposits classified & : /¥ AIEREBEE 2 T8
as non-current assets B MRS (10,536) (4,123)
Current portion mENEL 33,917 57,013

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2024, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal. Included in
other receivables are loans to subcontractors of HK$190,000
(2023: HK$9,709,000) as at 31 March 2024, which are
unsecured, bear interest at 7% per annum or interest-free
and are repayable on demand.

T EEMESHNRE - 5T A Ll
EHNeRmEEESEIMENT
Ko 780 B R IE /O FE AR R TE A B o 122024
F3A3A  BEBEETHABK -
7202443 A318 - 190,000 7t (2023
F:9,7090008 T)METHEHE

KT A E A FE WK IR

A EERER

o AFEMERT% B BAL AR E

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 19. RE&RBTHAKRIKMER

DEPOSITS
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FET FAT
Cash on hand and at bank FHERRITRE 72,037 27,948
Time deposits TEBTF R 39,620 70,468
111,657 98,416
Less: Pledged deposits B EIRTE R 26 (34,190) (34,190)
Total cash and bank balances B MIRTTAE R BT 77,467 64,226
BIEZERERAT  F$2023/2024 217
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31 March 2024

2024F3A31H

19.

20.

218

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods within 4 months (2023: 6 months), and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

As at 31 March 2024, certain bank facilities were secured by

pledged deposits of HK$18,690,000 (2023: HK$11,370,000).

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and retention payables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

LR

20.

RERBITEBRRIEFER(E)

IRITR R ARITFERFELZENF
EE B o MHEIT BT K B4R A (2023
F6EA)ATE - IRBEEETE AT
AFNEBREF) B, o RITEHRIEIPFR
FRERENRENEBRITRIT o

MN2024F3A31H  ETHRTHER
17 718,690,000/ 7T (20234 :
11,370,000/ T) IR °

EZRARERENRES

RBERRREZAH2IINE ZEN
RIBERENRE SREDTOT

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Trade payables: E S ENFIE
Within 3 months EAA 113,135 61,568
Retention payables ERREB & 63,049 67,547
176,184 129,119

Retention payables were normally settled within terms
ranging from one to three years.

Trade and retention payables are non-interest-bearing.

The payment terms of trade payables are stipulated in the
relevant contracts with credit periods of 30 days in general.
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21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

22.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A31H

21. HttENRERETER

2024 2023

20244 2023%F

HK$’'000 HK$ 000

FET FAT

Other payables HAh R FIA 13,834 6,067
Accruals EEtE A 115,203 29,903
129,037 35,970

Financial liabilities of HK$63,338,000 (2023: HK$13,238,000)
as at 31 March 2024 included in other payables and
accruals are non-interest-bearing and are expected to be

settled within one year.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year

are as follows:

MN2024%F3F31H 63,338,000/ 7T
(20234 :13,238,000587T) 5T A E At fE
NHREBEREFERNEMAaE AT BT
B BN —FRER-
22. IEFER IR

ELERABERNFEANEBINT

Impairment Depreciation

of contract allowance
assets in excess
and trade of related
receivables depreciation Total
EREER it
BESEWR MHEREN
MIEMRE mERE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHERT FERT
As at 1 April 2022 K2022%4 818 72) 918 846
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FRNETAB R HRIERIE
during the year (note 11) (PftzE11) (129) 99) (228)
As at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 M2023F3H318 &
2023F4H1H (201) 819 618
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FNETABZ R HRIERIE
during the year (note 11) (FtzE11) (42) (192) (234)
As at 31 March 2024 1K2024F3H31H (243) 627 384
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MEE

31 March 2024

2024F3A31H

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. A&
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Authorised: JETE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,000R% & I& E &
HK$0.01 each 0.01 BT E B 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER
800,000,000 ordinary shares of 800,000,0000% & i& EI{E
HK$0.01 each 0.018 T E B 8,000 8,000

24.

220

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the aggregate of
the paid-up share capital of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group attributable to the controlling
shareholder prior to the group reorganisation as set
out in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 January
2019.

Shares held under share award plan

Shares acquired and held by the Company are
recognised directly in equity at cost. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, 1,492,000 ordinary shares were
purchased by the trustee of the Share Award Plan Trust
as defined in note 25 at an average price of HK$0.17
per share at a total consideration of HK$253,000. The
shares have been treated as shares held under share
award plan.
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25. SHARE AWARD PLAN

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award Plan”)
on 31 July 2020 (the "Adoption Date”), under which any
employee of the Group and its invested entities, who
contributes to the Group or its invested entities (the "Eligible
Participants”), will be entitled to participate, in order to
recognise and reward the contribution of the Eligible
Participants to the growth and development of the Group;
to give incentives to the Eligible Participants in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development
of the Group; and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

The Group has set up a trust (the “Share Award Plan
Trust”) for the purpose of administrating the Share Award
Plan. The trustee of the Share Award Plan Trust will acquire
shares of the Company to be awarded under the Share
Award Plan from The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, with a maximum amount of funds to be allocated
by the Board, and hold such shares until they are vested.
Unless early terminated by the Board, the Share Award
Plan shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from the Adoption Date.

The Share Award Plan shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares as at the Adoption Date (i.e.
80,000,000 shares) to be subscribed for the purchase of
the shares to be awarded to the Eligible Participants to be
selected by the Board.

The vesting of shares awarded to the awardees is subject
to conditions and vesting schedules as determined by the
Board at its discretion.

No share award has been granted or vested under the
Share Award Plan since the Adoption Date and up to 31
March 2024.

BIZRERAFA
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25. RAD R BT &

AAalEEE([EEE])N2020F7A4
BMB(THA B D RMN—BER D RE
FrEI(TREmMETE) @ Bt - XS
E AR EEREL BN AERRE
REEBIANEE((EEKSEHE])
BEELHE IR ASEN
BREIKEREHERNGERIEE
MAEER2EEL THE  UWBEFRSE
BREEFELERBERIELRS
REAREEE-FTERRIIEGEHA
7 o

ASEERLEFE RO EBTEE
FE1) - AEIERD RE)EE] o Bt 82
BEFEIEENETARUBTBMER S
PR R~ R AR {0 S2 B Rt 8118 NS
HARRBERD  REcBHEFEED
o WRAZEBRNEZRE - RIFE
EERTERAZLL - BRI - By =R
2% B8 54 B R 0FBEAB R
cE i

Betn B2 BT 81 NS R R A SR B
B 21T IR0 #2089 10% ( BN80,000,000
i) ERBERRTEZSHE
BERZEENRLD

BTERANBRNDEBAREESHIG
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR M EE
31 March 2024
20244E3H31H
26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 26. WAREME
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities RERE R - WA KRB EEIEL
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RNEEWT -
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Performance bonds [EHRE 49,824 64,479
The Group provided unlimited guarantees to certain ANEE [FE TIRIT R —RERR A AR
banks and an insurance company in support of the issue BIRER  UAXFRAEENE QA
of performance bonds to the Group's subsidiaries. As at BITRHREBS - R2024F3A318 -
31 March 2024, certain performance bonds granted were ++$?I’£TXJ:EZ’M%W/£EE15 500,000/ 7T
secured by pledged deposits of HK$15,500,000 (2023: (20234 : 22,820,000 7T ) 2 HEIF1F K
HK$22,820,000). YEFELR °

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 27. fReHE&REBRM T
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (a) METBELENEEEE
Interest—
bearing

bank Lease

borrowing liabilities

STRRITER HESE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FTHERT

At 1 April 2022 720224F4 A1 8 = 7,893

Changes from financing cash flows MERERNEEENE S (37) (5,519)

Interest expense FERS 37 143

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DAL EREHTEZEMAFE - (143)

New leases & = 4,345
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 M2023F3A318 &

2023F481H - @,719

Changes from financing cash flows MERSREEERNE = (5,572)

Interest expense FERX - 272

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DAL ERETEZEMAFE = (272)

New leases e = 8,142

At 31 March 2024 R2024FE3 A31H - 9,289
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27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Major non-cash transactions

(c)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$8,142,000 (2023: HK$4,345,000) and
HK$8,142,000 (2023: HK$4,345,000), respectively, in
respect of lease arrangements for leased buildings and
a motor vehicle.

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

27. RERERBRWEE(E)

(b) EBFREXRSZ

HE2024F3A3MHILFE - A&
EnEEEFRRENEERTH
5 B £8,142,0007 JT(20234
4,345,000/ 7© ) %&%8,142,0007% JT
(20234 : 4,345,000 7T ) B (£ FB
BEERHEBEIFREFE -

(c) HENRSRHHAE

AR ERERNEENRDR

statement of cash flows is as follows: EMT
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within operating activities BETEEN 793 491
Within financing activities BEEBA 5,572 5,519
6,365 6,010

28. COMMITMENTS 28. H&ifE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have

any significant capital commitments.

REBERR - NEBY EE([AEAEAN
HEIE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R T =E

31 March 2024

2024%3A31H

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BERRXS
Compensation of key management personnel of the rEETEEEEAEME
Group
The key management personnel of the Group are the rEEFEEBBABRERAFESE -
directors of the Company. Details of their remuneration 1% 55 %7 B =8 15 50 B IS SR R P 52 94 B8 -
are disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements. The MABKERFMA LTI MNFCERE
total salaries, housing allowances, other allowances and B EERL - B2 AL KRB YR (&
benefits in kind to the five highest paid individuals (note 10)BRREMBEEZEBREEL T
10) included the in-kind housing allowance of HK$1,583,000 &9 B 7286 1,583,000 7T (20234 -
(2023: HK$1,574,000) paid to Ms. Lai Yuk Lin Eliza, the 1,574,000 7T) - AEXNESEES
spouse of Mr. Tsang, for the rental payment and outgoings (BABEaEHREER)HEERAX -

of a director’s quarter, which was jointly used by Mr. Tsang.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30. ZEE S HNERMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EReRmITANREARKREAENAT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Financial assets eREE
2024 20244
Contract assets and trade receivables &HI&EENE S RIFIE
Financial assets included in STATERFIE - mE REA
prepayments, deposits and other EWFIEN SR EE
receivables

Financial assets at fair value through &R AR EFT ABEA B
profit or loss BE

Pledged deposits EER ke
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITEEER
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

3k

(continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

30. REEISHMERMITRA(E)

Financial assets (continued) EREE(E)
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RANRE R
ST AEZRA AT E 8
TREE TREE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT
2023 20234
Contract assets and trade receivables &#IEENE 5 EWFHIE = 251,761 251,761
Financial assets included in FTATERFIE - mE REA
prepayments, deposits and other EWRIBR © R E E
receivables - 19,078 19,078
Financial assets at fair value through HARBEABEAOSH
profit or loss BE 27,118 = 27,118
Pledged deposits EHRER - 34,190 34,190
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTH & - 64,226 64,226
27,118 369,255 BOCKYIS
Financial liabilities TRAE

All financial liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 are
financial liabilities at amortised cost.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and bank balances, contract assets and trade receivables,
trade and retention payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

31.

MN20244 2023438310 © FiAES &
B EH R AT R -

EHMTAZARERDIAEBEER

EREDERE MRITHERR A&
ERESRWFR - BZRNFRALE
NREE - FTAFAMNFUR - HEe M HEM
FENGRIRN & B E E Mt AR
AEEFERANERAEZ ARERR
EERE  TERASZETAREH
M2 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

31 March 2024
2024F3H831H

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

3.

EMIACZAREBERAABERER

(&
SRHEERBENAABEUEERSH

SRS (BRRassREEEINPZ
TAMARZEEARK e

EER

™
=

TREAAEESBMT A A s EH
5 -

feim

il

BAAETNBHEE -

As at 31 March 2024

Listed equity investments ~ _EMRIERE
Other investments Hn&E
Life insurance policy AERE

R2024%3H31H

As at 31 March 2023

R2023%3H31H

Listed equity investments ~ _EMRERE 12,729 = = 12,729
Other investments Hiniw & - 6,006 - 6,006
Life insurance policy ANERE = = 8,383 8,383

12,729 6,006 8,383 20,1118
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31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of listed equity investments is based on
quoted market price. The Group's finance department
headed by the financial controller is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The financial
controller reports directly to the executive directors and
the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the executive directors. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss in Level 2 is determined by using the inputs from
prior transactions or third-party pricing information without
adjustment.

The fair value of the investment in the Insurance Policy in
Level 3 is determined with reference to the Surrender Value
provided by the insurance company. In the opinion of the
directors, the Surrender Value provided by the insurance
company was the best approximation of its fair value. When
the Surrender Value is higher, the fair value of investment
in the Insurance Policy will be higher. As at 31 March 2024,
increase/decrease of 5% in the Surrender Value would
result in increase/decrease in the profit before tax of the
Group of HK$430,000 (2023: HK$419,000).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2023: Nil).

31.

BIZRERAFA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

EMIACZAABERDIAEER

(&

EHBRERE 2 AR ETRETISRE
MEERE - WM BHE BT ENAREEE
BHasETemIARAEFENRK
REEF - WHREERANTESER
BERREEWmE  -NEREAH UK
HMomem TANEEZSIEERE
FRERMEREARE - AEHNTE
EEMALAE - HEBIENMERITH
REEMBREREZZEQEFIR
IR o

F_RBAABEHABENERMEEL
RABTRBTR 52 8 ABIEXE
“HEBEMCREHB)METE -

FoRRBERERAABNBRERBRAF]
REMNRERREEMET - EFR
A ARERARREMNEREERER
AENRELLE - RREESS @ R
BREAALBEAES - R20245F3A31
B RREEG R 5%H E B
& B BR B AT S FIE A8 2>430,0007%
7E(20234F : 419,000/87T) °

FR - cRBEAABTEMEE &
S5 — MMM NESARERE
=4 (20234 : &)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MEE

31 March 2024

2024F3A31H

31.

32!

228

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

M. EMIBRZARBERAABERER

(&)

FR AREHERESRHEBM]
T~

2024 2023
20244 2023%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Life insurance policy ASRE
At the beginning of the year E47) 8,383 -
Purchase BE - 8,368
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REmAERZ AN ERE 222 15
At the end of the year FR 8,605 8,383

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32.

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, contract
assets and trade receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade
and retention payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, lease liabilities and cash
and bank balances. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial
statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, market price risk and liquidity
risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to contract
assets and trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, pledged
deposits and cash and bank balances.

Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis.
The Group's trade receivables represent interim billings
or retentions certified by the customers under terms as
stipulated in the contracts. As the Group's customers
primarily consist of the Government and quasi-Government
organisations, property developers or owners with strong
financial backgrounds, management considers that the risk
of irrecoverable receivables is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 March.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

BIZRERAFA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

2. WBEREEBERBK(E)

SEER

AEEEERREIEREANGHNEER
BHREFIR - T ATRNFUR - BE2 Kk
Hip W RIEN SR EE - B FFA
KIR & RIRTTAEER

EEETYERBEERSBEHRAGER
MHER - AEEE 5 RUKBEETP
RIBE KIRT B IGRER AR P B SRR
T - HRAEERP T 2HBF ¥R
Fites - ERRBIIMEE FBAN
ETHEK - EEERSEBGRIBET AT
Bl H) AR TEK o

REERR FiEHE R

TRIEJNENAKENEEBRRNEER
BEMESEERR  TEERNARE

RASEHOBERTER) - RR3A
JTEMFERER DM

P25 S RIECRMEENAREE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

31 March 2024
2024F3H831H

32.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. BiEREEEERKE(Z

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERKE(E)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2024 RW2024%3H31H8
Contract assets and trade AREERE SRR E

receivables®

Financial assets included in FAEARE - RERAMRE
prepayments, deposits and other WFIEK S REE
receivables

REERRFEER(E)

- Normal** —— R
Pledged deposits EREFR

- Not yet past due —REH
Cash and bank balances RSB

- Not yet past due — K
As at 31 March 2023 R2023%F3A318
Contract assets and trade BHEERE HRKFE

receivables* = = = 252,976 252,976
Financial assets included in STABNIE - ke RAME

prepayments, deposits and other WHIERN S REE

receivables

- Normal** = 19,078 - - - 19,078
Pledged deposits B

— Not yet past due —RBH 34,190 = = = 34,190
Cash and bank balances Re ki1

— Not yet past due — R H 64,226 = = = 64,226

117,494 - - 252,976 370,470
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

b For contract assets and trade receivables to which the Group

applies the simplified approach for impairment, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 17 to the
financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be "doubtful”.

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of
investments held for trading decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The Group was exposed to market risk
arising from individual equity investments classified as held
for trading (note 16) as at 31 March 2024. Based on their
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period, an
increase/decrease of 10% in the fair values of the financial
assets, with all other variables held constant and before any
impact on tax, would result in an increase/decrease in profit
before tax of HK$1,736,000 (2023: HK$1,273,000).

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. In addition,
banking facilities have been put in place for contingency
purposes.

BIZRERAFA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

2. WBEMEEBERBER(E)

SRRk (E)

RERBRR FiAER (&)

* BRARERAGUREENANEER
BRBFEMS  REBEERENE
KRB T R MY 1 74555 -

= FTARNFRE  HERZREREME
ENSREENEEERERRBHA
TEEHBREREAENEERBRED
FHERIARANIRIL B HRARBIEE |
BR eREBEENEEERWARIF
=

mERE

mERREFFEEENRENAAER
REFRBUKT MERE A EENE(Cm
P K 9 /& B2 - FA20244E3H31H @ A&
EEENTSERREDEARKIERR
B {8 5l A 1R B (M 5E16) » IRIBR R

SHARMBAEN Y - EHARBTE
REMH T2 A RIAETHELEZ

BRAT ¢RMEEMNRAAEEN R
D10% » #5EEER T AT R A, R
1,736,000/ 7T (20234 : 1,273,000757T) °

REBESRER

AEBNBRZTE RERER MIEHR
BESEN  BEREET TR B
RAFTZSRBBEAZNCEESRE
B mRRikERRBESEL -
AN - EBUSRITREERSZA -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

31 March 2024
2024F3H831H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. BiEBREERERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REESRR(E)

The following table details the remaining contractual TRAJAEESRBERHRERRR
maturities as at the end of the reporting period of the BEOARTRREERE(BEEARAELH
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual BEFENNEFIE  WEZE - 8l
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments BEREMRERANERFHE)GFENTR
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on BRENF AR AREE ] EAERD
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the xFHE

earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:

2024 20244
Trade and retention payables & 5 RN RIB R PR
REBE
Financial liabilities included in ~ FH A ER I K fERT
other payables and accruals BERANTREE
Lease liabilities HEAE
2023 20234
Trade and retention payables Z 5 RN RIE R FER
REL 117,078 12,877 - 129,955
Financial liabilities included in FT A M PR 5RIE K FE T
other payables and accruals ERANEHMEE 13,238 = = 13,238
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,306 2,070 555 6,931

134,622 14,947 555 150,124
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure on a periodical
basis. As part of this review, the Group considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital
and will balance the Group’s overall capital structure
through new share issues as well as raising new debts or
repayment of existing debts. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2024
and 2023.

The Group monitors capital using a debt-to-equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company. Net cash includes lease liabilities
less cash and bank balances. The Group’s policy is to
maintain a stable debt-to-equity ratio. The debt-to-equity
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

. EEREEEEREE(E)

EXEE

AEEEAEERRNIZARAES
EERRESEF D &ETE - ERA
SEAFELE  YARMHEFERA
EEE

REBETHERMEALERE - (EAEHN
— o AEEEREAKARZLER
BEARMBEERR  WSBEBHBRETR
EEVEIEERAESTEAEEE
BENERE ANEBTZEMINDKE
MNE)EARESKETRFI o & =2024F &
2023F3A3NALFE F EBEARNE
2 BRSGAEMEEE -

AEENBEFERLRERER &
Biean bt R ERFRARR AR R ] an
FBEARGEZMEL - B FRERE
HERERRE MBITHER - AEEH
BR R EGERLRIRE - &
REEG R RN

2024 2023

20245 20234

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Lease liabilities HERE 9,289 6,719

Less: Cash and bank balances B IHe MERTTAE R (77,467) (64,226)

Net cash HEFE (68,178) (57,507)
Equity attributable to equity holders of RRRERFFAA

the Company el R 278,329 281,846

Debt-to-equity BT 7 bb 2 N/A FiE A N/A i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MEE

31 March 2024

2024F3A31H

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 33. KA RN BRRE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the BEARNRARRMERROIABMAEKL
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT -
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HERBRRMIRE =+ —*
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TEIFRIE « Re REME
other receivables IR = 22
Due from subsidiaries LA IEYNGIE S 33,111 33,238
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTHERR 736 11,692
Total current assets REEEHATE 33,847 44,952
CURRENT LIABILITY REEE
Accrual &R 4 4
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERH 33,843 44,948
NET ASSETS EEEH 33,843 44,948
EQUITY i
Issued capital BEITIRA 8,000 8,000
Reserves (note) (M) 25,843 36,948
Total equity BrER 33,843 44,948
a Less than HK$500 & D HA5007 7T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R IR AR B E

31 March 2024
2024F3A318

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 33. XA RIWEBRRT(E)

34.

COMPANY (continued)

Note: BT -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RARREBRENT -
Shares held
Share under share Accumulated
premium  award plan losses Total
REBR G
b3 ]
RGRE FRERG ESy 2 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHERT FHERT FHERT
At 1 April 2022 R2022F4 A1 H 67,231 (996) (18,143) 48,092
Loss and total comprehensive FAEBELREZEX
expense for the year ik = = (1,355) (1,355)
Final 2022 dividend declared B Bk K HA20224F % B (9,536) = = (9,536)
Purchase of shares held under BB IRIEAR (7 2B E)
share award plan PR B IR (D = (253) = (253)
At 31 March 2023 and M202353A318 &
1 April 2023 2023F481H 578695 (1,249) (19,498) 36,948
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREZEX
expense for the year 1axs = = (1,587) (1,587)
Final 2023 dividend declared B 5k K HA2023F % & (9,518) = = (9,518)
At 31 March 2024 M202453H31H 48,177 (1,249) (21,085) 25,843

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. #tEMB®REK

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2024.

BB REN2024F6A26HEEE S

BEAE IR AE T
BIZRBRAT  F2023/2024

235



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
2

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the ASEEBEREFBREESFHNERULE
Group for each of the last five financial years is set out below: ERBEREHIIMNT

Results for the year ended 31 March
BE3HA31HLFENEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

20244 20234 20224 20214 20204

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT FAT FHET FAT

Revenue Wz 1,160,370 869,032 1,152,691 1,103,157 1,204,001

Cost of sales THER A (1,115,274) (830,011) (1,099,041) (1,047,756) (1,099,388)

Gross profit EF 45,096 39,021 53,650 55,401 104,613

Other income and gains HAD A R Yz 7,158 13,242 7,286 14,131 6,676
Administrative and other FTI R Bt 4%

operating expenses, net HX - FEE (45,098) (45,403) (44,251) (48,519) (50,579)

Finance costs EURi I %N (272) (180) (129) (199) (359)

Profit before tax B i A g 7 6,884 6,680 16,556 20,814 60,351

Income tax FriS (883) (733) (2,347) (H572) (2,855)
Profit and total comprehensive F A& &% 2 H

income for the year LN L] 6,001 5,947 14,209 19,242 50,496

As at 31 March

M3H31H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20244 20234 20224F 20214F 20204F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET T T FHETT
Total assets HEE 594,187 454,723 532,231 498,322 575,034
Total liabilities waE (315,858) (172,877) (246,543) (217,307) (297,065)
Total equity MBRERS 278,329 281,846 285,688 281,015 277,969
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